
“I pledge to build a stronger and more prosperous community by advocating for civil 
engagement, respecting others and their viewpoints, and finding solutions for the betterment of 
my city.” 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

229 MAIN STREET, CONWAY, SC 29526 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 - 4:00 PM 

PLEASE SILENCE ALL ELECTRONIC DEVICES 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Arland Edwards, The Rock Church

III. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-03 (A) to annex approximately 0.36 acres of
property located at 163 Lander Drive (PIN 383-15-01-0026), and rezone from the Horry 
County Residential, no mobile homes allowed (SF10) district to the City of Conway 
Low/Medium-Density Residential (R-1) district.  

B. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-03 (B) to annex approximately 0.67 acres of 
property located at 3045 E Hwy 501, (PIN 399-01-04-0008), and rezone from the Horry 
County Highway Commercial (HC) to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) 
zoning district.  

C. Approval of August 19, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes 

IV. PUBLIC INPUT

V. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

A. Presentation of Longevity Awards – August 2024 - 5 Years:  Kimberly Staples, Finance; 5 
Years:  Richard Higgins, Fire; 5 Years:  Joseph Thornberry, Recreation; 5 Years:  Janic 
Hopkins, Recreation; 10 Years:  Debbie Smith, Administration; 20 Years:  Tasha Sherman, 
Administration; 25 Years:  K Michelle Johnson, Police  

B. Discussion of a proposed amendment to Article 10 – Subdivision and Land Development, 
of the City of Conway Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), regarding revisions to the 
requirements for Parks and Open Space Dedication. (Hucks) 

C. Discussion of a request to rezone approximately 0.33 acres of property (0.14a; 0.08a; 
0.11a) located at 1400, 1402, and 1404 Laurel Street (PINs 338-11-02-0022; 338-11-02-

1



“I pledge to build a stronger and more prosperous community by advocating for civil 
engagement, respecting others and their viewpoints, and finding solutions for the betterment of 
my city.” 
 
 

0023; & 338-11-02-0024) from the City of Conway Low/Medium-Density Residential (R-
1) district to the City of Conway Professional (P) district. (Hucks)  

 
D. Discussion of a request to annex approximately 3.02 acres of property located at 4908 

Highway 501 (PIN 399-01-04-0010), and rezone from the Horry County Limited Industrial 
(LI) district to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) district. (Hucks) 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
VI. FIRST READING 
 

A. First Reading (by title only) of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-16 (A) on amendment(s) to a 
previously approved development agreement for the property known as the “Collins Jollie 
Conservation Subdivision” [Ordinance #ZA2023-02-06 (K)], located on Collins Jollie 
Road, containing approximately 828 +/- acres, and which contains the following uses: 
single-family detached dwellings, single-family semi-attached dwellings (duplex) and/or 
single-family attached dwellings (townhomes), as well as Primary Conservation areas, 
Secondary Conservation areas, and Open Space (PINs 295-00-00-0010; 295-00-00-0035; 
295-00-00-0036; 295-00-00-0037; 295-00-00-0038; and 295-10-04-0011). (Hucks) 
 

B. First Reading (by title only) of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-16 (B) on an amendment to a 
previously approved development agreement for the property known as “Warden Station”, 
a Planned Development (PD) district [Ordinance #ZA2023-10-02 (A)] located on or near 
the corner of Pitch Landing Rd & Hwy 701 South, Kinlaw Lane & Hwy 701 South, and 
Pitch Landing Rd & Blaze Trail, containing approximately 1,763 +/- acres, and which 
contains the following uses: single-family detached dwellings, single-family semi-attached 
dwellings (duplex), single-family attached dwellings (townhomes), multifamily dwellings, 
as well as commercial and recreational uses (PINs 381-00-00-0003; 381-08-01-0006; 381-
08-04-0009; 381-08-04-0010; 380-00-00-0038; 403-00-00-0001; 403-00-00-0002; and 
403-00-00-0022). (Hucks) 
 

C. First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-16 (C) to annex approximately 1.43 acres of 
property located at 104 Gardner Lacy Rd (PIN 399-01-04-0006), and rezone from the 
Horry County Highway Commercial (HC) district to the City of Conway Highway 
Commercial (HC) district. (Hucks) 
 

D. First Reading of Ordinance #2024-09-16 (D), an Ordinance Establishing Restrictions and 
Penalties Related to Hate Intimidation and Hate Crimes. (Rogers)  
 

VII. CONSIDERATION 
 

A. Consideration of a Special Event - Conway Artisans Festival – October 26, 2024 (Rogers) 
 

B. Consideration of Award of 2024-25 Economic Development Grant (Rogers) 
 

VIII. CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT  
 
IX. COUNCIL INPUT 
 

2



“I pledge to build a stronger and more prosperous community by advocating for civil 
engagement, respecting others and their viewpoints, and finding solutions for the betterment of 
my city.” 
 
 

X. WORKSHOP 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT   
 
Any citizen of the municipality may make an appearance before City Council concerning any municipal matter with 
the exception of personnel matters.  Persons desiring to speak must notify the City Clerk prior to the beginning of 
the meeting.  However, if you are speaking regarding a public hearing item, then you would do so during that time 
on the agenda.  Please address Council from the podium stating your name, address, and the subject you would like 
to discuss.  The public may also access the meeting at https://www.conwaysc.gov/ under the “Latest Events” tab on 
the home page.  If you are unable to attend and would like to voice your concerns or comments regarding a request, 
please call the City Hall at 843-248-1760 or email ashelley@conwaysc.gov to be received prior to 12:00 noon on 
September 3, 2024.  To ensure proper recording of public comments left on the City’s voicemail, callers are urged to 
clearly pronounce their names and addresses, preferably providing spelling for both. 

3

https://www.conwaysc.gov/
mailto:ashelley@conwaysc.gov


    DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 
    ITEM: III.A.  

ISSUE: 
Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-03 (A) to annex approximately 0.36 acres located at 163 
Lander Drive (PIN 383-15-01-0026), and rezone from the Horry County Residential, no mobile homes 
allowed (SF10) district to the City of Conway Low/Medium-Density Residential (R-1) district. 

BACKGROUND: 
The annexation application was submitted by Michael Hall, as a requirement to connect to city utility 
services. According to Horry County Register of Deed’s website, the property has been in the applicant’s 
name since September 13, 2013. The property is within the Coastal Heights subdivision near Singleton 
Ridge Road and Myrtle Trace Drive. There is an existing single-family structure on the property. 
Restrictive covenants were recorded for this property on February 20, 1997.  

There have been many other properties within the Coastal Heights subdivision that have been annexed 
over the years. Those properties were zoned R-1 (Low/Medium-Density Residential) upon being 
annexed into the City. 

CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan identifies this parcel as Low/Medium-Density 
Residential (R-1). 

The intent of the R-1 District is to provide for the preservation and expansion of areas for low to medium 
density, detached single-family residential development in the City of Conway. The district shall present 
a relatively spacious character, promote quiet, livable neighborhoods, and prohibit uses that are 
incompatible with the residential nature of the surrounding area. 

CITY COUNCIL: 
City Council approved First Reading of the ordinance at their August 19, 2024 meeting. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends approval of Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-03 (A). 

4



ORDINANCE #ZA2024--09-03 (A) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX APPROXIMATELY 0.36 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
LOCATED    AT 163 LANDER DR (PIN 383-15-01-0026), AND REQUEST TO REZONE 
FROM THE HORRY COUNTY RESIDENTIAL, NO MOBILE HOMES ALLOWED 

(SF10) DISTRICT TO THE CITY OF CONWAY LOW/MEDIUM DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R-1) DISTRICT. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONWAY:  

 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS: 
A petition has been submitted to the City Council of the City of Conway to annex approximately 0.36 
acres of property described herein and represented on a map. The City Council of the City of Conway 
has determined that the annexation of this area into the City of Conway will be to the advantage of the 
municipality. 

 
The area proposed for annexation is adjacent to the present City limits. The petition for annexation of 
land and declared zoning is hereby accepted by the governing body of the municipality of Conway, 
and made a part of the City of Conway, South Carolina, to wit: 

 
ALL AND SINGULAR, those certain parcels, lots, or tracts of land in Conway Township, County 
and    State aforesaid, containing approximately 0.36 acres of property located at 163 Lander Drive (PIN 
383-15-01-0026), and request to rezone from the Horry County Residential, no mobile homes allowed 
(SF10) district, to the City of Conway Low/Medium-Density Residential (R-1) district. 

 

This annexation includes all waterways, roads, and rights-of-way adjacent to the property. 
For a more specific description of said property, see attached map. 

 
SECTION 2. APPLICATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE: 
The property is admitted as City of Conway Low/Medium Density Residential District (R-1) 
area       under the zoning laws of the municipality. 

 
SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE: 
The annexation is effective as of the date of the final reading of this Ordinance. 

 
AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that such changes shall be made on the Official Zoning Map. 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such inconsistency. 

5



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
, 2024. 

Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member

Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 

Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

First Reading:  

Final Reading: 

August 19, 2024

6



LANDER DR

SINGLETON RIDGE RD

M
YRTLE TRACE DR EX

Date: 8/2/2024  Time: 7:53:16 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\163 Lander Drive\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 163 LANDER DR.mxd

PIN #: 383-15-01-0026
TMS #: 151-28-03-047

163 LANDER DR
(P24-0202)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 383-15-01-0026

7



LANDER DR

SINGLETON RIDGE RD

UNIVERSITY DR

CLEMSON RD

M
YRTLE TRACE DR EX

CYPRESS CIR

FURMAN CIR

TECHNOLOGY BLVD

UNIVERSITY CIR

MYRTLE GREENS DR

WIND TREE LN

WOODMAN DR

LANDER DR

Date: 8/2/2024  Time: 7:52:00 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\163 Lander Drive\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 163 LANDER DR.mxd

PIN #: 383-15-01-0026
TMS #: 151-28-03-047

163 LANDER DR
(P24-0202)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 383-15-01-0026

8



SF 10

SF 10

SF 10

SF 10

SF 10

PUD

OPI

SF 10

OPI

HC

SF 10

OPI

HC

SF 10
PUD

HC

OPI

HC

OPI

SF 10

SF 10

SF 10

SF 10

SF 10

SF 10

HC

SF 10

SF 10

HC

SF 10

PUD

SF 10

SF 10

HC

SF 10

SF 10

SINGLETON RIDGE RD

LANDER DR

CLEMSON RD
UNIVERSITY DR

M
YRTLE TRACE DR EX

CYPRESS CIR

TECHNOLOGY BLVD

FURMAN CIR

UNIVERSITY CIR

WOODMAN DR W
ESTVILLE DR

WIND TREE LN

LANDER DR

Date: 8/2/2024  Time: 7:39:34 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\163 Lander Drive\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR 163 LANDER DR.mxd

PIN #: 383-15-01-0026
TMS #: 151-28-03-047

163 LANDER DR
(P24-0202)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 383-15-01-0026

9



SINGLETON RIDGE RD

LANDER DR

CLEMSON RD
UNIVERSITY DR

M
YRTLE TRACE DR EX

CYPRESS CIR

TECHNOLOGY BLVD

FURMAN CIR

UNIVERSITY CIR

WOODMAN DR

MYRTLE GREENS DR

W
ESTVILLE DR

WIND TREE LN

LANDER DR

Date: 8/2/2024  Time: 7:42:25 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\163 Lander Drive\GIS\FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 163 LANDER DR.mxd

PIN #: 383-15-01-0026
TMS #: 151-28-03-047

163 LANDER DR
(P24-0202)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 383-15-01-0026

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

10



11



12



13



DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 
ITEM: III.B.  

ISSUE: 
Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-03 (B) to annex approximately 0.67 acres of property located 
at 3045 E Hwy 501, (PIN 399-01-04-0008), and rezone from the Horry County Highway Commercial 
(HC) to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) zoning district.  

BACKGROUND: 
On June 19th, 2024, the applicant submitted an annexation and rezoning application for the subject 
property, located at 3045 E Hwy 501. The property is currently zoned Horry County Highway 
Commercial (HC) and is currently the location of a title loan business. The property is a donut hole along 
this portion of Hwy 501, and the adjacent parcel, Founders National Golf LLC, was annexed into the 
City of Conway earlier this year. The property does have a restrictive covenant on file and is requesting 
annexation at the city’s request as a part of the restrictive covenant agreement. 

Per Section 3.2.10 of the UDO, the intent of the Highway Commercial (HC) district is to provide 
compatible locations to serve the automobile-oriented commercial activities in harmony with major 
highway developments, reduce traffic congestions and to enhance the aesthetic atmosphere of the City.  

Surrounding uses/Zoning Districts: 
The property abuts parcels zoned City of Conway Light Industrial (LI), and City of Conway Highway 
Commercial. Adjacent uses is a gas station, vacant land and Myrtle Beach International Golf Course 
entrance signage.  

CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan also identifies the entire parcel as Highway 
Commercial (HC).  

PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Planning Commission held the required public hearing on the request at their August 1st meeting, and 
recommended approval of the request to annex and rezone to HC. 

CITY COUNCIL: 
City Council approved First Reading of the ordinance at their August 19, 2024 meeting. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-03 (B). 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Application; GIS Maps 

14



ORDINANCE #ZA2024--09-03 (B) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX APPROXIMATELY 0.67 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
LOCATED    AT 3045 E HWY 501 (PIN 399-01-04-0008), AND REQUEST TO REZONE 

FROM THE HORRY COUNTY HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL (HC) DISTRICT TO THE 
CITY OF CONWAY HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL (HC) DISTRICT. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONWAY:  

 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS: 
A petition has been submitted to the City Council of the City of Conway to annex approximately 0.67 
acres of property described herein and represented on a map. The City Council of the City of Conway 
has determined that the annexation of this area into the City of Conway will be to the advantage of the 
municipality. 

 
The area proposed for annexation is adjacent to the present City limits. The petition for annexation of 
land and declared zoning is hereby accepted by the governing body of the municipality of Conway, 
and made a part of the City of Conway, South Carolina, to wit: 

 
ALL AND SINGULAR, those certain parcels, lots, or tracts of land in Conway Township, County 
and    State aforesaid, containing approximately 0.67 acres of property located at 3045 E Hwy 501 (PIN 
399-01-04-0008), and request to rezone from the Horry County Highway Commercial (HC) district to 
the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) district. 

 
This annexation includes all waterways, roads, and rights-of-way adjacent to the property. 
For a more specific description of said property, see attached map. 

 
SECTION 2. APPLICATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE: 
The property is admitted as City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) area       under the zoning 
laws of the municipality. 

 
SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE: 
The annexation is effective as of the date of the final reading of this Ordinance. 

 
AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that such changes shall be made on the Official Zoning Map. 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such inconsistency. 
 
 

15



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this            day of   , 2024. 
 
 
 
Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 

 
Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 
 
 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 
 
 

              
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

 
 
 
First Reading:   August 19, 2024 
 

Final Reading:    
 
 
 
 
 

16



HW
Y 501

GARDNER LACY RD

M
YR

TL
E 

BE
AC

H 
NA

IO
NA

L 
GC

CONBRACO CIR

HW
Y 501

Date: 6/25/2024  Time: 7:54:34 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\3045 Hwy 501\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 3045 E HWY 501.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0008
TMS #: 151-00-03-017

3045 E HWY 501
(P24-0162)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 399-01-04-0008

17



HW
Y 501

GARDNER LACY RD

CONBRACO CIR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

MYR
TL

E 
BE

AC
H 

NA
IO

NA
L 

GC

NO NAME

SANTEE COOPER DISTRIBUTION RD

CONBRACO CIR

HW
Y 501

Date: 6/25/2024  Time: 7:52:20 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\3045 Hwy 501\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 3045 E HWY 501.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0008
TMS #: 151-00-03-017

3045 E HWY 501
(P24-0162)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 399-01-04-0008

18



HC

LI

LI

HC
HC

HC

HC

PUD

OPI

LI

HC

LI

PUD

OPI

MRD2

CFA

LI

OPI

HW
Y 501

GARDNER LACY RD

CONBRACO CIR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE
MYRTLE RIDGE DR

NO NAME

SANTEE COOPER DISTRIBUTION RD

CONBRACO CIR

HW
Y 501

Date: 6/25/2024  Time: 7:46:49 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\3045 Hwy 501\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR 3045 E HWY 501.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0008
TMS #: 151-00-03-017

3045 E HWY 501
(P24-0162)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 399-01-04-0008

19



HW
Y 501

GARDNER LACY RD

CONBRACO CIR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

MYR
TL

E 
BE

AC
H 

NA
IO

NA
L 

GC

NO NAME

SANTEE COOPER DISTRIBUTION RD

CONBRACO CIR

HW
Y 501

Date: 6/25/2024  Time: 7:48:37 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\3045 Hwy 501\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 3045 E HWY 501.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0008
TMS #: 151-00-03-017

3045 E HWY 501
(P24-0162)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 399-01-04-0008

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

20



21



22



23



24



25



August 19, 2024 

Page 1 of 14 

  CITY OF CONWAY 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

CONWAY CITY HALL 
229 MAIN STREET, CONWAY 

MONDAY, AUGUST 19, 2024 - 4:00 P.M. 

PRESENT:  Mayor Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Pro Tem Larry White, Amanda Butler, William 
Goldfinch, Julie Hardwick, Beth Helms, Justin Jordan.   

STAFF:  Adam Emrick, City Administrator; John Rogers, Deputy City Administrator; June 
Wood, Public Information Officer; Jeff Leveille, Technology Services Director; Timmy Williams, 
Hospitality & Beautification Director; Lynn Smith, Human Resources Director; Dale Long, Police 
Chief; Ted Dudley, Interim Public Utilities Director; Kayla Fleming, Municipal Judge; Jessica 
Hucks, Planning and Development Director; Le Hendrick, Fire Chief; Reggie Jenerette, Solid 
Waste Director; Ashley Smith, Parks and Recreation Director; Rock Rabon, Fleet Maintenance 
Director; Katie Dennis, Planner; and Alicia Shelley, City Clerk.  

OTHERS:  There were approximately 15 others in attendance.  

CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Blain called the meeting to order.  Erik Roberts, The Rock Church 
gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

The requirements for posting notice of this meeting under South Carolina’s Freedom of 
Information Act (FOIA) were met. 

Motion:  White made a motion, seconded by Hardwick to approve the August 19, 2024 agenda.  
Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (B) to annex approximately 0.8 acres of 
property located at 420 Maplewood Circle (PIN 324-06-04-0013), and rezone from the 
Horry County Residential District (SF40), no mobile homes allowed to the City of 
Conway Low/Medium Residential (R-1) District. 

B. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (C) to annex approximately 1.02 acres of 
property located at 4221 Siwel Road (PIN 295-16-01-0010), and rezone from the 
Horry County Commercial Forest Agriculture district (CFA) to the City of Conway 
Low/Medium Residential (R-1) District.  

C. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (D) to annex approximately 0.34 acres of 
property located at 5205 Columbia Street (PIN 383-08-02-0045), and rezone from the 
Horry County Residential District (SF10), no mobile homes allowed to the City of 
Conway Low/Medium Residential (R-1) District.  

D. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (E), amending Article 4 – Use Tables and 
Article 5 – Specific Use Regulations, of the City of Conway Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO), regarding mobile car wash / detailing facilities and/or businesses.  

26



August 19, 2024 
 

Page 2 of 14 
 

 
E. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (F), amending Article 2 – Definitions, 

Article 5 – Specific Use Regulations, and Article 6 – Design Standards, of the City of 
Conway Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), regarding requirements for corner 
lots and lots with double frontage.  

 
F. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (G), amending Article 11 – Signage and 

Article 15 – Enforcement, of the City of Conway Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO), regarding signs placed on public property and/or within public rights-of-way, 
as well as violations of the UDO and penalties for such violations.  

G. Approval of a Purchase of a Sewer Camera System with Transit Van (budgeted) 
 

H. Approval of August 5, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion:  Butler made a motion, seconded by Helms 
to approve the August 19, 2024 consent agenda.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC INPUT: 
 
There was no public input.  Motion:  Goldfinch made a motion, seconded by White, to close public 
input.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 
SPECIAL PRESENTATION: 
 

A. Presentation of Resolution Honoring James Friday – Blain presented Friday with a 
Resolution honoring him for his years of service and a celebration of his retirement from 
the city. 
 

B. Presentation of Employee of the Month for August 2024 – Public Works – Rabon 
presented Krista Bruce with the Employee of the Month award for August. 
 

C. Presentation of a Proclamation Honoring WMBF News – Blain presented a 
proclamation honoring WMBF Television News.  

 
SECOND/FINAL READING: 
 

A. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (A) to annex approximately 5 acres of 
property located at 2493 Highway 501 (PIN 383-14-02-0002), and rezone from the 
Horry County Highway Commercial (HC) to the City of Conway Highway 
Commercial (HC) district.  Hucks said that this property is currently used as a 
manufactured homes sales location; specifically, Clayton Homes. The current county 
zoning is Highway Commercial. The City’s future land use map identifies the parcel as 
being Highway Commercial as well. This property is also located within the Gateway 
corridor overlay, which includes property 500’ from either side of the major roadways 
entering the city, including Highway 501.  Based on the current use, and the surrounding 
zoning, staff and Planning Commission recommended that the property be zoned Light 
Industrial upon annexation so that the property owner would not be prevented from 
expanding, as no expansion outside the current building footprint would be permitted. 

27



August 19, 2024 
 

Page 3 of 14 
 

However, staff agrees that an expansion that results in better site design including a new 
site-built office, would be consistent with the city’s intent of the Gateway Corridor 
Overlay, which was established to provide standards for accessibility, appearance, and 
safety for development along the corridor.  Hucks stated that Council approved first 
reading as Highway Commercial at the August 5 meeting and staff recommends approval 
as Highway Commercial.  
 
Goldfinch recommended possibly changing the UDO to allow expansions, when the 
ownership is the same, with these types of circumstances.  
 
Hucks explained the difference between Light Industrial and Highway Commercial.   
 
Motion:  Goldfinch made a motion, seconded by Blain to approve final reading of 
Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (A).  Vote:  Helms, Butler, Blain, Goldfinch, Jordan, Hardwick 
voted yes.  White voted no.  Motion carried with a 6-1 vote. 
 

B. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-02-05 (B) to annex approximately 446+/- acres 
of property, located at or near the corner of Hwy 378 & Juniper Bay Rd, Hwy 378 & 
Airport Rd, and on Dunn Shortcut Rd (PIN’s 336-00-00-0043, -0044, -0045, 336-13-
04-0006, 336-14-04-0011, 336-15-03-0003, 337-00-00-0009, 337-08-01-0004, 370-00-
00-0011, and 370-04-01-0004), and rezone from the Horry County Commercial Forest 
Agriculture (CFA) district, Horry County Highway Commercial (HC) district, Horry 
County Residential, no mobile homes allowed (SF40) district, the City of Conway 
Heavy Industrial (HI) district, and City of Conway Low/Medium-Density Residential 
(R-1) district, to the City of Conway Planned Development (PD) district.  Hucks gave 
an overview and update of this request.  Hucks said that this project, formerly known as 
the Tributary PD, is located on Highway 378, Dunn Shortcut Road, and Juniper Bay Road. 
Council approved first reading of this request at the July 15 meeting, and final reading 
being scheduled was contingent on a recommendation being provided by Planning 
Commission after they had a chance to review the request with the changes that were made, 
as well as another public hearing on the request being held.  When it was before Council 
in July, staff outlined some of the revisions and concerns to the request, which included: 
(1) The removal of 2 parcels from the PD, located on Dayton Drive, which also removed 
the concern about connectivity between one of the tracts and the Macala Acres subdivision. 
Additionally, with the removal of these 2 tracts, the overall density of the PD was reduced 
from the originally proposed 1,767 residential units to a total of 1,261 residential units; a 
reduction of 506 units; (2) The removal of the roadway going thru the City’s shop complex; 
(3) The revised location of the amenity area and the proposed city park; (4) the removal of 
the flex tracts on the Hwy 378 side – which are now designated as commercial only tracts; 
and (5) The quality of the homes proposed to be constructed within the development 
considering the minimum lot widths proposed.  
 
Hucks said that Planning Commission considered the revised PD at their August 1 meeting 
and held a public hearing again on the request. As was the case at the previous public 
hearing, there were several people in attendance; most of whom were residents of the 
surrounding properties. Many of the concerns expressed by the public were the same as 
was previously expressed, including stormwater drainage, flooding, traffic on Highway 
378, Juniper Bay Road and Dunn Shortcut Road, school capacity, lack of infrastructure 

28



August 19, 2024 
 

Page 4 of 14 
 

needed to support the growth, and density of the project.  A few of the issues that were 
discussed amongst Planning Commission were the proposed traffic improvements, the 
revised location of the city park in relation to the canal trail, and the number of lots that 
would be 35-feet in width. Planning Commission ultimately recommended approval of the 
revisions to the PD, but with the following revisions:  (1) To address the accessibility / 
connectivity issues between the location of the City Park and the canal trail; (2) Amend the 
front yard setbacks from 15’ to 20’ to ensure that vehicles parked on driveways will not 
encroach onto sidewalks; and (3) To limit the number of lots that would have a 35’ lot 
width to a maximum of 12% of the entire project area.  Hucks stated that staff is in support 
of these changes recommended by Planning Commission and that the applicant has revised 
their PD document to reflect the recommendations of Planning Commission.  
 
Hucks went on to say that as far as the roadway improvements, what improvements are 
being proposed as part of the PD and the Development Agreement are those which were 
recommended as part of the traffic impact assessment. There are 4 driveway location 
improvements that are recommended, as well as improvements to the intersection of 
Juniper Bay Road and Highway 378 and the widening of Highway 378 from 2 to 5 lanes 
between Dayton Drive, where the road narrows to 2 lanes to the realigned Dirty Branch 
Road & Highway 378 intersection.  The driveway locations are 1) Highway 378 and 
Juniper Bay Road; 2) Airport Road & Highway 378; 3) Dirty Branch Road & Highway 
378; and 4) Dunn Shortcut Road and entrance to the project.  Turn lanes were 
recommended at each of these intersections, with driveways 2 and 3 having turn lanes on 
all approaches. Signalization of driveways 2 and 3 was also recommended, when warranted 
– but no specific timeframe given in the traffic study for signalization.  As with previous 
large annexations accompanied by a development agreement, having a trigger in which 
these traffic improvements are required to be completed is necessary, and rather than a 
specific date, what’s proposed is to tie the improvements to the actual number of building 
permits that are issued, which you see here. This also would need to align with the proposed 
phasing of the project, as it would not make sense to say that all of the improvements must 
be complete before the year 2029 if no development plans have been submitted for review, 
but when they are, that is when these improvements will be necessary.  
 
Hucks said that as with any new development that is proposed, density is always a concern. 
Currently, under county zoning, a majority of the property – approximately 392 of the 446 
acres, is zoned Commercial Forest Agriculture, or CFA. A few of the smaller parcels are 
zoned SF40, which would require a 40,000 square foot lot size, but those would only apply 
to the parcels already zoned SF40, and there’s only 3 of those on Highway 378. While 
SF40 would only allow a site built single-family detached dwelling, the CFA district will 
allow much more, and it is not limited to residential development. As far as residential and 
according to the County’s Zoning Ordinance, the CFA district allows lot sizes a minimum 
of half an acre in size to have manufactured homes, single-family detached dwellings, and 
townhome dwellings. Additionally, with certain conditions, multiple dwellings on one tract 
of land are also permitted, which used to allow up to 5 dwellings on a property that is a 
minimum of 3 acres in size. CFA also permits uses, such as campers for temporary living 
accommodations, group homes, and non-residential uses, such as beer, wine and spirit 
production tastings & retail sales, commercial agricultural facilities, livestock auction 
facilities, vehicle & boat repair facilities, golf courses, firearm training and sports facilities, 
residential subdivision airparks, railroad depots, medical offices, assisted living facilities, 

29



August 19, 2024 
 

Page 5 of 14 
 

funeral homes and crematories, laundromats, fitness centers, grocery stores, plant 
nurseries, bulk landscaping suppliers, mini-warehouse facilities, gas stations, as well as 
restaurants & bars.  The current proposal is for a majority of the property to be zoned to 
allow single-family detached dwellings and a small percentage to be duplex dwellings. The 
gross density of the project is a little less than 3 units per acre.  Moreso, out of the 446 total 
acres, 421 of those acres allow for residential development, but when you remove the 44 
acres of wetlands, the 82 acres of upland open space, the 12 acres that will encompass the 
canal trail, the approximate 6 acres designated for a city park, and the approximate 43 acres 
that will contain stormwater ponds, the remaining acres that will encompass residential 
development is reduced to approximately 240 acres. Total open space to be provided which 
includes the wetlands, the ponds, the trail and other amenities is approximately 193 acres. 
The total amount they are required to provide, based solely on the number of units 
proposed, is approximately 26 acres. 
 
Hucks said that as far as infrastructure, if the property were annexed, absent a development 
agreement, and assigned the city’s default zoning of R upon annexation, the minimum lot 
size would be 10,000 square feet The developer would be under no obligation to provide 
the amount of open space that’s currently proposed, no perimeter buffers would be required 
for the residential portions of the development, no city park would be included in the 
request and more than likely, this portion of the canal trail would likely never be installed. 
Also, larger lot sizes spread out through the entire acreage does not equate to less density. 
Clustering residential development on portions of the overall acreage versus spreading out 
the lots across the entire acreage ensures better protection of the environmentally sensitive 
areas and less impervious surface areas, which is better in terms of stormwater. As has been 
previously discussed, there are no known flood zones on this property.  
 
Hucks stated that due to concerns regarding flooding, stormwater, and tree preservation, 
the applicant has included language in their proposed development agreement for the 
project that the development would comply with the ordinances that are in effect at the 
time plans are submitted…so if the stormwater ordinance, the city’s flood damage 
prevention ordinance, or if tree preservation ordinance that is in effect at the time plans are 
submitted is different than what is currently existing, the applicant’s agree to be in 
compliance with what is in effect at the time plans are submitted, whereas typically, 
development agreements lock in most requirements that are in effect at the time the 
agreement is adopted.  Additionally, the applicant has added a trail head location on the 
Juniper Bay Roadside to address another of Planning Commission’s comments regarding 
connectivity to the canal trail, which will include parking to accommodate visitors. 
  
Hucks informed Council that, both the PD document and the Development Agreement 
include enhancement fees, which are different for single-family detached, single-family 
semi attached, and townhome dwellings. Single-family detached is $5,750 per dwelling, 
and duplex or townhome units are $4,025 per dwelling. This amount will begin to increase 
in January 2026, in an amount equal to the lesser – the CPI (consumer price index) at the 
time or 5% per year, to ensure that the fees collected reflect the city’s on-going increases 
in the cost of services that are provided. These fees will be collected with the building 
permits.   
 

30



August 19, 2024 
 

Page 6 of 14 
 

Hucks said that under the current zoning, the property could be developed in the county, 
should the city not annex at this time, and any use permitted in CFA would be permitted. 
Because these properties are within the city’s utility service area, the applicants are 
required to request annexation, in accordance with city ordinance, and at some point, 
whether now or later, these properties will be within the city limits. If annexed post 
development, the reality is that much of what would later be annexed would be considered 
nonconforming to city standards, and would be done sporadically, as each individual 
property owner – whether it’s a single residence or a commercial property, would be 
requesting annexation each time they request a new water service or sale the property. 
Annexing the property now and ahead of any development ensures that what is developed, 
aligns with the city’s standards now and in the future. 
  
Lastly, Hucks said that there were some minor revisions to the PD ordinance that were 
made this afternoon to address some of staff’s final comments that need to be made part of 
the record. This includes the lot widths for the PD and the Master Site Plan to match and 
show a 37’, 40’, and 50’ lot widths, and to add a column to the dimensional standards table 
reflecting the percentage of each lot width type – capping the 37’ lot widths to 12% of the 
overall residential units. Additionally, the Tree Preservation Ordinance sections for both 
the PD and the Development Agreement should reflect protected and/or landmark trees. 
Also, the number of permits that create the trigger for road improvements should match 
what is included in the Development Agreement, if that is what is agreed upon and 
approved.   
 
Council discussed smart development, traffic improvements including signal lights and 
road alignment, and the school district.  
 
Motion:  White made a motion, seconded by Blain to approve the final reading of 
Ordinance #ZA2024-02-05 (B).  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 

C. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-02-05 (A) of a request for the City of Conway 
to enter into a Development Agreement, for proposed development of approximately 
446 +/- acres of property located on or near the corner of Hwy 378 & Juniper Bay 
Rd, Hwy 378 & Airport Rd, and on Dunn Shortcut Rd (PIN’s 337-00-00-0009; 336-
00-00-0043, -0044, and -0045; 337-08-01-0004; 336-13-04-0006; 336-14-04-0011; 336-
15-03-0003; 370-00-00-0011; and 370-04-01-0004).  Hucks said that comments were with 
the previous request.  Hucks stated that the required public hearings in accordance with 
state law were held by Planning Commission on November 27, 2023 and City Council held 
the second public hearing January 16, 2024.  Hucks stated that staff recommended approval 
of the Development Agreement. 
 
Motion:  White made a motion, seconded by Goldfinch to approve the final reading of 
Ordinance #ZA2024-02-05 (A).  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried 

 
FIRST READING:                  
 

A. First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-03 (A) to annex approximately 0.36 acres 
located at 163 Lander Drive (PIN 383-15-01-0026), and rezone from the Horry County 
Residential, no mobile homes allowed (SF10) district to the City of Conway 

31



August 19, 2024 
 

Page 7 of 14 
 

Low/Medium-Density Residential (R-1) district.  Dennis stated that this request was 
submitted by the applicants as a requirement to connect to city water and sewer services.  
The property has been in the applicant’s name since September 13th of 2013. And has had 
a restrictive Covenant on file since February 20, 1997.  The property is located within the 
Coastal Heights subdivision, located off Highway 544. There is an existing single-family 
residence on the property. Council has annexed many other properties within the Coastal 
Heights Subdivision over the years.  The future land use map does identify the property as 
R-1 and staff recommends approval. 
 
Motion:  Goldfinch made a motion, seconded by Jordan to approve the first reading of 
Ordinance #ZA2024-09-03 (A).  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 

B. First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-03 (B) to annex approximately 0.67 acres of 
property located at 3045 E Hwy 501, (PIN 399-01-04-0008), and rezone from the 
Horry County Highway Commercial (HC) to the City of Conway Highway 
Commercial (HC) zoning district.  Dennis stated that this request was submitted on July 
19th for the subject property at the City’s request as a part of the restrictive convenance 
agreement. The property is considered a doughnut hole along the 501 corridor, is currently 
zoned Horry County Highway Commercial and is currently operating as a title loan 
business.  The property is located adjacent to the Founders National Golf LLC parcel that 
was annexed earlier this year.  The future land use map does identify the property as 
Highway Commercial.  Planning Commission held the required public hearing on this 
request at their August 1 meeting and recommended approval of the annexation and 
rezoning Dennis said that staff also recommends approval. 
 
Motion:  White made a motion, seconded by Butler to approve the first reading of 
Ordinance #ZA2024-09-03 (B).  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 

                                                                                                                      
CONSIDERATION: 
 

A. Consideration of a request for a waiver of sidewalk requirements for the EME 
Apartments located at 1911 Ninth Avenue, a multi-family development that is 
proposing a new sixteen (16) unit building on the backside of the existing site.  (PIN 
368-02-04-0015).  Hucks said that the applicant would like to request a fee in lieu of 
sidewalk installation for this property. The applicant submitted civil plans, which are 
currently being reviewed, and under the current ordinance, a connecting system of 
sidewalks is required on both sides of each local residential street and along the frontage 
of all properties abutting arterial or local nonresidential streets. This would mean internal 
to the development and external to the development.  Sidewalks currently exist on the Ninth 
Avenue side of the property, but this property is surrounded by a street on 3 sides. Neither 
Pittman nor Ridge Street contain sidewalks. GIS maps indicate that Ridge Street is a city 
street while Pittman Street is a state road. Sidewalks do exist on the opposite side of Pittman 
Street, but there are no sidewalks on either side of Ridge Street.  Additionally, Article 10 
of the UDO, the city’s land development regulations, in section 10.5.2, item C states that 
applicants shall construct a sidewalk to meet the minimum standards for the street 
classification for developments fronting on any existing street segment maintained by the 
city, the county or the state. However, being that Pittman is a state road and there is a 
sidewalk on one side of that street, the applicant may be able to provide additional 

32



August 19, 2024 
 

Page 8 of 14 
 

information as to whether the state would permit sidewalk installation on the side in 
question.  According to county land records, some of these units were constructed in the 
late 60’s, and even later construction was not compliant with city standards for site 
improvements, so the site – with respect to landscape buffers and sidewalk requirements, 
is considered legal nonconforming. The sidewalk fee in lieu section of the UDO was 
amended by council last fall to give council the ability to either reduce or waive entirely 
sidewalk fee-in-lieu amounts for properties considered to be legal nonconforming, if 
recommended by TRC. If sidewalks are not required now, and the fee in lieu is required, 
or eliminated, the cost to install sidewalks later – should the city identify the need for 
sidewalks in the future, will likely be higher, and whatever fee in lieu is provided may not 
be enough to cover the cost that will be incurred by the city at that time.  
 
Hucks stated that right now, the city’s contracted cost is $30 per linear foot, which would 
equate to a total fee in lieu of $42,810 for 1,427 linear feet. This fee, if the fee in lieu is 
granted, would have to be paid before a certificate of occupancy is issued for the building.  
 
Hucks informed Council that as an observation, there are several bus stops along Ninth 
Avenue, picking up and dropping off children who live along many of the streets off of 
Ninth Avenue, including Ridge and Pittman Streets. Hucks said that staff continues to 
support the installation of sidewalks where required in the UDO.  
 
Cassidy Callaghan of Venture Engineering further explained the request stating that the 
applicant just put a nice fence up and will be landscaping therefore it takes away the 
aspect of allowing a sidewalk to go onto the property, if DOT does not allow it.  Callahan 
said that they are currently in discussion with SCDOT, and she does not think that they 
will allow the sidewalks along Pittman Street.  Callhan said that there is not enough room 
within the ROW and the property line to allow for the sidewalk and is very similar to 
Robs Auto Body.  Callhan further explained that it could be a sidewalk to nowhere as 
Pittman Street has housing along it and will not have a sidewalk unless they go to DOT 
and get an encroachment permit. 
 
After much discussion, Council would like to visit the site and have the applicant work 
with SCDOT for a response in obtaining an encroachment permit. 
 
Motion: Blain made a motion, seconded by Butler to defer this request until the next 
meeting.  Vote:  Helms, Butler, Blain, Goldfinch, Jordan, White voted yes.  Hardwick 
voted no.  Motion carried with a 6-1 vote. 
 

B. Consideration of a 4 Way Stop at the Intersection of Wood Stork Drive and Whooping 
Crane Drive.  Long said that the city has been approached by the management company 
for the homeowner’s association for Wild Wing to put a four way stop at this intersection.  
Long said that before the last phase there was a dirt road that ran from Wood Stork and 
connected through to Whooping Crane and has since been paved.  Long said that there is a 
section in that area where a pond is on one side and no homes, a nice long straightaway 
that accelerates into one of the earlier phases.  Long said that there is a storage yard that 
already has a stop sign and make this a total 4 way stop and he agrees that this would assist 
with speeding abatement.  
 

33



August 19, 2024 
 

Page 9 of 14 
 

 
 
Motion: Blain made a motion, seconded by Helms to add stop signs on Wood Stork Drive 
at Whooping Crane intersection, making this a four-way stop intersection.  Vote:  
Unanimous. Motion carried. 
 

C. Consideration of Selection of Contractor for the Highway 701 South Water Main 
Relocation.  Dudley stated that on August 15 sealed bids were opened for the relocation 
of a 24” water main for a Santee Cooper project.  The Public Utilities Department 
recommends awarding the contract to the low bidder, Richardson Construction.  
 
Motion:  Blain made a motion, seconded by Hardwick, to award the low bid as 
recommended by staff.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 
 
Emrick informed Council of the following: 

• Emrick said that he was going to do something here that he doesn’t do enough and was 
going to brag. Emrick stated the following:  As you all know, we are a city that floods.  In 
2015, 2016 and 2018, our most recent notable floods, we had catastrophic harm as a result 
of these floods.  Millions of dollars of private and public property loss.  Devastating 
damages that took years to recover from.  Emrick remembered speaking at many 
conferences about Hurricane Florence and where we go from here.  Here is what he said.  
We live in an area that is low-lying and is very near the coast.  Most of Horry County is in 
a swamp.  We have chosen to live here knowing that every late summer and fall, we are 
likely to be hammered by a hurricane that will cause our swamps and rivers to flood and 
we need to deal with that.  Our goal is to do things differently.  To be a city that floods and 
no one really cares.   Sure, flooding is a nuisance, but that is the price we have to pay to 
live in such an amazing place.  I never thought that this was a pipe dream.  This wasn’t 
wishful thinking.  This was a goal, and there’s nothing more I like that to cross something 
off of my goal list.  To this end, we categorically changed the way we do things after 
Hurricane Florence.  No more repeating previous mistakes and expecting different results.  
I’m not going to detail the measures we’ve taken in the last five years, but they’ve been 
immense and time consuming and expensive and worth it.  In the winter of 2021, we had 
a pretty terrible flood.  The river reached 15.6’, the 6th worst flood in the City’s history.  It 
didn’t come from a rain event or tropical storm; it was a result of the system having too 
much water in it and that backed up the Waccamaw.  We had no damage from this flood, 
none.  We talk about this from time to time, but we do it quietly, because maybe it was a 
fluke.  We got lucky.  But I’m here to tell you today, that we did not get lucky in 2021, we 
tested the new system.  And we passed.  And we passed again today, when the river crested 
at 14.9’.  Still no reported private property damage and likely no public property damage 
either.  This is the 9th worst flood in our history and no damage., just behind the 8th worst 
from 1924.  I’m not saying that we are immune from flooding.  Flash flooding is a very 
real risk, but we are taking measures to protect our city from those as well.  And if we get 
above 16’, we’re going to start losing more than roads.  What I am saying is that we are 
becoming a city that floods and no one cares.   

34



August 19, 2024 
 

Page 10 of 14 
 

• Emrick commended the city emergency personnel for their tireless work during Hurricane 
Debby and said that there is a great peace of mind knowing that when the wind is blowing 
and the rain is falling in buckets, the city has dedicated people out there doing everything 
they can to keep things safe for families.  

• Most Horry County Schools are back in session starting today, so drive patiently and 
carefully.  Remember, for some of these students, they are also new drivers, driving in 
chaotic conditions, so give plenty of room for them to maneuver.   

• Conway High School’s first football game is this Friday!  7:30 kickoff on the road against 
Wilson.  Go Tigers! 

• Coastal’s first football game is only a week away when the Chants travel to Jacksonville 
State on the 29th.    

• The city received the quarterly housing update from CCAR today.  Conway’s new listings 
are up 30.8% in July, closed sales up 10.1%, median sales price up 1.6% to $304,900, the 
% of price received is up .5% to 98.5%, days on market is up slightly by 6.7%, and 
inventory of homes for sale is way up, by 41.4%.  This higher inventory should help keep 
the prices stable if it can continue. 

• There is a workshop tonight that we should move to the conference room for after Council 
Input.  We will discuss a dog tethering ordinance, removal of a 4way stop on Tiger Drive, 
Boat Slip Rental Fees at Transient Docks, The Street renaming process and fee schedule 
change, Amendments to the Development Agreements at Warden Station and Collins Jollie 
and the splash pad at the Town Green. 

• We have department head reports tonight from Police, Hospitality and Beautification, and 
Fleet.   

 
Hospitality and Beautification – Williams updated Council on the Hospitality and 
Beautification weekend crew and said that it was going great.  Williams said that Plants Direct 
and Walmart has donated plant materials to the city, and he thanked them.  Williams stated that 
his crew would begin cleaning up from the flooding at the river once it has receded.  Williams 
then said that he gave Council the Keep Conway Beautiful Annual Report.   
 
Fleet Maintenance – Rabon updated Council on the staffing of the Fleet Maintenance 
department, work orders, and outside labor and repair costs.   
 
Police Department – Long updated Council on the staffing of the Police Department, calls for 
service, trends, officer recognition, lifesaving kits, space at Whittemore Park Middle School, and 
delayed response calls. 
 
COUNCIL INPUT:  
 
Hardwick thanked the department heads for the excellent reports and welcomed all of the students 
back to school.  
 
Jordan commended staff for all of the work that did go on during the storm and also the police 
staff this morning with all of the back-to-school traffic.  Jordan congratulated Grant Holmes with 
his first major league baseball win. 
 

35



August 19, 2024 
 

Page 11 of 14 
 

White said that he would also like for the city to recognize Daisy Fair Flowers for receiving a 
statewide honor.   
 
Blain requested that everyone join her in singing Happy Birthday to Rogers and Goldfinch.  Blain 
gave a Bon Voyage to Hardwick.  Blain commended and thanked staff for the work in preparing 
for the Tropical Storm, Debby.  Blain informed Council of the invitation from Horry County for a 
gathering.  Blain said that Emrick and herself met with Horry County about a concerning issue and 
she found out that a sincere resolve to communicate among us better and share more information 
over time.  Blain directed staff to move forward with a Hate Crime Ordinance.  
 
WORKSHOP:   
 
Collins Jollie Development Agreement Amendment and Warden Station Development 
Agreement Amendment 
 
Hucks said that City Council adopted an ordinance approving a development agreement for the 
development of the Collins Jollie Conservation Subdivision in February, 2023.  The sole purpose 
of the development agreement was to give the master developer the ability to record the wetlands 
and conservation areas that were being set aside as open space for the entire conservation 
subdivision with each development or phase, as not all of the tracts are owned by or being 
developed by the same entity and per the city’s UDO, all open space (to include these 
conservation areas), is required to be platted as an instrument of permanent protection – such as a 
conservation easement over these areas or dedication to a conservation group, or even the city, at 
one time even if it’s a multi neighborhood design.  The development agreement was never 
recorded, and the owners of one the developments within the overall plan did not provide a 
joinder of other owner’s form that would be necessary to execute the agreement. Now that some 
of the tracts are seeking plan approvals and land disturbance permits, which staff cannot approve 
without the platted protection of these areas, the applicant is seeking to provide the necessary 
joinders for the individual developers so that the development agreement can be recorded.  
Planning Commission will hold the 1st required public hearing on the development agreement at 
their September 5 meeting, and the 2nd required public hearing will be held at the September 16 

council mtg. The applicant would like to receive 1st reading by title only at the next council 
meeting scheduled for September 3. 
  
Shep Guyton said that the downside of a development agreement is that there is no such thing as 
a binder agreement.  Guyton said that these are minor amendments and have to go through the 
whole process.  Guyton said that is what is being done with both of these is correcting.  Guyton 
said that the second one was his mistake as he did not make sure his language was the same in 
both the PD and the DA, so that is what is going on with Warden Station. 
 
Hucks said that in the Warden Station Development Agreement that one sentence, one section in 
the tree preservation where they had said that any tree of 6” in caliper must be shown on a tree 
survey, to be provided at the time of plan submittal and before land disturbance is approved.  Hucks 
said that language was never changed, and the reality is that any protected and landmark trees, per 
the city’s tree preservation ordinance will be provided on a tree survey at plan submittal and before 
any approvals.    
 
 

36



August 19, 2024 
 

Page 12 of 14 
 

 
Dog Tethering Ordinance 
 
Long showed photos of animals to help illustrate what he will be discussing. Long said that the 
City’s ordinance for ill treatment of animals is not comprehensive, has no definitions, does not 
mention tethering.  The minimum standard that the police adhere to now is that the animals have 
food, water, and shelter and if the animals have that the police feel like they have no enforcement.  
Long said that staff is looking to model Horry County’s Ordinance and also the City of Myrtle 
Beach.  Long explained further while saying that it is time to update the city’s ordinance.  Long 
would like to include the pet stores as well.   
 
Also discussed were the number of dogs, including the highest penalties and fines, strongest 
standards, and state law.   
 
Council directed staff to draft a dog tethering ordinance.  
 
Removal of a 4 way stop at Tiger Drive and Longwood Lane 
 
Long said that the police department received some data and complaints regarding the Longwood 
Lane and Tiger Drive area and needed some speed abatement in there.  When you turn onto Tiger 
Drive from Fourth Avenue, there is a long stretch with one cross street, and wanted to slow the 
traffic from the get-go and put a 4 way stop about 50 yards from Fourth Avenue.  The next one is 
about 150 yards, and Long thinks that one is handling the problem.  Long agrees that the 4-way 
stop should be removed, Tiger Drive would have the right of way, and the cross traffic on 
Longwood would have the stop signs. 
 
Council suggested that it be marked good.  Long said would try to put signage alerting that the 
signs are gone. 
 
Boat Slip Rental Fees at Transient Docks 
 
Smith said that calls have been received at the marina about boats staying longer than what is 
allowed in the ordinance, which is 7 days.  The last call wanted to stay for a month.  Smith talked 
about the last boat that stayed, saying he spent thousands of dollars and bought a house in Conway. 
Smith said that the boater talked about bringing more bigger boats into Conway via the “loop” 
which takes 7-8 years.  Smith would like to allow the boats that are up to 60 feet to stay up to a 
month for $500.  Smith said that the charge now is $1 per foot per day.  Smith also said that more 
transient docks may need to be added.  
 
Also discussed were possibly increasing the slip rental fees, marina slip fees and having dry boat 
storage in the future.  
 
Council recommended that staff proceed with the addition of the monthly fee amendment and look 
into increasing the charge per foot per day fee. 
 
Street Renaming Process and Fee Schedule Change 
 

37



August 19, 2024 
 

Page 13 of 14 
 

Hucks said that currently, the city has no defined process for renaming a street or even naming an 
unnamed street, except those that are being created with development of property. Staff has 
received a handful of requests over the last few months about renaming of a street, and one owner, 
located on McCray alley, is seeking to rename the alley to another name, mainly for public safety 
reasons.  Staff reached out to the county to inquire about their process, and they require a public 
hearing be held for proposed road name changes. Additionally, there is posting of the property, 
notification to affected property owners who may be addressed off the roadway, and then plats 
renaming the road and putting up a new street sign; all of which will incur costs.  
 
Hucks said that before staff went too far down the rabbit hole, we wanted to bring it to your 
attention and see if you would like staff to develop a process and if so, there would likely be an 
amendment to the fee schedule to include this expense and charged back to the owner.  
 
After much discussion, Council would like to include that 100% petition from everyone on the 
street involved to give notarized permission for the street to be renamed.   
 
Town Green Plan 
 
Emrick said that staff’s position regarding the splash pad is that if it was at the riverfront right 
now, it would be under water and would need to be replaced.  Helms said that her concern was 
that the Ike Long building is ugly, and she always wanted to see it torn down in hopes that City 
Hall would be located there one day.  Emrick said that the consultants that did the master plan and 
they said that part of the town green plan was to activate the space.  Emrick said that the Ike Long 
Building is short, so we need to create the illusion of height by taking vertical pipes to go up above 
the façade, come out at an angel and grow greenery up it so it creates an illusion of height, softens 
the building, and adds more shade to the area.  There will be planters in the back and the other side 
was hid with the ERF and bathrooms.    
 
There was some discussion about the plants around City Hall.   
 
White asked how the splash pad was diverted from Smith Jones to the Town Green.  Emrick said 
that it was not diverted, there was 2 splash pads but that the pool took all the money at Smith Jones.  
Emrick said that will be placed on the retreat agenda for next year.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Motion:  Goldfinch made a motion, seconded by White to enter into 
Executive Session for the following: (A) Consideration of Appointments to Boards, Commissions 
and Committees for the Board of Zoning Appeals [pursuant to SC Code §30-4-70(A) (1)]; and (B) 
Discussion on Contractual Negotiations Incident to the Potential Acquisition of Property near 
Crabtree Swamp [pursuant to SC Code §30-4-70 (A) (2)]. 
 
RECONVENE FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Motion:  Goldfinch made a motion, seconded 
by Blain to leave Executive Session.  Vote:  Unanimous. Motion carried. 

 
POSSIBLE ACTION ON MATTERS DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Motion: 
William made a motion, seconded by Blain to appoint Kevin M. Hagen and Andy Altman to the 
Board of Zoning Appeals.  Vote:  Unanimous. Motion carried. 
 

38



August 19, 2024 
 

Page 14 of 14 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  Motion: Jordan made a motion, seconded by White to adjourn the meeting.  
Vote:  Unanimous. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Minutes approved by City Council this                       day of  
                                     , 2024. 
 
__________________________ 
    Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 
 

39



DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 
ITEM: V.A. 

Presentation of Longevity Awards – August 2024 

• 5 Years:  Kimberly Staples, Finance
• 5 Years:  Richard Higgins, Fire
• 5 Years:  Joseph Thornberry, Recreation
• 5 Years:  Janic Hopkins, Recreation
• 10 Years:  Debbie Smith, Administration
• 20 Years:  Tasha Sherman, Administration
• 25 Years:  K Michelle Johnson, Police

40



DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 
ITEM: V.B.  

ISSUE: 
Discussion of proposed amendment(s) to Article 10 – Subdivision and Land Development, of the City of 
Conway Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), regarding revisions to the requirements for Parks and 
Open Space Dedication. 

BACKGROUND: 
Additional park and recreation areas and facilities will be needed to accommodate the city’s growing 
population, and at the 2023 City Council budget retreat, Council discussed several changes within the 
UDO, including the City’s parks and open space requirements, as a result of a park expansion plan, based 
on the National Recreation and Park Association (NRPA) guidelines for the quantities of park and 
recreation facilities related to population size. Staff was asked to research and come up with alternatives 
that would aid in expanding city park space, including through development of property that would 
require the dedication of open space. Two options were previously presented: 

1. In lieu of a developer providing onsite open space, they could instead provide adequate area
adjacent to the development that would be dedicated to the City once improvements were
installed, to include the possibility of offering additional (development) incentives to developers,
such as density bonuses, who opted to do so; and

2. Adding an additional percentage to the fee in lieu amount of providing onsite open space (as
required per development standards), based on the written appraisal of the property, up to 25%
more of the appraised value, which is typically required to be based on the value of the property
as if the development is complete and all infrastructure installed.

At the August Planning Commission meeting, the commission discussed the amendments proposed to 
the City’s Open Space requirements and held the required public hearing. Staff recommended that the 
amendment be deferred until the September meeting so that any changes discussed during the August 
meeting could be included in the amendment.  

A table of the proposed amendments are included in the packet, which includes the current requirement 
and the proposed requirement. Many of the revisions are housekeeping in nature. Some of the more 
notable revisions include the following: 

• Amendment on how the amount of required open space is calculated. Currently, the amount of
open space is calculated by the number of lots proposed, multiplied by 2.6 (avg. household size
per most current US Census), multiplied by 0.008 (avg. open space needed per person). The
amended open space ordinance would calculate open space by requiring 1,000 sq. ft. of open
space per lot or unit within a development, which results in a slightly higher amount of open
space being required.

41



• Amendments to the Suitability requirements for open space, which includes several criteria to 
the different types of open space provided (active, passive, and ancillary). The amendment breaks 
down each type of open space, with suitability requirements for each type.  

• Include a provision that would permit the developer to locate the open space offsite, with certain 
conditions, including that the location of the open space have access to external roadways and 
that it be accessible via pedestrian travel to the project that it would serve.  

• Amendments to the appraisal requirements, removing the different standards for Planned 
Developments, as well as the ability for a different method of appraisal to be provided other than 
from an SC licensed appraiser. Open space fee in lieu requests will continue to require review by 
Planning Commission and approval by City Council. 

 

One outstanding amendment yet to be determined is regarding the additional fee on top of the appraised 
value. There are two different ways it could be calculated: 25% additional added to the property value, 
as determined by the appraisal submitted by the applicant, or 25% additional added to the fee in lieu 
amount that is determined using the appraisal provided. The latter would likely result in a higher amount 
being required for the fee in lieu.  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
Planning Commission will make a recommendation on the proposed amendments at their September 5th 
meeting. Their recommendation will be forwarded to City Council with first reading, which could occur 
at the September 16th Council meeting.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
This is for discussion only. 

42



Open Space amendments (Article 10, Section 10.3.9) 

Section Current Proposed Changes 

10.3.9, A.  

Park & Open 

Space 

Current title: 

Park and Open Space 

Proposed: 

General Requirements for Parks and Open Space 

Dedication for Major Residential Developments 

 

10.3.9, A 

A. The applicant of any residential development or 

Planned Development District shall reserve land for 

open space designed to serve the residents of the 

development and residents of the immediate 

neighborhood of the development. This land shall be 

designated for ownership and maintenance by a 

property owner’s association.    

 

A.1. The applicant of any major residential development 

(fee-simple or in-common) shall allocate a sufficient amount 

of land for open space. Such areas shall be designed to 

foster good stewardship of our natural environment, provide 

recreational opportunities as well as community involvement 

for the residents of the proposed development and facilitate 

perpetual maintenance of required infrastructure and 

vegetative/non-vegetative screening. 

Language relocated to 

10.3.9, A.2. 

10.3.9, A.1 

A.1. Passive Use Parks. A park or area within a park is 

designated as passive use for activities that are 

engaged in by individuals or groups of nine (9) or 

fewer, not dependent on a delineated area designed 

for specific activities. Passive Parks have no designated 

sports fields. Team sports activities are limited to areas 

specifically designated, such as volleyball, basketball, 

and handball courts. 

See above 

Passive Use Parks 

description/features 

relocated to 10.3.9, C.1. 

10.3.9, A.2. 

A.2. Active Use Parks. Active parks or park areas are 

characterized by formal designated fields, outdoor 

courts (e.g. basketball, volleyball, and tennis), trails 

and/or outdoor amenities (e.g. skateboard park, 

frisbee golf). 

A.2. Ownership and maintenance of open space shall be 

designated to a homeowners or property owners association, 

horizontal property regime, or a property management group 

who shall perpetually maintain all open space, detention 

ponds, amenities, landscape areas or other commonly owned 

facilities. Proper notations shall be provided on the subdivision 

plat to indicate the entity to which such responsibility is given.  

 

Active Use Parks 

description/features 

relocated to 10.3.9, C.2. 

10.3.9, A NA 

Add: 

A.3. All required open space shall be preserved in perpetuity. 
Language relocated 

from previous location in 

ordinance, 10.3.9, B.3. 

43



Open Space amendments (Article 10, Section 10.3.9) 

Section Current Proposed Changes 

10.3.9, A NA 

Add: 

A.4. Major recreational facilities, such as those containing 

swimming pools or similar amenities, proposed for installation by 

the developer and shown on the approved preliminary plan 

set, shall be installed in the initial phase of the development, 

even if the development is divided into future phases. Refer to 

10.3.9, C.2. 

Relocated language from 

10.3.9, B.1, & B.6. 

Added language regarding 

multifamily/in-common 

developments. 

10.3.9, B.  

Current section title: 

B. Residential Subdivision Development and 

Planned Development District. 

Change section title to: 

B. Minimum Open Space Required 
Relocation of headings and 

requirements. 

10.3.9, B.1. 

B.1. Each development shall provide a minimum open 

space area to be calculated as the number of lots 

and/or units in the development multiplied by the 

average household size according to the latest US 

Census multiplied by .008, considered the amount of 

open space required by each individual (# of lots X 

average household size X .008 = required open space). 

This shall apply to major subdivisions (five or more lots). 

Developers shall provide all open space during the 

initial phase of development, even if the subdivision is 

divided into future phases. Open Space improvements 

shall be installed prior to the recording of a final plat.  

B.1. Major residential developments shall provide a 

minimum of 1,000 square feet of suitable open space area 

per lot and/or unit. 

Simplification of open 

space requirements 

(amount of).  
 

Relocated remaining 

language to 10.3.9, A.4 

10.3.9, B.2. 

B.2. If more passive open space is provided than 

active open space, then more total open space 

will be required.  

B.2. A minimum of twenty-five percent (25%) of the required 

open space shall be suitable for active areas and/or features 

as defined in Section 10.3.9, C. The remainder of the required 

open space shall be suitable passive areas as defined in 10.3.9, 

C. 

While ancillary areas are to be located within open space, 

such areas are not attributable to the required amount of open 

space, unless qualified as active or passive per Section 10.3.9, 

C. 

Clarified how much active 

area is required.  

10.3.9, B.3. – B.6.  
B.3 – B.6 deleted from this subsection and relocated to 

other areas of the ordinance.  
 

44



Open Space amendments (Article 10, Section 10.3.9) 

Section Current Proposed Changes 

10.3.9, C. 

C. Park and Open Space Suitability. The land 

proposed for dedication shall be suitable for the 

intended purpose as determined by City Council. 

Factors to be considered in evaluating suitability shall 

include but not be limited to the following (see below) 

Proposed: 

C. Park and Open Space Features and Suitability.  

Open space areas shall be comprised of three (3) main 

elements: Passive, Active, and Ancillary Areas. 

Separated out Passive, 

Active and Ancillary open 

space areas and provided 

suitability standards for each 

type. See below. 

10.3.9, C.1. – C.7. 

C.1. Unity. The preferred land should be one parcel 

with a width not significantly greater than the depth. 

The minimum size of any individual open space parcel 

shall be one (1) acre, which is sufficient size for a mini 

park according to the National Park and Recreation 

Association’s standards for parks. If the open space 

area is less than one (1) acre, then all required open 

space shall be provided in one (1) parcel with a width 

not significantly greater than the depth. 

C.2. Location. The preferred land should be centrally 

located relative to the development and 

neighborhood. 

C.3. Accessibility. The preferred land should have 

easy, direct access to the public street system and be 

accessible by both vehicular and pedestrian traffic.  

C.4. Usability. The preferred land should be usable for 

active recreation facilities and/or passive open space. 

C.5. Connectivity. Open space should be located, if 

possible, to take advantage of other existing or 

planned open space, trails, sidewalks, recreational 

amenities, or bike paths within the immediate area. 

C.6. Conformity. The open space should complement 

and meet the objectives of the City of Conway 

Greenway Plan and the Recreation & Open Space 

Element goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 

C.7. The Planning Commission may accept as suitable 

any land which meets an entirely different set of 

criteria when in its opinion, such land meets the 

purpose of this section in providing for the particular 

circumstances and needs of the development and 

neighborhood.  

C.1. Passive Open Space Areas. Passive areas within open 

space are characterized as unencumbered upland areas, 

dedicated to preserve the existing natural environment for the 

enjoyment of the residents of the community. Passive areas 

have no designated sports fields. Criteria for suitable passive 

areas are defined below: 

a. Unity. Passive areas are to be provided within a 

parcel of a minimum of one acre in size and designed 

to minimum the number of open space lots being 

split. 

b. Location. Passive areas may be centrally located or 

utilized to enlarge or provide special buffering along 

the perimeter of the project. 

c. Accessibility. Passive areas are to have a minimum of 

fifteen (15) feet of frontage along and direct access 

to the public street/sidewalk system within the project 

and shall be platted as open space on the final plat, 

or for multifamily or in-common developments, be 

clearly identified on the approved plan(s).  

d. Usability. Passive area are to be upland areas only, 

excluding all easement areas and required 

landscape buffers.  

e. Connectivity. Passive areas shall have internal 

pedestrian access and shall not be isolated by 

topographical constraints.  

f. Conformity. Passive areas should preserve existing 

onsite woodlands (interior to or along the perimeter of 

the project), safeguard protected and landmark trees 

in their natural state and create a spatial buffer 

around wetlands, ponds, and floodways that may still 

be enjoyed by the residents of the community. 
 

C.2. Active Open Space Area and Features.  

a. Active Open Space Areas. Active areas within open 

space are characterized as amenity sites and/or 

 

45



Open Space amendments (Article 10, Section 10.3.9) 

Section Current Proposed Changes 

features to provide members of the community with 

opportunities for recreational activity as well as social 

interaction. Such areas shall be appropriately sized 

amenities or common recreational facilities. Criteria 

for suitable active areas are defined below: 

i. Unity. Active areas are to be provided within a 

parcel a minimum of one acre in size and 

designed to minimize the number of open space 

lots being split. 

ii. Location. Amenity sites shall be centrally located 

within the project, whereas active features may 

be located throughout the development.  

iii. Accessibility. Amenity sites are to have a 

minimum of 75 feet of frontage along and direct 

access to the public street/sidewalk system within 

the project. The frontage shall be in a sufficient 

location to install a commercial drive-cut for 

vehicular access. Active features are to be 

accessible via pedestrian travel from the internal 

sidewalk system and/or a community facility (i.e. 

clubhouse, park, community parking, etc.) 

iv. Usability. Amenity sites are to be a minimum of 

10,000 square foot in size and meet the minimum 

lot depth requirement of the underlying zoning 

district. Active features are to be within upland 

area(s) only, free of obstructions and 

topographical constraints that would impede 

pedestrian access. 

v. Connectivity. Amenity sites shall have both 

pedestrian and vehicular access and shall not be 

isolated by topographical constraints. Active 

features shall provide adequate pedestrian 

access internal to the project. 

vi. Conformity. Amenity sites shall be incorporated 

into the Stormwater Management and Sediment 

Control Plans to be elevated to at least two (2) 

feet above the 100-year flood elevation and 

provide positive drainage away from the building 

site. 
 

46



Open Space amendments (Article 10, Section 10.3.9) 

Section Current Proposed Changes 

b. Active Open Space Features. Active features within 

open space are characterized as tangible facilities 

designed to facilitate community and recreational 

activities.  

Suitable active features may include, but not be 

limited to, the following: 

i. Amenity centers / clubhouses / gymnasium 

and/or fitness center. 

ii. Community pool & pool houses. 

iii. Playgrounds / tot lots 

iv. Athletic courts and/or designated sports fields 

v. Community gardens 

vi. Walking trails / bike paths / boardwalks 

vii. Elevated wetland trails / pedestrian and/or bike 

water body crossings 

viii. Existing homes, barns or buildings of historic value 

ix. Any additional features as deemed acceptable 

by Planning Commission. 

c. Excluding onsite parking areas, active features shall 

count atop the active area they occupy. 

d. Active open space features will need to be shown on 

the preliminary plans. For features that require vertical 

construction, a separate commercial plan review will 

be required and shall be installed or financially 

guaranteed prior to the recording of a final plat. A 

financial guarantee, as provided for in Section 10.6, 

may be approved by the TRC to allow such facilities 

to be constructed after the final plat for the first phase 

has been approved; however, such features shall be 

installed before no more than 50% of the approved 

lots and/or units have been issued building permits. 

For multifamily or in-common developments, such 

facilities/features shall be installed before no more 

than 50% of the units (per approved plans) have been 

issued building permits.  
 

C.3. Ancillary Areas. 

a. Suitable Ancillary Areas to be qualified as Passive 

area 

i. 25% of a water surface (measured at NWL) that 

47



Open Space amendments (Article 10, Section 10.3.9) 

Section Current Proposed Changes 

has a size appropriate fountain installed in the 

pond(s).  

b. Suitable Ancillary Areas to be qualified as active 

area: 

i. 25% of a water surface (measured at NWL) that 

has a stationary or floating dock suitable for 

boating and/or fishing within the pond.  

ii. 25% of a water surface (measured at NWL) that 

has a walking trail, bike paths and/or boardwalks 

alongside the pond. 

iii. 25% of a jurisdictional wetland area when 

elevated boardwalks for pedestrian and/or bike 

crossings are provided. 

10.3.9, D. 
Current: 

D. Fee In Lieu of Open Space Dedication 

Proposed: 

D. Open Space Mitigation 
 

10.3.9, D.1 

D.1. As part of the review of a subdivision or residential 

development plan, the Planning Commission may 

recommend to City Council that the applicant make a 

payment in lieu of all or part of the required open 

space dedication whereby the City may acquire or 

improve recreational park and open space area(s) to 

serve the development or developments in the City or 

upon finding that the recreational needs of the 

proposed development can be met by other park, 

greenway, or recreational facilities planned or 

constructed by the City or County. 

D.1. Off-site Mitigation. In instances where onsite open space 

is unavailable or the community would be better served with 

the provision/expansion of a public park and/or trail, the 

applicant / developer may volunteer to provide additional 

land and/or amenities to the City of Conway. In such instances, 

the following provisions shall apply: 

a. The offsite location and amenity features must be 

presented to Planning Commission for 

recommendation to and subsequently approved by 

City Council prior to plan approval.  

b. Offsite mitigation may be a collaboration with 

neighboring projects or may be provided via 

expansion of an existing public facility in close 

proximity to the project(s). 

c. The park must have access to external roadways yet 

also be accessible via pedestrian travel to the 

project(s) in which the mitigation is to serve. 

d. Commercial site plans and preliminary plats will need 

to be reviewed and approved by the Technical 

Review Committee (TRC). 

e. The underlying property is to be deeded fee-simple to 

the City of Conway prior to the release of any 

financial guarantees for onsite improvements.  

 

48



Open Space amendments (Article 10, Section 10.3.9) 

Section Current Proposed Changes 

10.3.9, D.2 

D.2. As part of an application for review of a 

subdivision or residential development plan, the 

subdivider or applicant may request to pay the fee in 

lieu of open space dedication. If the Planning 

Commission supports the request to pay the fee in lieu 

of open space dedication, that request to pay the fee 

in lieu of open space dedication shall be forwarded to 

City Council for review and a final decision. If the 

Planning Commission does not support the request to 

pay the fee in lieu of open space dedication, the 

subdivider or applicant shall include the actual area of 

required open space in the development. 

D.2. Fee-in-Lieu of Required Open Space.  

a. As part of the review of a major residential subdivision, 

the applicant or subdivider may request to pay the 

fee in lieu of open space dedication. The TRC or 

Planning Commission may recommend to City 

Council that the applicant make a payment in lieu of 

all or part of the required open space dedication, 

whereby the City may acquire or improve 

recreational park and open space area(s) to serve 

the development or developments in the City or upon 

finding that the recreational needs of the proposed 

development can be met by other park, greenway 

(including pedestrian / bicycle pathways and trails), 

or recreational facilities planned or constructed by 

the City or County. Planning Commission shall forward 

its recommendation regarding payment of the fee in 

lieu of open space dedication to City Council for 

review and final decision. 

b. When proposed developments require less than one 

(1) acre (43,560 sq. ft.) of open space, the applicant 

shall pay the fee-in-lieu of providing such open space 

onsite in accordance with this section, with the 

following exception: 

i. If the applicant/developer opts to install and 

dedicate the required amount of open space, 

such area(s) shall not be less than one acre in size 

and shall meet applicable criteria as cited in 

10.3.9, B and C. 

c. Appraisal requirements 

i. The applicant will need to provide a satisfactory 

current written appraisal of the market value of 

the land to be developed, as if the development 

has been completed according to plans 

submitted. Such evaluation is to be performed by 

a South Carolina licensed real estate appraiser. 

ii. The value determined will be divided by the total 

area in the development and multiplied by the 

open space area required to determine the 

necessary fee. The fee amount must be 

 

49



Open Space amendments (Article 10, Section 10.3.9) 

Section Current Proposed Changes 

presented to Planning Commission for 

recommendation to and subsequently approved 

by City Council prior to preliminary plan 

approval.  

iii. 25% fee added to any appraisal where fee in lieu 

is proposed or required? 

d. The fee in lieu of open space dedication shall be paid 

prior to recording of the final plat(s) for a subdivision 

or final plan for any in-common developments to 

which the fees relate. The fee in lieu of open space 

compensation for the entire development, regardless 

of the number of proposed phases, shall be made 

prior to the recording of lot(s) for the initial phase of 

development.  

10.3.9, D.3  This section deleted.  

10.3.9, E. 

E. Appraisal Requirements E. Project Data 

1. An open space matrix will need to be provided 

with the preliminary plans citing the following 

information for each individual proposed open 

space parcel: 

a. Total area; 

b. Wetlands, floodway & pond area(s); 

c. Areas encumbered by buffers & easements; 

d. Suitable passive area(s) & suitable passive 

area(s); 

e. Area of active features. 

Appraisal requirements 

incorporated into 

subsection D.2. 

10.3.9, F.2. 

F. Exemptions from Park & Open Space Dedication 
 

2. If a parent tract has undergone five (5) or more 

parcel splits, meeting the definition of a major 

subdivision, any additional splits from the tract are 

considered a major development and subject to the 

requirements of a major development, including open 

space dedication. A parent tract is defined as the 

original lot, parcel, or tract or land, as established in 

the Horry County Assessor’s records, from which the 

proposed lot(s) will be split from. For the purposes of 

determining minor or major development status, a 

parent tract is reviewed to determine the number of 

F. Exemptions from Park & Open Space Dedication 
 

2. . If a parent tract has undergone five (5) or more parcel 

splits, meeting the definition of a major subdivision, any 

additional splits from the tract are considered a major 

development and subject to the requirements of a major 

development, including open space dedication. A parent 

tract is defined as the original lot, parcel, or tract or land, as 

established in the Horry County Assessor’s records, from which 

the proposed lot(s) will be split from. For the purposes of 

determining minor or major development status, a parent tract 

is reviewed to determine the number of parcel splits or 

residential units within a 10-year period. The amount of open 

Added language to clarify 

that the number of “units” 

within the 10-year period 

could constitute a major 

development status, if 5 or 

more; not just the creation 

of 5 or more lots.  

50



Open Space amendments (Article 10, Section 10.3.9) 

Section Current Proposed Changes 

parcel splits within a 10-year period.  space will be based on this total number of lots and/or units.  

10.3.9, G. 

G. All major subdivisions and other developments with 

common areas shall form a homeowners or property 

owners association who shall perpetually maintain all 

open space, detention ponds, amenities, landscape 

areas, and other commonly owned facilities.  

G. Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and the City of 

Conway Pathways and Trails Plan. 

1. Comprehensive Plan. To ensure compliance with the 

Comprehensive Plan, all developments requiring the 

dedication and/or installation of open space shall 

comply with the concept of complete streets, in 

accordance with Section 7.1.2. 
 

2. City of Conway Pathways and Trails Plan. All major 

residential developments located within 500 feet of 

an existing or proposed pathway or trail system shall 

provide a connection to the pathway or trail system in 

accordance with the Pathways and Trails Plan, as 

currently adopted or as amended. 

Current language 

incorporated into 

subsection A. 

Proposed new language to 

be determined. 

 

51



Section 10.3.9 with amendments 

10.3.9 Park and Open Space Dedication  

A. General Requirements for Parks and Open Space Dedication for Major Residential Developments 

1. The applicant of any major residential development or Planned Development District (fee-simple or in-

common) shall reserve allocate a sufficient amount of land for open space. Such areas shall be 

designed to serve the residents of the foster good stewardship of our natural environment, provide 

recreational opportunities as well as community involvement for the residents of the proposed 

development and residents of the immediate neighborhood of the development and facilitate perpetual 

maintenance of required infrastructure and vegetative/non-vegetative screening. This land shall be 

designated for ownership and maintenance by a property owner’s association.    

1. Passive Use Parks. A park or area within a park is designated as passive use for activities that are engaged in by 

individuals or groups of nine (9) or fewer, not dependent on a delineated area designed for specific activities. 

Passive parks have no designated sports fields. Team sports activities are limited to areas specifically designated, 

such as volleyball, basketball and handball courts. (relocated to 10.3.9, C.1) 

2. Active Use Parks. Active parks or park areas are characterized by formal designated fields, outdoor courts (e.g. 

basketball, volleyball, and tennis), trails and/or outdoor amenities (e.g. skateboard park, frisbee golf). (relocated to 

10.3.9, C.2) 
 

2. Ownership and maintenance of open space shall be designated to a homeowners or property owner’s 

association, horizontal property regime, or a property management group who shall perpetually 

maintain all open space, detention ponds, amenities, landscape areas or other commonly owned 

facilities Proper notations shall be provided on the subdivision plat to indicate the entity to which such 

responsibility is given. 
 

3. All required open space shall be preserved as such in perpetuity.  
 

4. Major recreational facilities, such as those containing swimming pools or similar amenities, proposed for 

installation by the developer and shown on the approved preliminary plan set, shall be installed in the 

initial phase of the development, even if the development is divided into future phases. Open space 

improvements shall be installed or financially guaranteed prior to the recording of a final plat. A financial guarantee, 

as provided for in Section 10.6, may be approved by TRC to allow such facilities to be constructed after the final 

plat for the first phase has been approved; however, such facilities shall be installed no later than 50% of the 

approved lots and/or units have been issued building permits. For multi-family developments or in-common 

developments, such facilities shall be installed no later than 50% of the units have been issued building permits. Refer 

to 10.3.9, C.2. (some of this language moved to 10.3.9, C.2.d.) 

 

B. Residential Subdivision Development and Planned District Development  Minimum Open Space Required 

1. Each Major residential developments shall provide a minimum of 1,000 square feet of suitable open 

space area per lot and/or unit to be calculated as the number of lots and/or units in the development multiplied 

by the average household size according to the latest US Census multiplied by .008, considered the amount of open 

space required by each individual (# of lots X average household size X .008 = required open space). This shall apply 

to major subdivisions (five or more lots). Developers shall provide all open space during the initial phase of 

development, even if the subdivision development is divided into future phases. Open Space improvements shall 

be installed prior to the recording of a final plat. [ZA2020-09-21(A)] 
 

2. If more passive open space is provided than active open space, then more total open space will be required. A 

minimum of twenty-five percent (25%) of the required open space shall be suitable for active areas 

and/or features as defined in Section 10.3.9, C. The remainder of the required open space shall be 

suitable passive areas as defined in Section 10.3.9, C. 
 

While Ancillary areas are to be located within open space, such areas are not attributable to the 

required amount of open space, unless qualified as active or passive per Section 10.3.9, C. 
 

3. The open space shall be preserved as such in perpetuity. (relocated to 10.3.9, A.3) 

52



Section 10.3.9 with amendments 

4. If less than one (1) acre of open space is required for any major subdivision, the developer shall submit a fee in lieu 

of providing the open space as described in subsection D, herein. (similar language relocated to 10.3.9, D.2.b) 
 

5. Water surfaces can only be counted as 25% of required open space and may only be considered as open space 

if:  

a. A size appropriate fountain is installed in the pond or lake, maintained and operated at the expense of the 

developer and/or HOA; or 

b. The pond or lake is made an active amenity, by installing a dock or pier with suitability for fishing or boating. 

(Similar language relocated to 10.3.9, C.3.) 
 

6. Where major recreational facilities are to be installed by the developer, such as those containing community 

swimming pools or similar amenities, a letter of credit may be approved by City Council to allow the facility to be 

constructed after approval of the Final Plat, but no later than 50% of approved lots have been issued building 

permits. Should the 50% threshold be reached prior to the installation of the amenity facility, no further building 

permits shall be issued until the facility is constructed. (language relocated to 10.3.9, C.2.b.) 
 

C. Park and Open Space Features and Suitability. 

The land proposed for dedication shall be suitable for the intended purpose as determined by the City Council. Factors 

to be considered in evaluating suitability shall include but not be limited to the following: Open Space areas shall be 

comprised of three (3) main elements: Passive, Active, and Ancillary Areas. 
 

1. Passive Open Space Areas. Passive areas within open space are characterized as un-encumbered 

upland areas, dedicated to preserve the existing natural environment for the enjoyment of the 

residents of the community. Passive areas have no designated sports fields. Criteria for suitable passive 

areas are defined below: 

a. Unity: passive areas are to be provided within a parcel of a minimum one acre in size and designed 

to minimize the number of open space lots being split.  

b. Location: passive areas may be centrally located or utilized to enlarge or provide special buffering 

along the perimeter of the project. 

c. Accessibility: passive areas shall have a minimum of fifteen (15) feet of frontage along and direct 

access to the public street/sidewalk system within the project and shall be platted as open space 

on the final plat, or for multifamily or in-common developments, be clearly shown on the approved 

plan(s).  

d. Usability: passive areas are to be upland areas only, excluding all easement areas and required 

landscape buffers.  

e. Connectivity: passive areas shall have internal pedestrian access and shall not be isolated by 

topographical constraints. 

f. Conformity: preferably, Passive areas should preserve existing on-site woodlands (interior to or along 

the perimeter of the project), safeguard protected and landmark trees in their natural state and 

create a spatial buffer around wetlands, ponds and floodways that may still be enjoyed by the 

residents of the community. 
  

2. Active Open Space Areas and Features 

a. Active Open Space Areas. Active areas within open space are characterized as amenity sites 

and/or features to provide members of the community with opportunities for recreational activity 

as well as social interaction. Such areas shall be appropriately sized for amenities or common 

recreational facilities. Criteria for suitable active areas are defined below: 

i. Unity: active areas are to be provided within a parcel a minimum of one acre in size and 

designed to minimize the number of open space lots being split. 

ii. Location: amenity sites shall be centrally located within the project. Whereas active 

features may be located throughout the development. 

53



Section 10.3.9 with amendments 

iii. Accessibility: amenity sites are to have a minimum of seventy-five (75) feet of frontage 

along and direct access to the public street/sidewalk system within the project. The 

frontage shall be in a sufficient location to install a commercial drive-cut for vehicular 

access. Active features are to be accessible via pedestrian travel from the internal 

sidewalk system and/or a community facility (i.e. clubhouse, park, community parking, 

etc..).  

iv. Usability: Amenity sites are to be a minimum of ten thousand (10,000) square foot in size 

and meet the minimum lot depth requirement of the underlying zoning district. Active 

features are to be within upland area(s) only, free of obstructions and topographical 

constraints that would impede pedestrian access.   

v. Connectivity: Amenity Sites areas shall have both pedestrian and vehicular access and 

shall not be isolated by topographical constraints. Active features shall provide adequate 

pedestrian access internal to the project. 

vi. Conformity: Amenity Sites shall be incorporated into the Stormwater Management and 

Sediment Control plans to be elevated to at least two (2) feet above the one hundred 

(100) year flood elevation and provide positive drainage away from the building site. 
 

b. Active Open Space Features. Active Features within Open Space are characterized as tangible 

facilities designed to facilitate community and recreational activities.  
 

Suitable active features may include, but not be limited to items listed below:  

i. amenity centers / clubhouses / gymnasium and/or fitness centers,  

ii. community pools & pool houses,  

iii. playgrounds / tot lots, 

iv. athletic courts and/or designated sport fields, 

v. community gardens, 

vi. walking trails / bike paths / boardwalks, 

vii. elevated wetland trails / pedestrian and/or bike water body crossings, 

viii. existing homes, barns or buildings of historic value, 

ix. any additional features as deemed acceptable by Planning Commission. 
 

c. Excluding onsite parking areas, active features shall count atop the active area they occupy. 
 

d. Such Active open space features will need to be shown on the preliminary plans. and For features 

that require vertical construction, a separate commercial plan review will need to be done required 

and the cost of such facilities will need to be included in the cost estimate / letter of credit for the initial phase 

shall be installed or financially guaranteed prior to the recording of a final plat. A financial 

guarantee, as provided for in Section 10.6, may be approved by the TRC to allow such facilities to 

be constructed after the final plat for the first phase has been approved; however, Moreover, 

installation of such features will shall be required installed before building permits may be issued to before 

no more than 50% of the approved lots and/or units within that phase have been issued building 

permits. For multifamily or in-common developments, such facilities/features shall be installed 

before no more than 50% of the units (per approved plans) have been issued building permits. (this 

language moved from 10.3.9, C.2.b.) 
 

3. Ancillary Areas. Ancillary Areas within open space are characterized by essential features, contributory 

to development (e.g. retention/detention basins, landscape buffers and areas already encumbered 

by Public rights-of-way, etc.…), as well as areas containing existing topographical characteristics 

constraining development (e.g. wetlands, existing water bodies and floodways).  

a. Suitable Ancillary Areas to be qualified as Passive area 

54



Section 10.3.9 with amendments 

i. 25% of a water surface (measured at NWL) that has a size appropriate fountain installed in 

the pond. 

b. Suitable Ancillary Areas to be qualified as Active area 

i. 25% of a water surface (measured at NWL) that has a stationary or floating dock suitable 

for boating and/or fishing within the pond. 

ii. 25% of a water surface (measured at NWL) that has a walking trail, bike paths and/or 

boardwalks alongside the pond. 

iii. 25% of a jurisdictional wetland area when elevated boardwalks for pedestrian and/or bike 

crossings are provided. 

 

D. Fee in Lieu of Open Space Dedication  Open Space Mitigation 

1. As part of the review of a subdivision or residential development plan, the Planning Commission may recommend 

to City Council that the applicant make a payment in lieu of all or part of the required open space dedication 

whereby the City may acquire or improve recreational park and open space area(s) to serve the development or 

developments in the City or upon finding that the recreational needs of the proposed development can be met by 

other park, greenway, or recreational facilities planned or constructed by the City or County.   

Off-site Mitigation. In instances where on-site open space is unavailable or the community would be 

better served with the provision/expansion of a public park and/or trail, the applicant of the 

development may volunteer to provide additional land and/or amenities to the City of Conway. In 

such instances, the following provisions shall apply: 

a. The off-site location and amenity features must be presented to Planning Commission for 

recommendation to and subsequently approved by City Council prior to preliminary plan 

approval. 

b. Off-site mitigation may be a collaboration with neighboring projects or may be provided via 

expansion of an existing public facility in close proximity to the project(s).  

c. The park must have access to external roadways yet also be accessible via pedestrian travel to 

the project(s) in which the mitigation is to serve. 

d. Commercial Site Plans and preliminary plats will need to be reviewed and approved by the 

Technical Review Committee.  

e. The underlying property is to be deeded fee-simple to the City of Conway prior to the release of 

any financial guarantees for on-site improvements.  
 

2. As part of an application for review of a subdivision or residential development plan, the subdivider or applicant 

may request to pay the fee in lieu of open space dedication. If the Planning Commission supports the request to 

pay the fee in lieu of open space dedication, that request to pay the fee in lieu of open space dedication shall be 

forwarded to City Council for review and a final decision. If the Planning Commission does not support the request 

to pay the fee in lieu of open space dedication, the subdivider or applicant shall include the actual area of required 

open space in the development.   (relocated to 10.3.9, D.2.a.) 

Fee-in-lieu of Required Open Space.  

a. As part of the review of a major residential subdivision or residential development plan, the applicant 

or subdivider may request to pay the fee in lieu of open space dedication. The TRC or If the Planning 

Commission may recommend to City Council that the applicant make a payment in lieu of all or 

part of the required open space dedication, whereby the City may acquire or improve 

recreational park and open space area(s) to serve the development or developments in the City 

or upon finding that the recreational needs of the proposed development can be met by other 

park, greenway (including pedestrian / bicycle pathways & trails), or recreational facilities planned 

or constructed by the City or County. Planning Commission shall forward its recommendation 

regarding payment of the fee in lieu of open space dedication to City Council for review and a 

final decision. 

55

javascript:XdkPopup('DEVELOPMENT_2.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('Park.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('GREENWAY_2.htm')


Section 10.3.9 with amendments 

b. When proposed developments require less than one-acre (43,560-sq.ft) of open space, the 

applicant may opt to / shall pay a fee in lieu of providing such open space on-site in accordance 

with this section, with the following exception:  

i. If the applicant/developer opts to install and dedicate open space, such area(s) shall not 

be less than once acre in size and meet applicable criteria as cited in Section 10.3.9, B 

and C. 

c. Appraisal Requirements.  

i. The applicant will need to provide a satisfactory current written appraisal of the market 

value of the land to be developed, as if the development has been completed according 

to the plans submitted. Such evaluation is to be performed by a South Carolina licensed 

real estate appraiser,  

ii. The value determined will be divided by the total area in the development and multiplied 

by the open space area required to determine the necessary fee. The fee amount must 

be presented to Planning Commission for recommendation to and subsequently 

approved by City Council prior to preliminary plan approval. 

iii. HELD SPACE FOR POSSIBLE INCLUSION OF 25% FEE TO APPRAISALS RECEIVED FOR 

PROPOSED OR REQUIRED FEE IN LIEU OF OPEN SPACE DEDICATION 

d. The fee in lieu of open space dedication shall be paid prior to recording of the final plat(s) for a 

subdivision or final plan approval for any in-common developments to which the fees relate. The 

fee in lieu of open space compensation for the entire development, regardless of the number of 

proposed phases, shall be made prior to the recording of lot(s) for the first initial phase of 

development.  
 

3. As part of the review of a request to rezone to a Planned Development district, the Planning Commission may 

recommend to City Council that the applicant make a payment in lieu of all or part of the required open space 

dedication whereby the City may acquire or improve recreational park and open space area(s) to serve the 

development or developments in the City or upon finding that the recreational needs of the proposed development 

can be met by other park, greenway, or recreational facilities planned or constructed by the City or County. The 

subdivider or applicant may request to pay the fee in lieu of open space dedication. The Planning Commission shall 

forward its recommendation regarding payment of the fee in lieu of open space to City Council for review and a 

final decision. City Council reserves the right to require a minimum amount of open space for any planned district 

that meets the criteria outlined in Section 10.3.9.C. (removed because PD districts require the same amount of open 

space as standard major subdivisions since a previous amendment was adopted for residential design standards) 
 

E. Appraisal Requirements (language amended & moved to Section 10.3.9, D – above) Project Data 

1. Any subdivider or applicant wishing to make a payment in lieu of open space dedication shall attach to the 

application for preliminary plat approval, preliminary plan approval, or the rezoning application for a planned 

development district, a letter requesting the payment of fees in lieu of open space dedication. 
 

2. Where payment of the fee in lieu of dedication of open space is proposed as permitted by this ordinance, the 

subdivider or applicant shall provide to the City, at the subdivider or applicant’s expense, a satisfactory current 

written appraisal of the market value of the land to be annexed, zoned, platted, or developed, as if the subdivision, 

residential development, rezoning or Planned Development district has been completed according to the plans 

submitted. The value determined will be divided by the total area in the subdivision or development and multiplied 

by the open space area required to determine the necessary fee. 
 

3. Each appraisal shall be performed by a South Carolina licensed real estate appraiser. 
 

4. The Planning Commission may, at its discretion, accept other documentation evidencing the market value of the 

proposed subdivision or development which in the opinion of the Planning Commission, reasonably estimates the 

land values as outlined above. 
 

56

javascript:XdkPopup('DEVELOPMENT_2.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('Park.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('GREENWAY_2.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('SUBDIVIDER_2.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('DEVELOPER_2.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('PLANNEDDEVELOPMENT_2.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('SUBDIVIDER_2.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('DEVELOPER_2.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('SUBDIVIDER_2.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('DEVELOPERS_2.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('MARKETVALUE_2.htm')


Section 10.3.9 with amendments 

5. Even if not required by the Planning Commission, City Council may require an appraisal performed by a South 

Carolina licensed real estate appraiser in order to accept a fee in lieu of open space. City Council also reserves the 

right to, at the City’s expense, obtain an additional appraisal of the property to assist in determining the market 

value of the proposed subdivision or development.  
 

6. The appraisals and/or documentation of the land’s market value, along with other evidence that, in City Council’s 

opinion, aids in the determination of market value, may be used in the determination of the amount of payment in 

lieu of open space dedication permitted by this section.  
 

7. The fee in lieu of open space dedication shall be paid prior to recording any lot(s) in the subdivision, granting any 

permits for development or any permits for a Planned Development district to which the fees relate. The fee in lieu 

of open space compensation for the entire development, regardless of the number of proposed phases, shall be 

made prior to the recording of lots or the issuance of permits for first phase of development.  
 

1. An Open Space Matrix will need to be provided with the preliminary plans citing the following 

information for each individual proposed open space parcel:  

a. total area,  

b. wetlands, floodway & pond area(s);  

c. areas encumbered by buffers & easements,  

d. suitable passive area(s) and suitable active area(s);  

e. area of active features. 
 

F. Exemptions from Park and Open Space Dedication 
 

1. Minor subdivisions or minor developments as defined in this Section are exempt from the open space 

requirements.  
 

2. If a parent tract has undergone five (5) or more parcel splits, meeting the definition of a major 

subdivision, any additional splits from the tract are considered major development and subject to the 

requirements of a major development, including open space dedication. A parent tract is defined as 

the original lot, parcel, or tract of land, as established in the Horry County Assessor’s records, from which 

the proposed subdivided lot(s) will be split from. For the purposes of determining minor or major 

development status, a parent tract is reviewed to determine the total number of parcel splits or 

residential units within a 10-year period. The amount of open space will be based on this total number 

of lots and/or units. [Amended 4/4/16] 
 

3. Once a subdivision or developments actions classifies a parcel status as a major 

subdivision/development, any subsequent development is considered an expansion of that major 

subdivision/development. (Amended 7/15/24) 
 

G. All major subdivisions and other developments with common areas shall form a Homeowners or Property Owners 

Association who shall perpetually maintain all open space, detention ponds, amenities, landscape areas and other 

commonly owned facilities.   [ZA2020-09-21 (B)] (relocated under 10.3.9, A) 
 

G. Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and the City of Conway Pathways and Trails Plan. 
 

1. Comprehensive Plan 

To ensure compliance with the Comprehensive Plan, all developments requiring the dedication and/or 

installation of open space shall comply with the concept of complete streets, in accordance with 

Section 7.1.2. 
 

2. City of Conway Pathways and Trails Plan 

All major residential developments located within 500 feet of an existing or proposed pathway or trail 

system shall provide a connection to the pathway or trail system in accordance with the Pathways and 

Trails Plan, as currently adopted or as amended.  

57

javascript:XdkPopup('MARKETVALUE_2.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('LOT_2.htm')
javascript:XdkPopup('SUBDIVISION_2.htm')


DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 
ITEM: V.C.  

ISSUE: 
Discussion of a request to rezone approximately 0.33 (total) acres of property located at 1400, 1402, and 
1404 Laurel Street (PIN 338-11-02-0022; -0023; -0024) from the City of Conway Low/Medium-Density 
Residential (R-1) district to the City of Conway Professional (P) district.  

BACKGROUND: 
The applicant is seeking to rezone the aforementioned properties in order to expand the parking area of 
his establishment, an eye surgery center with frontage on Main Street, which directly abuts these parcels. 
All of the properties currently contain single-family residences. However, the applicant is proposing to 
demo portions of the structures that are contained on the parcels, and then subdivide a portion of them 
from the current property and combine with the property located at 1409 Main Street so that additional 
parking can be installed to accommodate his patients. The acreage contained within the request is a 
portion of each of the PIN numbers listed in the request. 

A site plan and a survey showing the portions to be combined with PIN 338-11-02-0040 (1409 Main 
Street – Conway Ophthalmology Associates / Surgery Center of Conway).  

Surrounding uses/Zoning Districts: 
Properties on each side of the parcels as well as directly across from the parcels contain residential 
structures and uses; all zoned R-1 and identified as low/medium-density residential on the Future Land 
Use Map. Behind these parcels are professional/medical offices, on properties zoned Professional (P).  

CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The properties are identified as Low/Medium-Density Residential (R-1) on the Future Land Use Map. 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Planning Commission is scheduled to consider the request and hold a public hearing at their September 
5th meeting. Staff will forward their recommendation with First Reading of the request. 

Per Section 6.1.4 – Minimum Area of Zoning District, “no tracts of land shall hereafter be rezoned for a 
zoning classification different from that of the surrounding properties unless such tract(s) is a minimum 
of 3 acres in area.” Staff will discuss with Planning Commission whether a future land use map 
amendment is necessary, as the property, while the requested zoning for a portion of these properties is 
different than what is shown on the future land use map, it is consistent with the zoning some of the 
surrounding properties, and if approved, the portions being rezoned will be added to property already 
zoned Professional.   

ATTACHMENTS: 
Application; GIS Maps; Site Plan; Survey; Opposition letters received to date 

58



LAUREL ST

FIFTEENTH AVE
MAIN ST

FOURTEENTH AVE

W
EST ALLEY

Date: 7/22/2024  Time: 9:19:23 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\REZONINGS\!2024\Vaught Eye - Laurel St & 15 Ave\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR VAUGHT EYE.mxd

3 PARCELS LOCATED AT
1400, 1402, 1404 LAUREL ST

(P24-0183)³
Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #:338-11-02-0023

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 338-11-02-0022

PIN #:338-11-02-0024

59



ELM ST

MAIN ST
OAK ST

LAUREL ST

PINE ST

SIXTEENTH AVE

COLLINS ST

FIFTEENTH AVE

TWELFTH AVE

PA
R

K 
VI

EW
 R

D

NINTH AVE

MCKEITHAN ST

ELEVENTH AVE

W
EST ALLEY

FIFTEENTH CT

COLLINS PARK STBARKER ST

B
 S

T

A ST

TENTH AVE

FOURTEENTH AVE

THIRTEENTH AVE

PINEWOOD CIR

A
M

B
R

O
SE

 A
VE

SEVENTEENTH AVE

BURROUGHS STFO
RE

ST
 V

IE
W

 R
D

CANAL TER

EIGHTEENTH AVE

ADELINE CT

M
AYFAIR TER

STILLEY CIR

EIGHTEENTH AVE

FOURTEENTH AVE

TENTH AVE

W
EST ALLEY

TH
IR

TE
EN

TH
 A

VE

THIRTEENTH AVE

COLLINS ST

SEVENTEENTH AVE

SE
VE

NTE
EN

TH
 A

VE

Date: 7/22/2024  Time: 9:17:59 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\REZONINGS\!2024\Vaught Eye - Laurel St & 15 Ave\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR VAUGHT EYE.mxd

3 PARCELS LOCATED AT
1400, 1402, 1404 LAUREL ST

(P24-0183)³
Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #:338-11-02-0023

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 338-11-02-0022

PIN #:338-11-02-0024

60



ELM ST

MAIN ST
OAK ST

LAUREL ST

PINE ST

SIXTEENTH AVE

COLLINS ST

FIFTEENTH AVE

TWELFTH AVE

PA
R

K 
VI

EW
 R

D

NINTH AVE

MCKEITHAN ST

ELEVENTH AVE

W
EST ALLEY

FIFTEENTH CT

COLLINS PARK STBARKER ST

B
 S

T

A ST

TENTH AVE

FOURTEENTH AVE

THIRTEENTH AVE

PINEWOOD CIR

A
M

B
R

O
SE

 A
VE

SEVENTEENTH AVE

BURROUGHS STFO
RE

ST
 V

IE
W

 R
D

CANAL TER

EIGHTEENTH AVE

ADELINE CT

M
AYFAIR TER

STILLEY CIR

EIGHTEENTH AVE

FOURTEENTH AVE

TENTH AVE

W
EST ALLEY

TH
IR

TE
EN

TH
 A

VE

THIRTEENTH AVE

COLLINS ST

SEVENTEENTH AVE

SE
VE

NTE
EN

TH
 A

VE

Date: 7/22/2024  Time: 9:12:16 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\REZONINGS\!2024\Vaught Eye - Laurel St & 15 Ave\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR VAUGHT EYE.mxd

3 PARCELS LOCATED AT
1400, 1402, 1404 LAUREL ST

(P24-0183)³
Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #:338-11-02-0023

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 338-11-02-0022

PIN #:338-11-02-0024

61



ELM ST

MAIN ST
OAK ST

LAUREL ST

PINE ST

SIXTEENTH AVE

COLLINS ST

FIFTEENTH AVE

TWELFTH AVE

PA
R

K 
VI

EW
 R

D

NINTH AVE

MCKEITHAN ST

ELEVENTH AVE

W
EST ALLEY

FIFTEENTH CT

COLLINS PARK STBARKER ST

B
 S

T

A ST

TENTH AVE

FOURTEENTH AVE

THIRTEENTH AVE

PINEWOOD CIR

A
M

B
R

O
SE

 A
VE

SEVENTEENTH AVE

BURROUGHS STFO
RE

ST
 V

IE
W

 R
D

CANAL TER

EIGHTEENTH AVE

ADELINE CT

M
AYFAIR TER

STILLEY CIR

EIGHTEENTH AVE

FOURTEENTH AVE

TENTH AVE

W
EST ALLEY

TH
IR

TE
EN

TH
 A

VE

THIRTEENTH AVE

COLLINS ST

SEVENTEENTH AVE

SE
VE

NTE
EN

TH
 A

VE

Date: 7/22/2024  Time: 9:13:14 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\REZONINGS\!2024\Vaught Eye - Laurel St & 15 Ave\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR VAUGHT EYE.mxd

3 PARCELS LOCATED AT
1400, 1402, 1404 LAUREL ST

(P24-0183)³
Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #:338-11-02-0023

PIN #: 338-11-02-0022

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

PIN #:338-11-02-0024

62



ELM ST

MAIN ST
OAK ST

LAUREL ST

PINE ST

SIXTEENTH AVE

COLLINS ST

FIFTEENTH AVE

TWELFTH AVE

PA
R

K 
VI

EW
 R

D

NINTH AVE

MCKEITHAN ST

ELEVENTH AVE

W
EST ALLEY

FIFTEENTH CT

COLLINS PARK STBARKER ST

B
 S

T

A ST

TENTH AVE

FOURTEENTH AVE

THIRTEENTH AVE

PINEWOOD CIR

A
M

B
R

O
SE

 A
VE

SEVENTEENTH AVE

BURROUGHS STFO
RE

ST
 V

IE
W

 R
D

CANAL TER

EIGHTEENTH AVE

ADELINE CT

M
AYFAIR TER

STILLEY CIR

EIGHTEENTH AVE

FOURTEENTH AVE

TENTH AVE

W
EST ALLEY

TH
IR

TE
EN

TH
 A

VE

THIRTEENTH AVE

COLLINS ST

SEVENTEENTH AVE

SE
VE

NTE
EN

TH
 A

VE

Date: 7/22/2024  Time: 9:17:04 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\REZONINGS\!2024\Vaught Eye - Laurel St & 15 Ave\GIS\FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR VAUGHT EYE.mxd

3 PARCELS LOCATED AT
1400, 1402, 1404 LAUREL ST

(P24-0183)³
Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #:338-11-02-0023

PIN #: 338-11-02-0022

REVISED 2019 FLOOD ZONES
0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD

A

AE

VE

PARCELS

PIN #:338-11-02-0024

63



From: Candace Klixbull
To: Planning
Subject: Planning Meeting - 9/5/2024
Date: Wednesday, August 14, 2024 5:57:09 AM

CAUTION-External Email: This email originated from outside of the City of Conway. Do not click on links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello,
I wish to attend the meeting on September 5, 2024, to formally state my objection
to the proposed rezoning of 1400 Laurel Street, 1402 Laurel Street, and 1404 Laurel
Street.  
I would like for my two boys, ages 9 and 11, to attend as well.  This will be a
valuable experience for them to see and understand this process. 

Thank you,
Candace Klixbull
1401 Laurel Street

Gabriel Klixbull (11)
Lucas Klixbull (9)

64

mailto:cklixbull@gmail.com
mailto:Planning@conwaysc.gov


65



66



67



From: Joseph Chianese
To: Planning
Subject: Laurel St
Date: Thursday, August 22, 2024 12:14:31 PM

CAUTION-External Email: This email originated from outside of the City of Conway. Do not click on links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Please add me to your list of people that have objections to the rezoning of Laural St.

Thank you
Joseph J. Chianese

68

mailto:jrc41463@gmail.com
mailto:Planning@conwaysc.gov


P.O. BOX 2666
PAWLEYS ISLAND, SC 29585

PHONE: 843.237.1001

ENGINEERING
& SURVEYING

69



123'

15
0'

75
'

75
'

114'

101'

TWO WAY

O
N

E 
W

AY

TW
O

 W
AY

O
N

E 
W

AY
O

N
E 

W
AY

14th AVENUE

15th AVENUE

M
AI

N
 S

TR
EE

T

LA
U

R
EL

 S
TR

EE
T 14 SPACES

8 SPACES

3 
SP

AC
ES

NOTE:
EXISTING SITE IS NOT IN
CONFORMANCE WITH
SIDE SETBACKS

10' BUFFER

PROPOSED
 PROPERTY LINE

LOT #1
7,579 SF

LOT #2
8,498 SF

LOT #3
18,253 SF

18,480 SF
(3 STORY)

EXISTING SPACES
TO REMAIN: 13

EXISTING SPACES
TO REMAIN: 22

 PROPERTY LINE TO BE
ABANDONED

EXISTING DRIVEWAY CURB
CUT TO REMAIN

SIDEWALK TO BE EXTENDED

SIDEWALK TO BE EXTENDED

V
A

U
G

H
T

 E
Y

E
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

SHEET

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R

PROJ. NO.
DATE:

N
O

.
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
BY

D
AT

E

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
G

3 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

, L
LC

.  
AN

Y 
U

SE
 O

F 
TH

IS
 P

LA
N

  W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

AR
T 

IN
 A

N
Y 

FO
R

M
AT

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

EX
PR

ES
SE

D
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 C
O

N
SE

N
T,

 O
R

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

SI
G

N
AT

U
R

E 
AN

D
 S

EA
L,

 A
R

E 
IN

VA
LI

D
.

c

APPROVED:
DRAWN:
DESIGNED:

06-18-2024

S:
\2

40
42

M
B 

- V
au

gh
t E

ye
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s 
(V

P 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 o

f C
on

w
ay

, L
LC

)\D
oc

s\
G

3 
Pl

an
ni

ng
\d

w
gs

\S
ite

 P
la

n\
24

04
2 

Ba
se

.d
w

g
6/

18
/2

02
4 

12
:0

0:
45

 P
M

P.
O

. B
O

X 
26

66
PA

W
LE

YS
 IS

LA
N

D
, S

C
 2

95
85

w
w

w
.G

3E
ng

in
ee

rin
g.

or
g

PH
O

N
E:

 8
43

.2
37

.1
00

1

& 
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

NG3

ANI

LORACHTUOS

C
ER

T
I F I CATE OF AUTHOR I Z

AT
IO

N

ENGINEERING
& SURVEYING

No. 4357

. . . . . . . .

. .
. .

. .
..

..
..

..
....................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

LLC

H
O

R
R

Y 
C

O
U

N
TY

, C
O

N
W

AY
, S

O
U

TH
 C

AR
O

LI
N

A 

VP
 IN

VE
ST

M
EN

TS
 O

F 
C

O
N

W
AY

, L
LC

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

AL
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

KLW
KLW
WAIT FOR APPROVAL
24042

L1.0

100

SCALE: 1" = 20'

4020

SITE DATA

MUNICIPALITY CITY OF CONWAY, SC

PIN(S) 338-11-02-0040, -0022,-0023,-0024

TOTAL AC 1.97 AC

PROPERTY OWNER VP INVESTMENTS OF CONWAY
LLC

PROPERTY OWNER ADDRESS 1406 MAIN STREET  CONWAY, SC

EXISTING ZONING P, R1

PROPOSED ZONING P (PROFESSIONAL)

AREA TO BE REZONED 1.12 AC (48,640.62 SF)

SETBACKS F = 20'   R= 15'  S = 15'

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT 40'-0"

GROSS DENSITY TOTAL UNITS/TOTAL AC

NET DENSITY TOTAL UNITS/BUILDABLE AC

PROPOSED PARKING 25 SPACES

EXISTING PARKING TO REMAIN 35 SPACES

70



71



Zoning Map Amendment 

Application 

Staff Use Only 

Received: __ _ 

Staff: ___ _ 

Incomplete applications will not be accepted. 

City of Conway Planning Department Phone: (843) 488-9888 
206 Laurel Street, 29526 Conway, South Carolina 

Notice 

FAX: (843) 488-9890 
www.cityofconway.com 

All zoning map amendments shall follow the procedures set forth in Section 13.1.7 of the City of Conway 
Unified Development Ordinance. Amendments to the Official Zoning Map shall be initiated by members of 
City Council, the Planning Commission, the Planning Director, or owner(s) of the subject property. In order 
to partially defray the administrative cost of zoning map amendments, the applicant shall pay a filing fee 
to the City of Conway in the amount of $250.00 at the time this application is submitted. Planned 
Development rezonings are $2,500.00 and Planned Development Amendments are $500.00, and due at 
the time of submission. R-1 rezoning requests will not be charged a fee. A plat of the property to be 
rezoned may be required with this application. 

PHYSICAL ADDRESS OF PROPERTY: 
1400• 1402 & 1404 Laurel 8treet 

FEE PAID I✓ IYES DNo

AREA OF SUBJECT PROPERTY (ACREAGE): See Details Below T MS#: See Details Below

CURRENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION:_R_1 __________________ _

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2035 FUTURE LAND USE Low Density Residential

REQUESTED ZONING CLASSIFICATION: _P __________________ _ 

NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER(S): 

VP Investments of Conway, LLC PHONE# 
843-997-4142

---------------------------

___________________________ PHONE# ____ _ 

MAILING ADDRESS OF PROPERTY OWNER(S): 

1406 Main Street 

Conway, SC 

************************************************************************************************************** 

I (we) the owner(s) do hereby certify that all information presented in this Zoning 
Map Amendment Application is correct and there are no covenants or deed restrictions in 
place that would prohibit this request. 

PERTY OWNER'S SIGNATUR DATE 

�-
1--r r '" 

2... Y 

PROPERTY OWNER'S SIGNATURE(S) DATE 

THE APPLICANT OR A REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT AT THE MEETING. 

DETAILS OF 1400 Laurel Street

REZONING 
PIN: 338-11-02-0022 

..__ ____ ____. Area Acreage: 0.14 ac 

1402 Laurel Street 

PIN: 338-11-02-0023 

Area Acreage: 0.08 ac 

1404 Laurel Street 

PIN: 338-11-02-0024 

Area Acreage: 0.11 ac 

Requesting a Future Land 
Use Amendment

72



DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2024  
ITEM: V.D.  

ISSUE: 
Discussion of a proposed annexation of approximately 3.02 acres of property located at 4908 Hwy 501, 
(PIN 399-01-04-0010), and rezone from the Horry County Limited Industrial (LI) to the City of Conway 
Highway Commercial (HC) zoning district.  

BACKGROUND: 
This property has a restrictive covenant, signed in 2008, that was completed (and recorded) by the 
property owner in order to receive city water and/or sewer services. By signing the restrictive covenants, 
the property owner agreed that once the property became contiguous to the City limits, they or any future 
owners of the subject property would agree to petition for annexation into the City limits (per Section 5-
3-150 (3) of the Code of Laws for the State of SC). The subject property became contiguous to the City 
limits (across Gardner Lacy Road) earlier this year, and staff notified the property owner in June that 
annexation is now required. On August 3rd, 2024, the required signed annexation / rezoning applications 
were submitted. The property is currently zoned Horry County Limited Industrial (LI) and is currently 
the location of Lynn Ladder Company.  

Per Section 3.2.10 of the UDO, the intent of the Highway Commercial (HC) district is to provide 
compatible locations to serve the automobile-oriented commercial activities in harmony with major 
highway developments, reduce traffic congestions and to enhance the aesthetic atmosphere of the City.  

Surrounding uses/Zoning Districts: 
The property abuts parcels zoned City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC), which is vacant land and 
Myrtle Beach International Golf Course entrance signage.  

CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan also identifies the entire parcel as Highway 
Commercial (HC).  

PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Planning Commission will hold the required public hearing on the request at their September 5th meeting, 
and staff will forward their recommendation to you at first reading of said item. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Application; 
GIS Maps 

73



HW
Y 501

CONBRACO CIR

MYRTLE BEACH NAIONAL GC

GARDNER LACY RD

HW
Y 501

Date: 8/6/2024  Time: 1:41:13 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\4908 Hwy 501 - Lynn Ladder\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 4908 HWY 501.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0010
TMS #: 162-00-01-175

4908 HWY 501
(P24-0208)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 399-01-04-0010

74



HW
Y 501

GARDNER LACY RD
POSTAL WAY

CONBRACO CIR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

NO NAME

SANTEE COOPER DISTRIBUTION RD

HW
Y 501

Date: 8/6/2024  Time: 1:40:07 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\4908 Hwy 501 - Lynn Ladder\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 4908 HWY 501.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0010
TMS #: 162-00-01-175

4908 HWY 501
(P24-0208)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 399-01-04-0010

75



HC

LI

LI

LI

HC
HC

HC

OPI

CFA

PUD

PUD

HC

LI

HC

HC

LI

OPI

CFA

OPI

LI

HC

MRD2

HC

SF 10

HW
Y 501

GARDNER LACY RD
POSTAL WAY

CONBRACO CIR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

NO NAME

SANTEE COOPER DISTRIBUTION RD

HW
Y 501

Date: 8/6/2024  Time: 1:33:59 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\4908 Hwy 501 - Lynn Ladder\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR 4908 HWY 501.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0010
TMS #: 162-00-01-175

4908 HWY 501
(P24-0208)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 399-01-04-0010

76



HW
Y 501

GARDNER LACY RD
POSTAL WAY

CONBRACO CIR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

NO NAME

SANTEE COOPER DISTRIBUTION RD

HW
Y 501

Date: 8/6/2024  Time: 1:37:16 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\4908 Hwy 501 - Lynn Ladder\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 4908 HWY 501.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0010
TMS #: 162-00-01-175

4908 HWY 501
(P24-0208)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 399-01-04-0010

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

77



HW
Y 501

GARDNER LACY RD
POSTAL WAY

CONBRACO CIR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

NO NAME

SANTEE COOPER DISTRIBUTION RD

HW
Y 501

Date: 8/6/2024  Time: 1:39:15 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\4908 Hwy 501 - Lynn Ladder\GIS\FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 4908 HWY 501.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0010
TMS #: 162-00-01-175

4908 HWY 501
(P24-0208)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 399-01-04-0010

REVISED 2019 FLOOD ZONES
0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD

A

AE

VE

PARCELS

78



79



80



81



82



83



       DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 
       ITEM: VI.A.  

ISSUE: 
First Reading (by title only) of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-16 (A) of a request for the City of Conway to 
restate and amend a previously approved Development Agreement [Ordinance ZA2023-02-06 (K)], for 
the property known as the “Collins Jollie Conservation Subdivision”, located on Collins Jollie Road, 
containing approximately 809 +/- acres, and containing the following uses: single-family detached 
dwellings, single-family semi-attached dwellings (duplex) and/or single-family attached dwellings 
(townhomes), as well as required Primary Conservation areas, Secondary Conservation areas, and Open 
Space. (PINs 295-00-00-0010; 295-00-00-0035; 295-00-00-0036; 295-00-00-0037; 295-00-00-0038; 
295-00-00-0039; 295-10-04-0001). 

BACKGROUND: 
The applicants are requesting approval of first reading by title only of the request for proposed 
amendments (and restatement) of the Collins Jollie Development Agreement, which was formerly 
approved by Council in February 2023; however, it was never recorded, and there have been tracts that 
have been sold off to individual developers since the original approval. Now, these property owners are 
required to be a party to the agreement.  

The properties contained within the Collins Jollie Conservation Subdivision are zoned Low/Medium-
Density Residential (R-1) and have been in the city’s jurisdiction since annexed in 2004 [Ord. ZA2003-
12-22 (G)]. The proposed length of the development agreement is for an initial 10-year period.  

The property is being developed as a Conservation Subdivision, a type a subdivision design, that is 
permitted by right in the R-1 zoning district as well as other districts, which preserves open space and 
significant areas of land for ecological, recreational, and agricultural purposes in perpetuity while 
maintaining a prorated density of residential units for the overall site area. Natural density is achieved 
by allowing smaller lots in neighborhoods that include or are adjacent to aesthetically and ecologically 
important areas. The properties contain approximately 273 areas of wetlands; some of which contain 
flood zones, and approximately 536 acres of uplands.  

As part of a conservation subdivision, all areas identified as being open space, which is to include 
Primary and Secondary Conservation areas, and any environmentally sensitive areas (wetlands, flood 
zones) are required to have an instrument of permanent protection placed on them to ensure that these 
identified areas are protected in perpetuity. This can be achieved via a conservation easement, dedicated 
to the City, or through a third-party conservation group, such as The Nature Conservancy, Ducks 
Unlimited, Pee Dee Land Trust, etc. While conservation subdivisions may be permitted to be held in 
single ownership (one developer), multiple ownership is also allowed; however, the entirety of the 
project must be developed according to a single plan with common authority and common responsibility. 
Although there is a “Master Developer”, each tract is being developed by a different entity, so under this 

84



standard, no land disturbance permits could be issued for one of the tracts proposed for development 
until ALL of the tracts were sold and proposed to be developed, which could be years apart from one 
another. See language contained within UDO below: 
 

10.4.1 General Requirements for Conservation Subdivisions 
B. General Requirements 
 1. Ownership of Development Site 
 The tract of land to be subdivided may be held in single ownership, separate ownership, or in 
 multiple ownership. If held in multiple ownership, the site shall be developed according to a single 
 plan with common authority and common responsibility.  
 

N. Application Requirements 
 2. Open Space Management Plan Required. 
 An Open Space management plan, as described in this Article, shall be prepared and submitted prior 
 to the issuance of a land disturbance permit.  
 3. Instrument of Permanent Protection. 
 An instrument of permanent protection, such as a conservation easement or permanent restrictive 
 covenant, shall be placed on the Open Space concurrent with the issuance of a land disturbance 
 permit.   
 

O. Legal Instrument of Permanent Protection 
 1. The Open Space shall be protected in perpetuity by a binding legal instrument that is recorded 
 with the deed and submitted to Horry County. 
 

A Master Plan for the project was submitted and subsequently approved by the City’s Technical Review 
Committee. Preliminary plans were later submitted for Tracts A, C, and D for two developments: 
Westwood Reserve on Tract A and Kingston Oaks on Tracts C and D, which are being developed by 
two different developers. More recently, plans to develop Tracts E, F, and G have been submitted for 
review. Preliminary plans for Westwood Reserve and Kingston Oaks have been approved. Preliminary 
plans for Maple Grove are still being reviewed by TRC.  
 

Developers of Westwood Reserve and Kingston Oaks will be seeking final plat approvals for these 
developments; however, until the Open Space areas are perpetually protected in accordance with the 
UDO, no plats can be approved. Additionally, the Master Developer is concerned that short of a 
development agreement, there is nothing guaranteeing that the open space areas are applicable across all 
tracts that are part of the conservation subdivision, regardless of how it is subdivided in land or 
ownership. To resolve this issue, staff recommended that the Master Developer enter into a development 
agreement with the city that is narrowly tailored to address the issue of the open space dedication and 
protection.  
 
 

85



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS.  
Per Title 6, Chapter 31, § 6-31-10 of the SC Code (SC Local Government Development Agreement Act, 
1993), authorizes binding agreements between local governments and developers for long-term 
development of large tracts of land. A development agreement gives a developer a vested right for the 
term of the agreement to proceed according to land use regulations in existence on the execution date of 
the agreement. Principal among the General Assembly’s statement of findings for the Act was the desire 
to provide some measure of certainty as to applicable land development law for developers who made 
financial commitments for planned developments. The Act also expresses the intent to encourage a 
stronger commitment to comprehensive and capital facilities planning, ensure the provision of adequate 
public facilities, encourage the use of resources and reduce the economic cost of development 
(Comprehensive Planning Guide, 2018).  
 

The length of the development agreement varies and depends on the size of the property to be included 
in the agreement. The minimum size for a property to be included in any development agreement is 25 
acres of highland – which is determined by local ordinance (i.e. land above the 100-year flood plain).  
 

The development agreement for the Collins Jollie Conservation Subdivision is proposed to be for a 
period of 10 years.  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS REQUIRED. Prior to adoption of a development agreement, the governing body 
must hold at least two (2) public hearings, which if authorized by the governing body, can be conducted 
by Planning Commission [per SC Code § 6-31-50(A)]. Notice of the intent to consider a development 
agreement must be published in a newspaper of general circulation, which should include the property 
location, proposed uses, and a place where a copy of the agreement can be obtained. The date, time and 
place of the second hearing must be announced at the first hearing [SC Code § 6-31-50(B)]. 
 

The first public hearing on the development agreement will be held at the September 5th Planning 
Commission meeting. The second public hearing has been advertised to occur at second reading of the 
proposed development agreement, at the September 16th Council meeting.  
 

Main sections to be contained within the agreement: 
1. INCORPORATION. 
2. DEFINITIONS. 
3. TERM. 
4. DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY. 
5. VESTED RIGHTS. 
6. CONVEYANCES OF PROPERTY AND ASSIGNMENT OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS AND 

OBLIGATIONS. 
7. DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE. 
8. EFFECT OF FUTURE LAWS. 

86



9. INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES. 
10. IMPACT FEES. 
11. ADDITIONAL OBLIGATIONS AND PUBLIC BENEFITS. 
12. PROTECTION OF ENVIRONMENT AND QUALITY OF LIFE. 
13. COMPLIANCE REVIEWS. 
14. DEFAULTS. 
15. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT. 
16. RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS. 
17. NOTICES. 
18. GENERAL. 
19. DESCRIPTION OF LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PERMITS NEEDED. 
20. STATEMENT OF REQUIRED PROVISIONS. 

 

 EXHIBITS: 
 EXHIBIT “A”: Description of Creekside Homes, LLC property; Description of Lennar Carolinas, 
 LLC property; Description of Realstar Homes, LLC property; Description of D.R. Horton, Inc. 
 property 
 EXHIBIT “B”: South Carolina Local Government Development Agreement Act, SC Code of Laws 
 § 6-31-10 through 6-31-160 
 EXHIBIT “C”: Description of Property 
 EXHIBIT “D”: Master Site Plan 
 EXHIBIT “E”: Development Schedule 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Planning Commission is scheduled to consider the request at their September 5th meeting, as well as hold 
the first of the two required public hearings.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve first reading by title only of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-16 (A). 
 
Attachments: 
Draft of proposed (draft includes staff edits) Development Agreement; 
Master Site Plan 
 
 
 
 
 

 

87



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-09-16 (A) 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF CONWAY AND COLLINS JOLLY HOLDING CO., LLC. 

 
WHEREAS, the S. C. Local Government Development Agreement Act of 1993 (S.C. Code Title 6, 

Chapter 31, § 6-31-10) authorizes binding agreements between local governments and 
developers for the long-term development of land tracts of land; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Conway is a duly charted municipal corporation, organized and existing under 
laws of the State of South Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, on May 25, 1998, Conway City Council amended the City Code of Ordinances to allow 
the City to enter into a Land Development Agreement with developers who meet the 
necessary criteria to participate in such agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Conway City Council feels it is in the best interest of the City to enter into a Development 
Agreement with Collins Jolly Holding Co., LLC; and 

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement is in reference to the Collins Jollie Conservation 
Subdivision, consisting of approximately 809 +/- acres of land; and 

WHEREAS, included within the Development Agreement are obligations of the Developer, including, 
but not limited to, building & zoning requirements; infrastructure and services; tree 
preservation; public uses; wetland preservation, etc. Development to commence in 
accordance with the agreement; projected to be completed over a 10-year construction 
period; and 

WHEREAS, it is recognized that the Development Agreement does not apply to any development 
which occurs after the expiration of its 10-year term unless the agreement has been 
extended pursuant to state law; and 

WHEREAS, the required public hearings, in accordance with S.C. Code § 6-31-50 have occurred, and 
Planning Commission has recommended approval of the Development Agreement; and 

WHEREAS,  the Development Agreement, as proposed, is attached and shall be adopted by reference 
made a part hereof as if fully incorporated. Therefore, be it 

ORDAINED  that the Development Agreement between Collins Jolly Holding Co., LLC, and the City 
of Conway be hereby adopted by reference and made a part hereof as if fully incorporated, 
as attached hereto; and be it further 

ORDAINED  that all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall become effective upon final reading. 

 

88



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this              day of   , 2024. 

 
 

 
Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 

 
Amanda Butler, Council Member  William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 
 

 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member  

 
 

 
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

 
 
First Reading:     

 

Final Reading:    
 

 

 

 

 
 

89



 

  
1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA       ) AMENDED AND RESTATED DEVELOPMENT 
  )   AGREEMENT FOR COLLINS JOLLIE  

COUNTY OF HORRY )   CONSERVATION SUBDIVISION 

 
THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is 

made and entered this ___ day of _______________, 2024, by and between COLLINS JOLLY 
HOLDING CO, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company, its affiliates, subsidiaries, successors 
and assigns (“Developer”), and the governmental authority of the CITY OF CONWAY, a body politic 
under the laws of the State of South Carolina (“City”). 
 

WHEREAS, the legislature of the State of South Carolina has enacted the “South Carolina Local 
Government Development Agreement Act”, as set forth in Sections 6-31-10 through 6-31-160 of the 
South Carolina Code of Laws (1976), as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 6-31-10(B)(1) of the Act, as defined below, recognizes that “[t]he lack of 
certainty in the approval of development can result in a waste of economic and land resources, can 
discourage sound capital improvement planning and financing, can cause the cost of housing and 
development to escalate, and can discourage commitment to comprehensive planning”; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 6-31-10(B)(6) of the Act, as defined below, also states that “[d]evelopment 
agreements will encourage the vesting of property rights by protecting such rights from the effect of 
subsequently enacted local legislation or from the effects of changing policies and procedures of local 
government agencies which may conflict with any term or provision of the development agreement or 
in any way hinder, restrict, or prevent the development of the project. Development agreements will 
provide a reasonable certainty as to the lawful requirements that must be met in protecting vested 
property rights, while maintaining the authority and duty of government to enforce laws and regulations 
which promote the public safety, health, and general welfare of the citizens of our State”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Act, as defined below, further authorizes local governments, including 
municipal governments, to enter into development agreements with developers to accomplish these and 
other goals as set forth in Section 6-31-10 of the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer proposed, and the City previously approved that certain instrument 
entitled “Master Development Agreement” (the “Original Agreement”), which Original Agreement 
included certain inadvertent errors and omissions such that the same was not executed and recorded in 
the public records of Horry County;  and 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer and the City intend that this Agreement be substituted for and 
replace the Original Agreement;  and 

 

90



 

  
2 

WHEREAS, the City seeks to protect and preserve the natural environment and to secure for its 
citizens quality, well planned and designed development and a stable and viable tax base; and 
 

WHEREAS, Developer is, or has been, the legal owner of the Property hereinafter defined and, 
together with each of the successor developers executing those joinders attached to this Agreement, is 
authorized to enter into this Agreement with the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City finds that the program of development for this Property (as hereinafter 
defined) proposed by Developer over approximately the next Ten (10) years or as extended as provided 
herein is consistent with the City’s comprehensive land use plan and land development regulations, and 
will further the health, safety, welfare and economic wellbeing of the City and its residents, in accordance 
with Section 6-31-70 of the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the development of the Property and the program for its development presents an 
opportunity for the City to secure quality planning and growth, protection of the environment, and to 
strengthen the City’s tax base; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City, at the request of the Developer, has previously approved an amendment 
to the zoning ordinances of the City to create the Collins Jollie Community as a Conservation 
Subdivision under the ordinances of the City of Conway, which final approval occurred on or about the 
____ day of ________________, 2022, encumbering the real property more particularly described on 
Exhibit “B C” attached hereto (the “Property”);  and 
 

WHEREAS, this Agreement is being made and entered into between Developer and the City, 
under the terms of the Act, for the purpose of providing assurances to Developer that it may proceed 
with its development plan under the terms hereof, consistent with its approved zoning (as hereinafter 
defined) without encountering future changes in certain laws which would materially affect the 
Developer’s ability to develop the Property under its approved zoning, and for the purpose of providing 
important protection to the natural environment and long term financial stability and a viable tax base to 
the City; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions set forth herein, and other 
good and valuable consideration, including the potential economic benefits to both the City and 
Developer by entering this Agreement, and to encourage well planned development by Developer, the 
receipt and sufficiency of such consideration being hereby acknowledged, the City and Developer hereby 
agree as follows: 
 
1. INCORPORATION.  The above recitals are hereby incorporated into this Agreement, 
together with the South Carolina General Assembly findings as set forth under Section 6-31-10(B) of 
the Act. 

91



 

  
3 

2. DEFINITIONS.  As used herein, the following terms mean: 
 

“Act” means the South Carolina Local Government Development Agreement Act, as codified in 
Sections 6-31-10 through 6-31-160 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina (1976), as amended; attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A B”. 
 

“Code of Ordinances” means the Code of Ordinances for the City, as amended and in effect as 
of the date hereof, as the same may be amended from time to time, a complete copy of which is on file 
in the City’s office. 
 

“Developer” means Collins Jolly Holding Co., LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company, 
all of its permitted assignees, and all current owners of any portion of the Property at the time of this 
Agreement,  or any of their respective successors in title or lessees who undertake development of the 
Property as a Developer or who are transferred Development Rights and Obligations. 
 

“Developer Default” for purposes of this Agreement, Developer Default shall mean that (i) 
Developer has breached the specific obligations of this Agreement, and, following prior written notice 
from the City, has failed to cure such breach within Thirty (30) days of the date of written notice from 
the City;  or (ii)  once commenced, Developer has failed to continue with Development Work, as defined 
in this Agreement, on the Property for a period of more than Six (6) months, and, following prior written 
notice from the City, has failed to cure such breach within Thirty (30) days of the date of written notice 
from the City.  
 

“Developer Default Remedy” notwithstanding any other remedy that may be available to the 
City at law, or in equity, as a result of a Developer Default, Developer and the City agree that the City 
may elect to (i)  withhold issuance of building permits until such Developer Default is cured; (ii)  seek 
injunctive relief to stop any such continuing Developer Default, or (iii)  any other remedy available at 
law or in equity.  
 

“Development Rights and Obligations” means the rights, obligations, benefits and approvals of 
the Developer(s) under the PD and this Agreement. 
 

“Development Work” means the periodic operation of development activities on the Property, 
which include, but are not limited to clearing, grading, erosion control, site work, and landscaping under 
the terms of a written contract with the Developer.   
 

“Effective Date” means the date on which the last of the parties has executed this Agreement. 
 

“Jurisdictional and Non-Jurisdictional Waters of the State of South Carolina and the United 
States” means those areas identified by the United States Army Corps of Engineers (“Corps”) and/or the 
South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control (“DHEC”) or any other applicable 
governmental authority as wetland areas subject to the regulation of the Corps and/or DHEC.   

92



 

  
4 

“Land Development Regulations” means the Land Development Regulations for the City, as 
amended and in effect as of the date hereof, or further amended from time to time pursuant to this 
Agreement.  
 

“Master Site Plan” means that certain master site plan prepared by Developer, which Master Site 
Plan depicts the approved development plan for the Property, for purposes of showing the density, site 
arrangement, and responsibilities for off-site roadway improvements, a copy of such Master Site Plan 
being attached to the PD, and also being attached hereto as Exhibit “C D”. 
 

“Owners Association” means a legal entity formed by Developer or its successors pursuant to 
South Carolina statutes which is responsible for the enforcement of neighborhood restrictions and 
covenants, and for the maintenance and upkeep of any common areas and/or community infrastructure 
developed under this Agreement, but not accepted by the City for perpetual ownership and maintenance, 
to include but not be limited to: private drives and alleyways, common areas, neighborhood parks and 
recreational facilities, wetlands and storm water management systems not otherwise conveyed to the 
City or its designee, or subjected to restrictive covenants or conservation easements in favor of the City 
or a third party entity acceptable to the City for jurisdiction over such wetlands. 
 

“Project” means a master planned community to include residential uses under the Conservation 
Subdivision designation under the City’s Code of Ordinances, together with other uses also allowed 
under the Code of Ordinances, as the same may be amended from time to time pursuant to this 
Agreement. 
 

“Property” means those parcels of land more particularly described on Exhibit “B C” attached 
hereto. 
 

“Residential Unit” means a single-family home, whether attached or detached, a single family 
attached condominium, single family home in-common (whether attached or detached), or a multi-
family home, within the Property, as shown and depicted on the Master Site Plan, as the same may be 
amended.   
 

“Term” means the duration of this Agreement as set forth in Section 3 hereof. 
 
3. TERM. The Developer represents and warrants that the Property consists of a total of 
not less than 250 acres and not more than 1,000 acres of “highland” within the meaning given that term 
by the Act. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date on which this Agreement is executed 
by the City and the Developer and shall terminate on the date which is Ten (10) years from the date of 
execution.  Notwithstanding such termination date, provided that the Developer is not in default (after 
being provided with notice and opportunity to cure as set forth below) of this Agreement, Developer has 
diligently pursued development of the Property, and the Project has not been completed, at the 

93



 

  
5 

conclusion of the initial Ten-year term, the termination date of this Agreement shall automatically be 
extended for up to Three (3) additional Five (5) year terms. At the conclusion of the initial Five (5) year 
extension of the Term, provided that the Developer is not in default (after being provided with notice 
and opportunity to cure as set forth below) of this Agreement, Developer has diligently pursued 
development of the Property, and the Project has not been completed, at the conclusion of the initial five-
year extension of the Term, the termination date of this Agreement shall automatically be extended for 
up to Two (2) additional Five (5) year terms. Notwithstanding the terms and provisions in this Section 
or elsewhere in this Agreement to the contrary, if a court of competent jurisdiction hereafter determines 
that the length of the Term, or the provision for extension of the Term set forth above, exceeds the 
maximum term allowed under the Act and if all applicable judicial appeal periods have expired without 
such determination being overturned, then the Term of this Agreement relative to all or specific affected 
portions of the Property shall be reduced to the maximum permissible term under the Act, as determined 
by a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
4. DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY. The Property shall be developed in 
accordance with this Agreement, the Code of Ordinances, including the Conservation Subdivision 
ordinance, and other applicable land development regulations required by the City, State, and/or Federal 
Government. The City shall, throughout the Term, maintain or cause to be maintained a procedure for 
the processing of reviews as contemplated by this Agreement and the Code of Ordinances. The City shall 
review applications for development approval based on the development standards adopted as a part of 
the Code of Ordinances, unless such standards are superseded by the terms of this Agreement, in which 
case the terms of this Agreement shall govern. 
  
5. VESTED RIGHTS. This Agreement confirms the simultaneous establishment of the 
applicable zoning designation of the Property as a Conservation Subdivision under the Code of 
Ordinances as of the date of this Agreement. The development rights contained in the Conservation 
Subdivision, as well as any differences between the Conservation Subdivision and any applicable overlay 
zone under the Code of Ordinances shall be deemed vested in the Developer, its successors and assigns, 
subject to the terms of this Agreement, and the agreements, obligations and commitments contained 
herein, shall run with the Property, and may not be amended or modified without the express written 
consent of the Developer, its successors and assigns, except as provided herein or as allowed by the Act.   
 
6. CONVEYANCES OF PROPERTY AND ASSIGNMENT OF DEVELOPMENT 
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS. The City agrees with Developer, for itself and its successors and 
assigns, including successor Developer(s), as follows: 
 

(A) Conveyance of Property. In accordance with the Act, the burdens of this 
Agreement shall be binding on, and the benefits of this Agreement shall inure to, all successors in interest 

94



 

  
6 

and assigns of all parties hereto, except for Excluded Property, as such term is defined below. For the 
purposes of this Agreement, “Excluded Property” means property that is conveyed by the Developer to 
a third party and is: (i)  a single-family residential lot for which a certificate of occupancy has been 
issued; (ii)  a parcel for which certificates of occupancy have been issued and on which no additional 
residential structures can be built under local ordinances governing land development; (iii)  any other 
type of lot for which a certificate of occupancy has been issued and which cannot be further subdivided 
into one or more unimproved lots or parcels under local ordinances governing land development; or (iv)  
a single-family residential lot which has been subdivided and platted and is not capable of further 
subdivision without  the granting of a variance. Excluded Property shall at all times be subject to the 
Code of Ordinances of the City, and those incorporated in this Agreement. The conveyance by a 
Developer of Excluded Property shall not excuse that Developer from its obligation to provide 
infrastructure improvements within such Excluded Property in accordance with this Agreement. 
 

(B) Assignment of Development Rights and Obligations. The Developer, or any 
subsequent developer, shall be entitled to assign and delegate the Development Rights and Obligations 
to a subsequent purchaser of all or any portion of the Property with the consent of the City, provided that 
such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. The City understands that any such 
assignment or transfer by the Developer of the Development Rights and Obligations shall be non-
recourse as to the assigning Developer. Upon the assignment or transfer by Developer of the 
Development Rights and Obligations, then the assigning Developer shall not have any responsibility or 
liability under this Agreement. For purposes of this Section 6, the following activities on the part of 
Developer shall not be deemed “development of the Property”: (i)  the filing of this Agreement, the 
Master Site Plan and the petitioning for or consenting to any amendment of this Agreement or the Code 
of Ordinances, including the PD; (ii)  the subdivision and conveyance of any portions of the Property to 
the City as contemplated under this Agreement; (iii)  the subdivision and conveyance of the portion of 
the Property designated as “Open Space” on the Master Site Plan to any person or entity so long as the 
same shall be restricted in use to “open space”; (iv)  the subdivision and conveyance of portions of the 
Property, not to exceed in the aggregate one (1) acre, more or less, provided that such conveyances shall 
be deed-restricted to single-family residential use; (v)  the conveyance of easements and portions of the 
Property for public utility purposes; (vi)  the conveyance of portions of the Property to public entities in 
the case of any road realignments or grants of road rights of way; (vii)  the marketing of the Property as 
contemplated under this Agreement; and (viii) any other activity which would not be deemed 
“development” under the Act. 
 
7.   DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE. The Property shall be developed in accordance with 
the development schedule, attached as Exhibit “D E” (the “Development Schedule”). Developer shall 
keep the City informed of its progress with respect to the Development Schedule as a part of the required 
Compliance Review process set forth in Section 13 below. Pursuant to the Act, the failure of the 

95



 

  
7 

Developer to meet the development schedule shall not, in and of itself, constitute a material breach of 
this Agreement. In such event, the failure to meet the development schedule shall be judged by the 
totality of circumstances, including but not limited to any change in economic conditions, the occurrence 
of an act of God (including natural disasters), an act of war, an act of terrorism, civil disturbance, strikes, 
lockouts, fire, flood, hurricane, unavoidable casualties, a health crisis which results in a limitation on 
business activities in the City extending for a  period of more than Thirty (30) days, or any other cause 
or causes beyond the reasonable control of the Developer (collectively “Force Majeure”), and the 
Developer’s good faith efforts made to attain compliance with the development schedule. As further 
provided in the Act, if the Developer requests a modification of the dates set forth in the development 
agreement and is able to demonstrate that there is good cause to modify those dates, such modification 
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed by the City. 
 
8.               EFFECT OF FUTURE LAWS. Developer shall have vested rights to undertake 
development of any or all of the Property in accordance with the Code of Ordinances and the Land 
Development Regulations, as amended and in effect at the time of this Agreement, for the entirety of the 
Term. Future enactments of, or changes or amendments to the Code of Ordinances and the Land 
Development Regulations, which conflict with this Agreement shall apply to the Property only if 
permitted pursuant to the Act and agreed to in writing by the Developer and the City. The parties 
specifically acknowledge that building moratoria or permit allocations enacted by the City during the 
Term of this Agreement or any adequate public facilities ordinance as may be adopted by the City shall 
not apply to the Property except as may be allowed by the Act or otherwise agreed to in writing by the 
Developer and the City. The parties further acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding the above 
limitation on future changes in ordinances, all future stormwater runoff, drainage, retention and treatment 
improvements within the Property shall be designed in accordance with the Code of Ordinances, as the 
same may be amended from time to time.   
 

The parties specifically acknowledge that this Agreement shall not prohibit the application of any present 
or future building, housing, electrical, plumbing, gas or other standard codes, of any tax or fee of general 
application throughout the City, provided such fees are applied consistently and in the same manner to 
all single-family properties within the City. Notwithstanding the above, the City may apply subsequently 
enacted laws to the Property only in accordance with the Act and this Agreement. 
 
9. INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES. The City and Developer recognize that the 
majority of the direct costs associated with the development of the Property will be borne by the 
Developer. Subject to the conditions set forth herein, the parties make specific note of and acknowledge 
the following: 
 

Notwithstanding the provisions referenced above, nothing in this Agreement shall preclude the City 
and Developer from entering into a separate utility agreement for cost-sharing of water transmission 

96



 

  
8 

systems or sewer transmission systems when such agreement may be of mutual benefit to both parties. 
Nothing herein shall be construed as precluding the City from providing potable water to its residents 
in accordance with applicable provisions of laws. 
 

(A) Public Roads. All roads within the Project serving the Residential Units  and 
commercial development within the Project shall be public roads, unless otherwise indicated on the 
Master Site Plan. All public roadways shall be constructed to City standards unless specifically modified 
herein, will be approved by the City Planning Commission as part of the subdivision plat approval 
process, and will be dedicated to, conveyed, maintained and repaired by the City. 
 

(B) Storm Drainage System. All stormwater runoff, drainage, retention and 
treatment improvements within the Property shall be designed in accordance with the Code of 
Ordinances, as the same may be amended, in accordance with Section 8 above. All stormwater runoff 
and drainage system structural improvements, including culverts and piped infrastructure, will be 
constructed by the Developer and dedicated to the City. Upon final inspection and acceptance by the 
City, the Developer shall provide a one-year warranty period for all drainage system structural 
improvements within the Project. Retention ponds, ditches and other stormwater retention and treatment 
areas will be constructed and maintained by the Developer and/or one of more Owners Association, as 
appropriate, and will not be accepted or maintained by the City, with the specific exception of those 
retention ponds, ditches and other stormwater retention and treatment areas located on property conveyed 
to the City by the Developer, for which the Developer will retain an easement for transmission of 
stormwater, but upon which the City will exclusively maintain. 

Staff comment: not applicable to easements labeled as private. 
 

(C) Solid Waste and Recycling Collection. The City shall provide solid waste and 
recycling collection services to the Property on the same basis as is provided to other residents and 
businesses within the City. Payment for such services to the City by Developer, an Owners Association 
or each individual purchaser or owner of any portion of the Property is required in return for such service 
for each owner within the Property. The City reserves the right to contract with a third party, which may 
include another governmental entity for the provision of such services or the billing of such services to 
Developer, an Owners Association or each individual owner of any portion of the Property, and the City 
reserves the right to terminate or discontinue such service(s) to any owner of any portion of the Property 
until such payment(s) have been made.  
 

(D) Police Protection. The City shall provide police protection services to the 
Property on the same basis as is provided to other residents and businesses within the City. 
 

(E) Fire Services. The City shall provide fire services to the Property on the same 
basis as is provided to other residents and businesses within the City, which services may be provided 
by way of a mutual services agreement with Horry County, if the City is unable to provide such services 

97



 

  
9 

directly. 
 

(F) Emergency Medical Services. The City shall provide emergency medical 
services to the Property, on the same basis as it provided to other residents and businesses within the 
City, which services may be provided by way of a mutual services agreement with Horry County, if the 
City is unable to provide such services directly. 
 

(G) School Services. The City neither provides nor is authorized by law to provide 
public education facilities or services. Such facilities and services are now provided by the Horry County 
School District. The person or entity, whether it be homebuilder or another assignee of Developer, who 
actually initiates the building permit shall be responsible for paying all impact fees levied by the School 
District for each residential unit constructed prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 
 

(H) Private Utility Services. Private utility services, including electric, natural gas, 
and telecommunication services (including telephone, cable television, and internet/broadband) shall be 
provided to the site by the appropriate private utility providers based upon designated service areas. All 
utilities on the Property shall be located underground and shall be placed in locations approved by the 
City so as to reduce or eliminate potential conflicts within utility rights-of-way. 
 

(I) Streetlights. Developer shall install or cause to be installed streetlights within 
the Project. To the extent that the City provides the same benefit to other similarly situated 
neighborhoods within the City, the City shall contribute toward the monthly cost for each streetlight in 
an amount equal to the costs for the base street light fixture offered by the utility provider. The remaining 
monthly cost for each streetlight, including additional charges associated with an enhancement street 
light fixture, if any, shall be borne by the Developer and/or Owners Association. 
 

(J) No Donation of Acreage for Sewer Plant Expansion. The City shall not 
require, mandate or demand that, or condition approval(s) upon a requirement that the Developer donate, 
use, dedicate or sell to the City or any other party for public purposes any portion of the Property or any 
other property owned by the Developer or any affiliate of the Developer for sewer plant expansion by 
the City, provided, however, that this provision shall not be deemed to preclude the City from requiring 
additional sewer pump station facilities, to subsequently be dedicated and conveyed to the City.   
 

(K) No Required Donations for Civic Purposes. The City shall not require, 
mandate or demand that, or condition approval(s) upon a requirement that, the Developer donate, use, 
dedicate or sell to the City or any other party for public purposes any portions of the Property or any 
other property owned by the Developer (or any of the entities or parties comprising the Developer) or 
any affiliate of the Developer, provided, however, that the Developer has agreed to convey, in 
consideration of obligations set forth in this Agreement, and in the PD, and without payment from the 
City to the Developer those parks, recreational areas and athletic facilities for public use are shown on 

98



 

  
10 

the Master Site Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “C D”.   
 

(L) Easements. Developer shall be responsible for obtaining, at Developer’s cost, 
all easements, access rights, or other instruments that will enable the Developer to tie into current or 
future water and sewer infrastructure on adjacent properties. 
 

(M) Ponds and Lakes.  As an obligation, Developer shall install pond(s) or lake(s) 
as shown on the approved Master Site Plan for the Property. The City agrees to cooperate with the 
Developer in the permitting process for such pond(s) and lake(s), it being understood that the City will 
not accept maintenance responsibility or any other liability for such pond(s) and lake(s) except those 
pond(s) and lake(s) located upon any portion of the Property conveyed to the City by the Developer, and 
that all other such pond(s) and lake(s) shall either be (i)  maintained by the Developer; or  (ii)  conveyed 
to an Owners Association for on-going maintenance following completion of the Project.  
 

(N) Flood Damage Prevention. Developer shall adhere to the City’s Flood Damage 
Prevention Ordinance, as existing on the date of plan submission.   
 

(O) Tree Preservation. All tree preservation efforts shall be made in accordance 
with the City of Conway’s Tree Preservation Ordinance and the City’s Code of Ordinances. 
Developer shall also adhere to the City’s Tree Preservation Ordinance, as existing on the Effective Date 
of this Agreement that is in effect at the time of plan submittal., and continuing throughout the term 
of this Agreement, provided, however, that The Developer’s obligation to deliver a tree survey shall be 
limited to those protected trees in excess of 6” DBH that are defined as being protected and/or 
landmark trees, per the City of Conway Tree Preservation Ordinance, and such tree survey shall be 
due for submission with subdivision approval and not prior to that time depict the location, specimen 
of such tree(s), and D.B.H. of all protected and/or landmark trees per the Tree Preservation 
Ordinance, to be submitted for each tract or parcel identified as being with the Conservation 
Subdivision at the time of plan submittal, and prior to land disturbance.   
 
10. IMPACT FEES. The Property shall be subject to all development impact fees imposed 
by the City at the time of this Agreement, provided such fees are applied consistently and in the same 
manner to all similarly situated property within the City limits. All such impact fees shall not be due and 
payable until an application of any person or entity for a building permit for the vertical development of 
any subdivided lot or portion of the Property. In particular, the Developer agrees that it shall not seek 
any exemptions for any portions of the Property from any current development impact fees (so long as 
such development impact fees are applied consistently and in the same manner to all similarly situated 
property within the City limits) for any reason.   
 
11. ADDITIONAL OBLIGATIONS AND PUBLIC BENEFITS.  The Developer, and its 
respective successors and assigns agree that the then current owner of the Property or any portion thereof, 

99



 

  
11 

will provide public benefits, as follows: 
 

(A) The installation of sidewalks and street trees, in accordance with the requirements 
of the City for other similar-situated properties, to be complete on or before the date on which the 
respective one or more subdivisions within the Property is completed. In the event the installation of 
such sidewalk is delayed beyond completion of the corresponding subdivision portion of the Property, 
then, in such event the sidewalk shall be bonded for completion, in accordance with the bonding 
requirements of the City.   

Staff comment: sidewalks are required internal to the development, but outside the 
project, along Collins Jollie Rd, in lieu of sidewalks, soft paths were approved and must 
be identified somewhere in this document.  

 

(B) As a requirement, the installation of at least One (1) or more new sewer pump 
stations on the Property, in order to provide sufficient capacity as necessary for the proposed 
development of the Project. Sewer pump installation shall be in accordance with the requirements of 
Grand Strand Water & Sewer Authority (“GSWSA”), or such other agency then providing sanitary sewer 
service to the Property.   
  

(C) Stormwater conveyance and retention facilities sufficient in capacity to 
accommodate the storm water generated from the Property and provide the City with evidence of the 
necessary and required permanent and perpetual easements necessary to facilitate such drainage from 
the Property.  All stormwater shall be designed to meet or exceed the City’s Stormwater Ordinance that 
is in effect at the time of plan submittal. 
 

(D) All wetlands, as depicted on the Master Site Plan, as amended from time to time, 
shall be protected, in the following manner: (staff comment: are you referring to the Master Plan as 
being amended from time to time or the wetlands?) 
 

(i) As to wetlands located within any subdivision of the Property as shown on the 
Master Site Plan, as amended from time to time, such wetlands shall be subjected 
to restrictive covenants for the benefit of an Owners Association, having 
jurisdiction over the respective portion of the Property for which a subdivision 
plat is proposed, in the same manner as other open spaces within such subdivision, 
and such restrictive covenants shall be recorded simultaneously with the recording 
of the subdivision plat. In addition, not later than One (1) year following the 
recording of such subdivision plat, the wetlands depicted on such plat shall be 
conveyed to the Owners Association having jurisdiction over the respective 
subdivision as open space. Notwithstanding such conveyance the same shall 
continue to apply to any open space calculations required under the Code of 
Ordinances.   

100



 

  
12 

Staff comment: The conservation areas, including wetlands, must be recorded 
and conveyed (conservation easements in favor of city) prior to any plat 
approvals.  

 

Staff comments: Here’s what the previous DA (approved but never recorded) stated – and which 
encapsulated the reason for which the DA was being proposed: 

- Major wetland bodies will not be subdivided into the individual submission phases, as 
preservation of these bodies must be allowed to be shared as part of the requirements for each 
phase. The major wetland bodies will be retained by the Master Developer, who will place these 
lands under a conservation easement to be maintained by an approved entity such as North 
American Land Trust, Ducks Unlimited, or the City. These lands will be preserved in perpetuity 
by said entity. These major tracts will be placed in said easements upon completion of 
development of the tract or prior to the termination of this agreement, whichever shall first occur. 

- Wetlands contained within individual development phases will be incorporated into the common 
area of each of said phases, with these common areas to be maintained by the phase Property 
Owner’s Association. Platting of these areas will be accomplished as part of the overall phased 
subdivision plat. 

 

(ii) As to wetlands within the Property which are not located within any subdivision 
of the Property, as shown on the Master Site Plan, as the same may be amended 
from time to time, the same shall be retained by Developer until such time as 
Developer has subjected the same to an instrument of permanent protection, in 
favor of the City, in a form approved by the City, to be placed upon and 
encumbering the wetlands not located within any subdivision of the Property, 
recorded in the public records of Horry County, South Carolina, on or before date 
which is Two (2) years following the date of this Agreement. Following the 
recording of such instrument of permanent protection, the same shall continue to 
apply to any open space calculations required under the Code of Ordinances, and 
Developer may convey the same, subject to such instrument of permanent 
protection, in favor of the City.  Staff comment: this needs clarification. 

 

(E) Uses and Density. As a public benefit, Development of the Property shall be 
determined in accordance with the Code of Ordinances, as the same may be amended from time to time 
pursuant to this Agreement, provided that the Property and the applicable approved Master Plan, as 
amended from time to time, shall provide for not more than 1,333 total Residential Units. 
 

(F) Road Standards and Traffic Impact. As an obligation, all public roads within 
the Project shall be constructed to City specifications. The exact location, alignment, and name of any 
public road within the Project, shall be subject to review and approval by the City Planning Commission 
as part of the subdivision platting process. The Developer shall be responsible for maintaining all public 

101



 

  
13 

roads until such roads are offered to, and accepted by, the City for ownership and maintenance.   
 

Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, this Agreement does not obligate the City 
to expend any funds of the City or borrow any sums in connection with improvements to the roads 
subject to this Section 11(F).  
 

(G) Stormwater and Drainage. As an obligation, Developer shall provide 
stormwater conveyance and retention facilities sufficient in capacity to accommodate the stormwater 
generated from the Property and provide the City with evidence of the necessary and required permanent 
and perpetual easements necessary to facilitate such drainage from the Property. 
 

(H) Jurisdictional and Non-Jurisdictional Waters. As an obligation, Jurisdictional 
and Non-Jurisdictional Waters of the State of South Carolina and the United States within the Project 
which are not mitigated, filled or otherwise modified, shall be surrounded by an undisturbed water 
quality buffer of not less than Thirty (30) feet in width.   
 

(I) Floodways and Flood Hazard Areas. As an obligation, Developer agrees that 
no portion of the Property which is located in a floodway or the AE a Flood Zone shall be improved 
with Residential Units, or parking improvements to accommodate Residential Units. The intent of this 
provision is to iensure that the flood hazard protections afforded Residential Units exceeds such flood 
hazard protections as would otherwise be required under the Code of Ordinances. 
 

(J) Recording. Pursuant to Title 6, Chapter 31, Section 120 of the Code of Laws for 
the State of South Carolina, this Agreement shall be recorded in the public records of Horry County, 
South Carolina, on or before the date which is Fourteen (14) days following the date on which the City 
enters into this Agreement. 
 
12. PROTECTION OF ENVIRONMENT AND QUALITY OF LIFE. The City and 
Developer recognize that development can have negative as well as positive impacts. Specifically, the 
City considers the protection of the natural environment and nearby waters, and the preservation of the 
character and unique identity of the City, to be important goals. Developer shares this  commitment  and  
therefore  agrees  to  abide  by  all provisions of federal, state and local laws and regulations for the 
handling of stormwater. 
 
13. COMPLIANCE REVIEWS. Developer, or its assigns, shall meet with the City, or its 
designee, at least once per year during the Term to review development completed in the prior year and 
the development anticipated to be commenced or completed in the ensuing year as compared to the 
Development Schedule. The City shall provide written notice to the Developer of the date for such 
compliance review not less than Five (5) business days in advance, provided such notice shall not be 
applicable to standard reviews and inspections otherwise performed by the City as to the improvement 

102



 

  
14 

of the Property. The Developer must demonstrate good faith compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement. The Developer, or its designee, shall be required to provide such information as may 
reasonably be requested by the City. The Development Schedule attached to this Agreement is only a 
projection, and Developer’s obligation at each respective Compliance Review shall be to reconcile the 
projected Development Schedule attached to this Agreement with the actual schedule of development 
for the Project at each respective Compliance Review. Failure to meet the Development Schedule 
attached to this Agreement shall not constitute a default hereunder.    
 
14. DEFAULTS. Developer shall continuously and diligently proceed with Development 
Work on the Property. Developer’s failure to proceed with Development Work on the Property for a 
period of more than Six (6) months, other than as a result of Force Majeure, as defined in Section 6 
above, shall constitute a default hereunder on the part of Developer. In the event of a default, the City 
shall provide written notice to Developer of such default, and Developer shall have a period of Thirty 
(30) days in which to cure a default by commencement of Development Work with regards to the next 
portion of the Property to be developed in accordance with phasing plan of the Project as set forth on the 
Master Site Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “C D”, as amended from time to time, and approved by the 
City. The failure of the Developer to comply with the terms of this Agreement shall constitute a default, 
entitling the City to pursue such remedies as deemed appropriate, including withholding the issuance of 
building permits in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, specific performance and the 
termination or modification of this Agreement in accordance with the Act; provided however no 
termination of this Agreement may be declared by the City absent its according the Developer the notice 
and opportunity to cure in accordance with the Act.   
 
15. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT.  This Agreement may be modified or amended 
only by the written agreement of the City and the Developer. No statement, action or agreement hereafter 
made shall be effective to change, amend, waive, modify, discharge, terminate or effect an abandonment 
of this Agreement in whole or in part unless such statement, action or agreement is in writing and signed 
by the party against whom such change, amendment, waiver, modification, discharge, termination or 
abandonment is sought to be enforced except as otherwise provided in the Act. 
 
16. RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS. The obligations and public benefits agreed to and accepted by 
Developer set forth in this Agreement (collectively the “Restrictive Covenants”) shall survive and continue 
in full force and effect without regard to the termination of this Agreement for a period ending on the earlier 
of (i)  Fifty (50) years after the Term of this Agreement; or (ii)  such time as the parties hereto, or their 
respective successors and assigns, have recorded a fully executed and effective termination of the Restrictive 
Covenants in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Horry County. Developer further covenants and agrees 
that, to the extent the Property is encumbered by covenants, conditions and restrictions (the “CCRs”), 
whether administered by an Owners Association or not, such CCRs shall include the Restrictive Covenants, 

103



 

  
15 

the effect of which shall be to extend the term of the Restrictive Covenants, the same thereafter running 
with the Property as continuing obligations, public benefits and restrictions.  
 
17. NOTICES. Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or communication which a 
signatory party is required to or may give to another signatory party hereunder shall be in writing and 
shall be delivered or addressed to the other at the address below set forth or to such other address as such 
party may from time to time direct by written notice given in the manner herein prescribed, and such 
notice or communication shall be deemed to have been given or made when communicated by personal 
delivery or by independent courier service or by facsimile or if by mail on the fifth (5th) business day 
after the deposit thereof in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified, addressed as 
hereinafter provided. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals or communications to the City 
shall be addressed to the City at: 
 

City of Conway 
      101 Third Avenue 

Conway, SC  29526 
Attention: City Manager 

 

With a copy to:    City of Conway 
      101 Third Avenue 
      Conway, SC  29526 
      Attention:  City Attorney 

 

And to the Developer at:                                 Collins Jolly Holding Co., LLC 
                                                                        c/o Robert S. Guyton, P.C. 
                 4605 B Oleander Drive, Suite 202  
                 Myrtle Beach, SC  29577 
 

With a copy to:    Robert S. Guyton, Esq. 
      Robert S. Guyton, P.C. 
      4605 B Oleander Drive, Suite 202 
      Myrtle Beach, SC  29577 
 
18. GENERAL. 
 

(A) Subsequent Laws. In the event state or federal laws or regulations are enacted 
after the execution of this Agreement or decisions are issued by a court of competent jurisdiction which 
prevent or preclude compliance with the Act or one or more provisions of this Agreement (“New Laws”), 
the provisions of this Agreement shall be modified or suspended as may be necessary to comply with 
such New Laws. Immediately after enactment of any such New Law, or court decision, a party 

104



 

  
16 

designated by Developer and the City shall meet and confer in good faith in order to agree upon such 
modification or suspension based on the effect such New Law would have on the purposes and intent of 
this Agreement. During the time that these parties are conferring on such modification or suspension or 
challenging the New Laws, the City may take reasonable action to comply with such New Laws. Should 
these parties be unable to agree to a modification or suspension, either may petition a court of competent 
jurisdiction for an appropriate modification or suspension of this Agreement. 
 

(B) Estoppel Certificate. The City or any Developer may, at any time, and from 
time to time, deliver written notice to the other applicable party requesting such party to certify in writing, 
within Thirty (30) days of such written notice, that this Agreement is in full force and effect, that this 
Agreement has not been amended or modified, or if so amended, identifying the amendments, whether, 
to the knowledge of such party, the requesting party is in default or claimed default in the performance 
of its obligations under this Agreement, and, if so, describing the nature and amount, if any, of any such 
default or claimed default, and whether, to the knowledge of such party, any event has occurred or failed 
to occur which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default and, 
if so, specifying each such event.   
 

(C) Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth, and incorporates by reference all 
of the agreements, conditions and understandings between the City and the Developer relative to the 
Property and its development and there are no promises, agreements, conditions or understandings, oral 
or written, expressed or implied, among these parties relative to the matters addressed herein other than 
as set forth or as referred to herein. 
 

(D) No Partnership or Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed 
to create a partnership or joint venture between the City or any Developer or to render such party liable 
in any manner for the debts or obligations of another party. 
 

(E) Exhibits. All exhibits attached hereto and/or referred to in this Agreement are 
incorporated herein as though set forth in full. 
 

(F) Construction. The parties agree that each party and its counsel have reviewed 
and revised this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be 
resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement or any 
amendments or exhibits hereto. 
 

(G) Transfer of Title. Transfers of title to the Property, in whole or in part, may be 
made, at any time and to any person or entity, without the consent of the City. 
 

(H) Binding Effect. The parties hereto agree that this Agreement shall be binding 
upon their respective successors and/or assigns. 
 

105



 

  
17 

(I) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
South Carolina, and the parties further agree that venue shall be proper, without regards to any conflict 
of law principals, in a court of competent jurisdiction in Horry County, or such other jurisdiction in 
South Carolina as is appropriate and necessary under the circumstances. 
 

(J) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, and such counterparts shall constitute but one and the same 
instrument. 
 

(K) Eminent Domain. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit, impair or 
restrict the City’s right and power of eminent domain under the laws of the State of South Carolina. 
 

(L) No Third-Party Beneficiaries. The provisions of this Agreement may be 
enforced only by the City and the Developer. No other persons shall have any rights hereunder, unless 
specified in this Agreement. 
 

(M) Release of Developer. Subject to Section 6(B), in the event of conveyance of all 
or a portion of the Property, the Developer shall be released from any obligations and liabilities with 
respect to this Agreement as to the portion of Property so transferred, and the transferee shall be 
substituted as the Developer under the Agreement as to the portion of the Property so transferred; 
provided, however, the transferee(s) of the one acre contemplated for subdivision and conveyance under 
Section 6(B) shall not be deemed to succeed to any Development Rights and Obligation of Developer 
under this Agreement. 
 
19. DESCRIPTION OF LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PERMITS NEEDED. The 
development of the Property shall be pursuant to this Agreement, the Land Development Regulations, 
and Code of Ordinances, as amended; provided, however, in the event of any conflict between this 
Agreement and the Land Development Regulations, and/or the Code of Ordinances, the provisions of 
this Agreement shall control. Necessary permits include, but may not be limited to, the following: 
building permits, zoning compliance permits, sign permits (permanent and temporary), temporary use 
permits, accessory use permits, driveway/encroachment/curb cut permits, clearing/grading permits, and 
land disturbance permits. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City acknowledges that City Planning and 
Zoning Development Director and/or the City Planning Commission approval of plats will be given if 
any such plats are materially consistent with the Master Site Plan of the Project, subject to any Master 
Site Plan Revisions. It is specifically understood that the failure of this Agreement to address a particular 
permit, condition, term or restriction does not relieve the Developer of the necessity of complying with 
the law governing the permitting requirements, conditions, terms or restrictions. It is expressly 
understood and acknowledged by all parties to this Agreement that any portions of the Property donated 
or sold by any Developer to the City shall not be subject to any private declaration of restrictions or 
property owners association(s) created by any Developer for any subsequent subdivision of the Property. 

106



 

  
18 

20. STATEMENT OF REQUIRED PROVISIONS. In compliance with Section 6-31-
60(A) of the Act, the Developer represents that this Agreement includes all of the specific mandatory 
provisions required by the Act, addressed elsewhere in this Agreement. 
 

[Signature Pages Follow]

107



 

  
19 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement as of the day and 
year first above written. 

 
DEVELOPER: 

 
WITNESSES: COLLINS JOLLY HOLDING CO., LLC, a 

South Carolina limited liability company 
 
_______________________________ 
Name: _________________________ By:       
 Name: ______________________________ 
_______________________________ Title : _______________________________ 
Name: _________________________ 

 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

)     
COUNTY OF HORRY ) 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this  ___  day of ______________, 

2024, by __________________________, as _________________________ of COLLINS 
JOLLY HOLDING CO., LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company. He or she personally 
appeared before me and is personally known to me. 

 
 
 

 
Notary Public 
Name: ______________________________ 
My Commission Expires:    

108



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement as of the 
day and year first above written. 

 
  CITY: 

 
WITNESSES: CITY OF CONWAY 
 
 
_______________________________ By: _____________________________ 
Name: _________________________ Name: ___________________________ 
 Title: ____________________________ 
______________________________ 
Name: ________________________ 

 
 

 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

) 
COUNTY OF HORRY ) 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this  _____day of__________________, 
2024 by , the of  the CITY 
OF CONWAY.  He or she personally appeared before me and is personally known to me. 
 
 
 

 
Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: ___________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

109



 

 

JOINDER OF OTHER OWNER 
 

 The undersigned CREEKSIDE CUSTOM HOMES, LLC, a South Carolina limited 
liability company, does hereby join and consent to the encumbrance of the real property 
described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto (the “Other Owner’s Property”) to the terms and 
conditions of the foregoing Amended and Restated Development Agreement for Collins Jollie 
Conservation Subdivision (“Development Agreement”), specifically excluding, however, any 
obligation as to monetary fees required solely under the terms of the Development Agreement. 
 

OTHER OWNER: 
 

CREEKSIDE CUSTOM HOMES, LLC, a 
South Carolina limited liability company 

 
__________________________  By: _____________________________ 
Name: ____________________  Name: ___________________________ 
      Title: ____________________________ 
__________________________   
Name: ____________________ 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      )  ACKNOWLEDGMENT  
COUNTY OF  HORRY   ) 
 
 I, ___________________, a Notary Public, do hereby certify that 
______________________, as ______________________ of CREEKSIDE CUSTOM 
HOMES, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company, personally appeared before me this 
day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument as his or her act and deed. 
 

 Witness my hand and seal this ___ day of ____________________, 2024 
 
____________________________________  
Notary Public Signature    
Name: ______________________________ 
Notary Public for South Carolina 
My Commission Expires: ________________ 
 
 
(Seal) 

110



 

 

  EXHIBIT “A” 
 

 Description of Creekside Homes, LLC Property 
 

                      [TO BE ATTACHED] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111



 

 

JOINDER OF OTHER OWNER 
 

 The undersigned LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, 
does hereby join and consent to the encumbrance of the real property described on Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto (the “Other Owner’s Property”) to the terms and conditions of the foregoing 
Amended and Restated Development Agreement for Collins Jollie Conservation Subdivision 
(“Development Agreement”), specifically excluding, however, any obligation as to monetary 
fees required solely under the terms of the Development Agreement. 
 

OTHER OWNER: 
 

LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company 
 

__________________________  By: _____________________________ 
Name: ____________________  Name: ___________________________ 
      Title: ____________________________ 
__________________________   
Name: ____________________ 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      )  ACKNOWLEDGMENT  
COUNTY OF  _____________________ ) 
 
 I, ___________________, a Notary Public, do hereby certify that 
______________________, as ______________________ of LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged 
the due execution of the foregoing instrument as his or her act and deed. 
 

 Witness my hand and seal this ___ day of ____________________, 2024 
 
____________________________________  
Notary Public Signature    
Name: ______________________________ 
Notary Public for South Carolina 
My Commission Expires: ________________ 
 
 
(Seal) 

112



 

 

                        EXHIBIT “A” 
 

                     Description of Lennar Carolinas, LLC Property 
 

                      [TO BE ATTACHED] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

113



 

 

JOINDER OF OTHER OWNER 
 

 The undersigned REALSTAR HOMES, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability 
company, does hereby join and consent to the encumbrance of the real property described on 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto (the “Other Owner’s Property”) to the terms and conditions of the 
foregoing Amended and Restated Development Agreement for Collins Jollie Conservation 
Subdivision (“Development Agreement”), specifically excluding, however, any obligation as to 
monetary fees required solely under the terms of the Development Agreement. 
 

OTHER OWNER: 
 

REALSTAR HOMES, LLC, a South Carolina 
limited liability company 

 
__________________________  By: _____________________________ 
Name: ____________________  Name: ___________________________ 
      Title: ____________________________ 
__________________________   
Name: ____________________ 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      )  ACKNOWLEDGMENT  
COUNTY OF  HORRY   ) 
 
 I, ___________________, a Notary Public, do hereby certify that 
______________________, as ______________________ of REALSTAR HOMES, LLC, a 
South Carolina limited liability company, personally appeared before me this day and 
acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument as his or her act and deed. 
 

 Witness my hand and seal this ___ day of ____________________, 2024 
 
____________________________________  
Notary Public Signature    
Name: ______________________________ 
Notary Public for South Carolina 
My Commission Expires: ________________ 
 
(Seal) 

114



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Description of Realstar Homes, LLC Property 
 

[TO BE ATTACHED] 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

115



 

 

JOINDER OF OTHER OWNER 
 

 The undersigned D.R. HORTON, INC., a Delaware corporation, does hereby join and 
consent to the encumbrance of the real property described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto (the 
“Other Owner’s Property”) to the terms and conditions of the foregoing Amended and Restated 
Development Agreement for Collins Jollie Conservation Subdivision (“Development 
Agreement”), specifically excluding, however, any obligation as to monetary fees required 
solely under the terms of the Development Agreement. 
 

OTHER OWNER: 
 

D.R. HORTON INC., a Delaware corporation 
 

__________________________  By: _____________________________ 
Name: ____________________  Name: ___________________________ 
      Title: ____________________________ 
__________________________   
Name: ____________________ 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      )  ACKNOWLEDGMENT  
COUNTY OF  ______________________ ) 
 
 I, ___________________, a Notary Public, do hereby certify that 
______________________, as ______________________ of D.R. HORTON, INC., a Delaware 
corporation, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the 
foregoing instrument as his or her act and deed. 
 

 Witness my hand and seal this ___ day of ____________________, 2024 
 
____________________________________  
Notary Public Signature    
Name: ______________________________ 
Notary Public for South Carolina 
My Commission Expires: ________________ 
 
(Seal) 
 
 

116



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Description of D.R. Horton, Inc. Property 
 

[TO BE ATTACHED] 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

117



 

 

EXHIBIT “A B” 
 

South Carolina Local Government Development Agreement 
Act as Codified in Sections 6-31-10 through 6-31-160 

of the Code of Laws of South Carolina (1976), as amended 
 

     [TO BE ATTACHED]

118



 

 

EXHIBIT “B C” 
 

                                Description of Property    
                 

 [TO BE ATTACHED] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

119



 

 

EXHIBIT “C D” 
 

Master Site  Plan 
 

[TO BE ATTACHED] 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

120



 

 

EXHIBIT “D E” 
 

Development Schedule 
 
Construction will begin following receipt of permits from the City of Conway and from other 
regulatory bodies. The nature of this Project, together with the current economic conditions, 
prevents the Developer from providing exact dates for commencement of future phases or exact 
completion dates. Although the timing of completion of any particular Phase of the Project is 
subject to then current market demands, the Developer anticipates starting the installation of the 
infrastructure within a period of approximately Twenty-four  (24) months from approval of this 
Agreement to allow for design, permitting and mobilization. The Project would be complete within 
Fourteen (14) years of approval of this Agreement.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

121



136'

45'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

22'

6 Unit T
H (24 - 2

2 - 2
2 - 2

2 - 2
2 - 2

4)

END UNIT

INT. U
NIT

INT. U
NIT

INT. U
NIT

INT. U
NIT

END UNIT

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH
PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

114'

45'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

5 Unit T
H (24 - 2

2 - 2
2 - 2

2 - 2
4)

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED
PORCH

END UNIT

INT. U
NIT

INT. U
NIT

INT. U
NIT

END UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH
PORCH

PORCH

92'

45'22'

22'

24'

24'

4 Unit T
H #2 (24 - 2

2 - 2
2 - 2

4)

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

END UNIT

INT. U
NIT

INT. U
NIT

END UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

136'

45
'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

22'

6 Unit TH (24 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 24)

END UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

END UNIT

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

136'

45
'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

22'

6 Unit TH (24 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 24)

END UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT
END UNIT

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH
PORCH

PORCH
PORCH

PORCH

136'

45'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

22'

6 Unit TH (24 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 24)

END UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT
INT. UNIT

END UNIT

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

92'

45'

22'

22'

24'

24'

4 Unit TH #2 (24 - 22 - 22 - 24)

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

END UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT
END UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

13
6'

45'

24
'

22
'

22
'

22
'

24
'

22
'

6 
Un

it T
H 

(2
4 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
4)

EN
D 

UN
IT

IN
T.

 U
NI

T

IN
T.

 U
NI

T
IN

T.
 U

NI
T

IN
T.

 U
NI

T
EN

D 
UN

IT

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / O
PT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / O
PT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RCH

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / O
PT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RCH

PO
RCH

PO
RC

H
PO

RCH

PO
RCH

PO
RC

H

PO
RC

H

13
6'

45'

24
'

22
'

22
'

22
'

24
'

22
'

6 
Un

it T
H 

(2
4 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
4)

EN
D 

UN
IT

IN
T.

 U
NI

T
IN

T.
 U

NI
T

IN
T.

 U
NI

T
IN

T.
 U

NI
T

EN
D 

UN
IT

PA
TI

O / O
PT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / O
PT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RCH

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

COVE
RED

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PO
RC

H

PO
RC

H
PO

RCH

PO
RC

H
PO

RC
H

PO
RC

H

11
4'

45'

24
'

22
'

22
'

22
'

24
'

5 
U

ni
t T

H
 (2

4 
- 2

2 
- 2

2 
- 2

2 
- 2

4)

PA
TI

O
 / 

O
PT

.
C

O
VE

R
ED

PO
R

C
H

PA
TI

O
 / 

O
PT

.
C

O
VE

R
ED

PO
R

C
H

PA
TI

O
 / 

O
PT

.
C

O
VE

R
ED

PO
R

C
H

PA
TI

O
 / 

O
PT

.
C

O
VE

R
ED

PO
R

C
H

PA
TI

O
 / 

O
PT

.
C

O
VE

R
ED

PO
R

C
H

EN
D

 U
N

IT
IN

T.
 U

N
IT

IN
T.

 U
N

IT
IN

T.
 U

N
IT

EN
D

 U
N

IT

PO
R

C
H

PO
R

C
H

PO
R

C
H

PO
R

C
H

PO
R

C
H

114'

45
'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

5 Unit TH (24 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 24)

PATIO / OPT.COVEREDPORCH PATIO / OPT.COVEREDPORCH PATIO / OPT.COVEREDPORCH PATIO / OPT.COVEREDPORCH PATIO / OPT.COVEREDPORCH

END UNIT
INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT
INT. UNIT END UNITPORCH

PORCH

PORCH PORCH

PORCH

136'

45'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

22'

6 Unit T
H (24 - 2

2 - 2
2 - 2

2 - 2
2 - 2

4)

END UNIT

INT. U
NIT

INT. U
NIT

INT. U
NIT

INT. U
NIT

END UNIT

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

114'

45'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

5 Unit T
H (24 - 2

2 - 2
2 - 2

2 - 2
4)

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED
PORCH

END UNIT

INT. U
NIT

INT. U
NIT

INT. U
NIT

END UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

92'

45'22'

22'

24'

24'

4 Unit T
H #2 (24 - 2

2 - 2
2 - 2

4)

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

END UNIT

INT. U
NIT

INT. U
NIT

END UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

136'

45
'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

22'

6 Unit TH (24 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 24)

END UNIT

INT. UNIT
INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT
END UNIT

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH
PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

114'

45
'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

5 Unit TH (24 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 24)

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

END UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

END UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

136'

45'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

22'

6 Unit TH (24 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 24)

END UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT
END UNIT

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH
PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

114'

45'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

5 Unit TH (24 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 24)

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

END UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

END UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH
PORCH

PORCH

92'

45'

22'

22'

24'

24'

4 Unit TH #2 (24 - 22 - 22 - 24)

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

END UNIT
INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

END UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

13
6'

45'

24
'

22
'

22
'

22
'

24
'

22
'

6 
Un

it T
H 

(2
4 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
4)

EN
D 

UN
IT

IN
T.

 U
NI

T
IN

T.
 U

NI
T

IN
T.

 U
NI

T

IN
T.

 U
NI

T
EN

D 
UN

IT

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

COVE
RED

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / O
PT

.

COVE
RED

PO
RC

H

PO
RC

H

PO
RC

H
PO

RCH

PO
RC

H
PO

RC
H

PO
RCH

13
6'

45'

24
'

22
'

22
'

22
'

24
'

22
'

6 
Un

it T
H 

(2
4 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
4)

EN
D 

UN
IT

IN
T.

 U
NI

T
IN

T.
 U

NI
T

IN
T.

 U
NI

T
IN

T.
 U

NI
T

EN
D 

UN
IT

PA
TI

O / O
PT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

COVE
RED

PO
RCH

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PO
RC

H

PO
RC

H
PO

RC
H

PO
RC

H
PO

RC
H

PO
RC

H

13
6'

45'

24
'

22
'

22
'

22
'

24
'

22
'

6 
Un

it T
H 

(2
4 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
4)

EN
D 

UN
IT

IN
T.

 U
NI

T
IN

T.
 U

NI
T

IN
T.

 U
NI

T
IN

T.
 U

NI
T

EN
D 

UN
IT

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / O
PT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RCH

PA
TI

O / O
PT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RCH

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

COVE
RED

PO
RCH

PO
RCH

PO
RC

H
PO

RC
H

PO
RC

H
PO

RCH

PO
RC

H

13
6'

45'

24
'

22
'

22
'

22
'

24
'

22
'

6 
Un

it T
H 

(2
4 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
2 

- 2
4)

EN
D 

UN
IT

IN
T.

 U
NI

T

IN
T.

 U
NI

T
IN

T.
 U

NI
T

IN
T.

 U
NI

T
EN

D 
UN

IT

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / O
PT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / O
PT

.

COVE
RED

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / O
PT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RC

H

PA
TI

O / 
OPT

.

CO
VE

RE
D

PO
RCH

PO
RC

H

PO
RCH

PO
RCH

PO
RCH

PO
RCH

PO
RCH

92'

45
' 22'

22'

24'

24'

4 Unit TH #2 (24 - 22 - 22 - 24)

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PORCH

END UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

END UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

92'

45'

22'

22'

24'

24'

4 Unit TH #2 (24 - 22 - 22 - 24)

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PORCH

END UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

END UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

92'

45'

22'

22'

24'

24'

4 Unit TH #2 (24 - 22 - 22 - 24)

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

END UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT
END UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

92'

45'

22'

22'

24'

24'

4 Unit TH #2 (24 - 22 - 22 - 24)

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PORCH

END UNIT

INT. UNIT
INT. UNIT

END UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

92'

45
'

22'

22'

24'

24'

4 Unit TH #2 (24 - 22 - 22 - 24)

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / O
PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

END UNIT
INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

END UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

136'

45
'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

22'

6 Unit TH (24 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 24)

END UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

END UNIT

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

92'

45'

22'

22'

24'

24'

4 Unit TH #2 (24 - 22 - 22 - 24)

PATIO / OPT.
COVERED PORCH

PATIO / OPT.
COVERED PORCH

PATIO / OPT.
COVERED PORCH

PATIO / OPT.
COVERED PORCH

PORCH

END UNIT
INT. UNIT

INT. UNITEND UNIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

114'

45'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

5 Unit TH (24 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 24)

PATIO / OPT. COVERED PORCH
PATIO / OPT. COVERED PORCHPATIO / OPT. COVERED PORCHPATIO / OPT. COVERED PORCHPATIO / OPT. COVERED PORCH

END UNIT
INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT
INT. UNITEND UNIT PORCH

PORCH

PORCH
PORCH

PORCH

136'

45'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

22'

6 Unit TH (24 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 24)

END UNIT

INT. UNIT
INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT
END UNIT

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PORCH

PORCH
PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

92
'

45'

22
'

22
'

24
'

24
'

4 U
nit

 TH
 #2

 (2
4 -

 22
 - 2

2 -
 24

)

PATIO
 / O

PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO
 / O

PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO
 / O

PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO
 / O

PT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

END U
NIT

IN
T. 

UNIT

IN
T. 

UNIT

END U
NIT

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

136'

45
'

24'

22'

22'

22'

24'

22'

6 Unit TH (24 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 22 - 24)

END UNIT

INT. UNIT
INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT

INT. UNIT
END UNIT

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED
PORCH

PATIO / OPT.

COVERED

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH
PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PORCH

PO
ND

PO
ND

AM
EN

IT
Y

AR
EA

AM
EN

IT
Y

AR
EA

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

OPE
N

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

PO
ND

RI
DG

EW
OOD 

W
ES

T 
SU

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

CO
LL

IN
S 

JO
LL

IE
 R

D

COLLINS JOLLIE RD

POND

POND

POND

POND POND

OPEN
SPACE

OPEN
SPACE

OPEN
SPACE

POND

WETLAND FILL
±0.23 AC

OPEN
SPACE

OPEN
SPACE

EXISTING WETLAND &
30' WETLAND BUFFER

EXISTING WETLAND &
30' WETLAND BUFFER

EX
IS

TI
NG

 W
ET

LA
ND

 &

30
' W

ET
LA

ND
 B

UF
FE

R

EXISTING WETLAND &
30' WETLAND BUFFER

OPEN
SPACE

OPE
N

12

34

7

8

9

10

1112

13

14

15
16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

18
4

18
5

27

6

28
29

30
31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

5

26

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
na

l

W
et

lan
d 

3 
(a

)(4
)

7.
02

 A
c.

Ex
clu

de
d

W
at

er
 1 

(b
)(1

)

0.
24

 A
c.

1

2

3

4
5

6

7

8

9
10

11

12

13

14

15

16
17

18
19

20
21

22

23

24

25
26

27
28

29

30

31

32 33

34 35 36

37 38 39 40

41

42 43 44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52
53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89
90

91
92

93
94

95

96

97

98 99
10

0
10

1
10

2
10

3
10

4
10

5
10

6
10

7
10

8

10
9

11
1

11
0

11
2

13
1

13
0

12
9

12
8

12
7

12
6

12
5

12
4

12
3

12
2

12
1

12
0

11
9

11
8

11
7

11
6

11
5

11
4

11
3

13
3

13
4

13
5

13
2

13
6

13
713

813
9

14
014

1

14
214

314
414

5

14
6

14
7

14
8

14
9

15
0

15
1 15
2 15

3 15
4 15

5 15
6

15
7

15
8

15
9

16
0

16
1

16
2

16
3

16
4

16
5

16
6

16
7

16
8

16
9

17
0

17
1

17
2

17
3

17
4

17
5

17
6 17
7 17
8 17

9

18
0

18
1

18
2

18
3

EXISTING WETLAND &
30' WETLAND BUFFER

AM
EN

IT
Y

M
ODE

L 
HO

M
E

& 
PA

RK
IN

G

PH
AS

E 
1

PH
AS

E 
3

PH
AS

E 
2

FU
TU

RE

OPE
N

OPE
N

A
134.1 AC

C
27.1 AC

D
73.0 AC

E
128.2 AC

F
112.3 AC

G
27.0 AC

H
156.4 AC

B
142.4 AC

100 YEAR FLOOD LIMITS

RANDALL RD

I
9.0 AC

POTENTIAL FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

IN
C

. A
N

D
 A

LL
 R

IG
H

TS
 W

IT
H

 R
EG

AR
D

 T
O

 C
O

PY
R

IG
H

TS
 A

R
E 

R
ES

ER
VE

D
 A

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
D

AT
E 

O
F 

TH
IS

N
O

TI
FI

C
AT

IO
N

 IS
 H

ER
EB

Y 
G

IV
EN

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 

D
D

C
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S,

D
O

C
U

M
EN

T.
  P

R
IN

TS
 A

N
D

/O
R

 C
O

PI
ES

 O
F 

PL
AN

S 
W

IT
H

O
U

T 
SI

G
N

AT
U

R
E 

AN
D

 S
EA

L,
 A

R
E 

IN
VA

LI
D

.

c

1298 Professional Dr., Myrtle Beach, SC  29577
Phone: (843) 692-3200    Fax: (843) 692-3210

Landscape Architects & Environmentalists
Consulting Engineers, Surveyors, Planners,

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
:

FILE NO.:

PROJECT NO.:

APROV. BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

DATE:

SCALE:

N
O

.
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
BY

.\DDC title blocks\NEW DDC_R_TM_high_res.jpg

C
O

LL
IN

S 
JO

LL
IE

 T
R

AC
T

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
C

O
N

W
AY

, S
O

U
TH

 C
AR

O
LI

N
A

C
O

N
SE

R
VA

TI
O

N
 S

U
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

 Z
O

N
IN

G
 P

LA
N

C
O

LL
IN

S 
JO

LL
Y 

H
O

LD
IN

G
 C

O
 L

LC

18019

1" = 300'

5/15/2019

JLW

JLW

JMW

1

1
7/

18
/2

01
9

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 P

ER
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

SC
H

2
8/

19
/2

01
9

R
EV

IS
ED

 P
ER

 S
TA

FF
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
JL

W
3

5/
27

/2
02

0
R

EV
IS

ED
 T

O
 IN

C
LU

D
E 

C
H

AR
T 

IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
JL

W

0'

SCALE

150' 300'

COLL
IN

S 
JO

LL
IE

 R
D

RANDALL
RDSC

-6
5

U
S 

H
W

Y 
70

1

HW
Y 319

SITE

SITE

SITE

VICINITY MAP

SITE SUMMARY
TOTAL PARCEL PIN 295-00-00-0010
TOTAL ACREAGE ±809.36 AC (±536.00 AC UPLAND / ±273.36 AC WETLAND)
CURRENT ZONING R1
PROPOSED ZONING* CONSERVATION SUBDIVISION
PROPOSED USE SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED & SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED

JURISDICTION CITY OF CONWAY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CURRENT OWNER COLLINS JOLLY HOLDING CO LLC
4605 OLEANDER DR #B
MYRTLE BEACH, SC 29577

DEVELOPER N/A

NET BUILDABLE ACREAGE±300.16 AC
536.00 UPLAND AC x 0.80 (TO ACCOUNT FOR 20% INFRASTRUCTURE) = 428.80 AC
428.80 AC x 0.70 (TO ACCOUNT FOR AN ADDITIONAL 30% OPEN SPACE) = 300.16 AC

*NOTE: CONSERVATION SUBDIVISION IS ALLOWED BY-RIGHT UNDER THE R1 ZONING DISTRICT.

R1 ZONING REQUIREMENTS

ALLOWED USE SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED
LOT SIZE 7,500 SF (MIN)
LOT WIDTH 75' (MIN)
LOT DEPTH 100' (MIN)

FRONT SETBACK 20'
SIDE SETBACK 10'
REAR SETBACK 20'

BUILDING HEIGHT 40' (MAX)

ALLOWED DENSITY* 1,743 UNITS (MAX)

*NOTE: ALLOWED DENSITY IS CALCULATED AS NET BUILDABLE ACREAGE DIVIDED BY LOT SIZE.

CONSERVATION SUBDIVISION REQUIREMENTS

ALLOWED USE SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED
SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED (TOWNHOMES)

LOT SIZE 6,000 SF (MIN)
LOT WIDTH 60' (MIN)
LOT DEPTH 100' (MIN)

FRONT SETBACK 20'
SIDE SETBACK 10'
REAR SETBACK 15'

BUILDING HEIGHT 40' (MAX)

ALLOWED DENSITY* 2,789 UNITS (MAX)

*NOTE: ALLOWED DENSITY SHALL NOT EXCEED 1.6 TIMES THE ALLOWED DENSITY OF THE UNDERLYING ZONING.  (1.6 x 1,743 = 2,789)

PROTECTED BUFFERS 100' (MIN) FROM ADJACENT RIGHTS-OF-WAY
50' (MIN) FROM ADJACENT TRACT BOUNDARIES

DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES*

1. PROVISION: 30' BUFFER AROUND ALL RIVERS / WETLANDS
INCENTIVE: 1 ADDITIONAL UNIT PER ACRE OF BUFFER AREA PROVIDED

2. PROVISION: MULTI-USE TRAILS / GREENWAYS THAT CONNECT NEIGHBORHOODS
INCENTIVE: 0' SIDE YARD SETBACK

*ADDITIONAL INCENTIVES ARE AVAILABLE PER THE ORDINANCE.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

AREA UNIT TYPE UNIT SIZE UNIT TOTAL
  A* SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED 62' x 120'    215
  B SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED 62' x 120'    084
  C SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED    **    039
  D SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED 62' x 120'    185
  E SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED 62' x 120'    220
  F SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED 62' x 120'    289
  G SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED    **    175
  H SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED 62' x 120'    111
  I SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED 62' x 120'    015
TOTAL DENSITY  1,333

  *AREA "A" REFLECTS WETLAND SURVEY INFORMATION AS DONE BY ROBERT WARNER & ASSOCIATES DATED 9/26/2019.
   ALL OTHER AREAS SHALL REQUIRE UPDATED WETLAND LETTERS PRIOR TO DEVELOPMENT.

**VARIOUS SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED (TOWNHOMES) UNITS

NOTE: PLAN IS CONCEPTUAL IN NATURE & SUBJECT TO REVISION. PLAN SHOULD NOT BE USED AS A CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT OF ANY KIND. BASE INFORMATION IS NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE.

LEGEND

49.6 AC OPEN SPACE *
(Ponds with docks/piers/fountain amenities)(set open space)

312.3 AC PRIMARY CONSERVATION AREAS *
(Wetlands and upload buffers)

165.6 AC SECONDARY CONSERVATION AREAS *
(Soft path installation alongside proposed ponds)
(20' separation and soft paths between back to back lots)

5,093 SF SOFT PATHS *
(10' wide)

123 LOTS NOT ABUTTING CONS. AREA (1333 * 0.25 = 333 allowed)
NOTE: Roadways will be constructed per the City of Conway's "Complete Streets" Ordinance. 

OPEN SPACE MATRIX SUMMARY
OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENT: 30% OF NET BUILDABLE AREA (300.16 AC * 0.3 = ±90 AC )

ACTIVE USE AREA PASSIVE USE AREA TOTAL ACRES WATER SURFACE PERCT.

PHASE A 11.32 26.91 38.23 1%

PHASE B NA NA 0%

PHASE C 0.47 3.44 3.91 0%

PHASE D 1.70 8.80 10.50 10%

PHASE E 12.51 22.28 34.79 22%

PHASE F 15.58 13.88 29.46 32%

PHASE G 3.50 6.15 9.65 27%

PHASE H 4.98 23.09 28.07 13%

PHASE I 0.00 4.37 4.37 0%

TOTAL 50.060000 108.920000 158.980000 12%

 * Areas, configurations and size subject to change during civil design phase(s).

\\m
et

ro
ne

4\
h\

D
D

C
_P

R
\0

X1
12

40
28

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
80

19
 - 

C
ol

lin
s 

Jo
llie

 M
P\

18
01

9-
Ph

as
e2

 P
od

 C
&D

 P
ha

si
ng

.d
w

g,
 7

/2
1/

20
21

 4
:5

1:
59

 P
M

122

jtw
Engineer
4             12/29/2021       UPDATE FILE AT REQUEST OF CITY OF CONWAY (NO REVISIONS)         JTW

kwilkerson
Distance Measurement
955.98 ft

kwilkerson
Distance Measurement
183.92 ft

kwilkerson
Distance Measurement
220.94 ft

kwilkerson
Distance Measurement
312.66 ft

kwilkerson
Distance Measurement
393.37 ft

kwilkerson
Distance Measurement
332.05 ft

kwilkerson
Polygonal Line

kwilkerson
Polygonal Line

kwilkerson
Typewritten Text
PH 1A

kwilkerson
Typewritten Text
PH 1B



       DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 
       ITEM: VI.B. 

ISSUE: 
First Reading (by title only) of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-16 (B) of a request to amend a previously 
approved land development agreement [Ord. #ZA2023-10-02 (A)] for the property known as “Warden 
Station”, a Planned Development (PD) district located at or near the corner of Pitch Landing Rd & Hwy 
701 South, Pitch Landing Rd & Blaze Trail, and Kinlaw Lane & Hwy 701 South, containing 
approximately 1,763 +/- acres, and which contains the following uses: single-family detached dwellings, 
single-family semi-attached dwellings (duplex), single-family attached dwellings (townhomes), 
multifamily dwellings, as well as commercial and recreational uses (PINs 381-00-00-0003; 381-08-01-
0006; 381-08-04-0009; -0010; 380-00-00-0038; 403-00-00-0001; -0002; -0022). 

BACKGROUND: 
In January of this year, the City approved and entered into a land development agreement with BRD 
Land & Investment, LP, for the proposed development of the subject property. The development 
agreement was recorded on February 27th, in Deed Book 4779, Pg. 997. Following the recording of the 
document, mass grading plans were submitted for the subject property. Any plans submitted for review 
must follow the terms of the development agreement and the PD ordinance, where applicable. Upon 
review, staff discovered that the PD document and the DA document contained conflicting language 
with regard to Tree Preservation.  

The PD document simply states that the developer agrees to submit a tree survey, in accordance with 
the City’s Tree Ordinance, for each tract within the PD at the time of plan submittal, and before land 
disturbance of such tract is approved. This language, since no modification from the Tree Preservation 
Ordinance is specified, assumes that whatever is in effect at the time of plan submittal will be applicable 
to this project for each tract; which will occur at different times throughout the length of the development; 
however, if mass grading of the entire site is proposed, this will in fact result in land disturbance, 
requiring that a tree survey be submitted as part of the plan review for mass grading.  

The development agreement goes a step further, stating the following: 
“Tree Preservation. Developer and the City recognize the public benefit of tree preservation, and 
therefore agree that, a tree survey depicting all trees in excess of 6” (inches) in caliper shall be provided 
for each tract within the PD at the time of plan submittal, and before land disturbance of such tract is 
approved.”   

The language contained within the development agreement, as recorded, does not mention the tree 
preservation ordinance, and states that any tree, greater than 6” in caliper, would be contained on a tree 
survey, when tree surveys should only include those that are listed as being protected or landmark trees, 
per the tree preservation ordinance. Nonetheless, the developer is bound by the development agreement 

123



that is in effect at the time of plan submittal, and any deviations from it, or amendments, require approval 
from City Council.  
 

AMENDMENT: 
The applicant has submitted a proposed amendment to Section 10 (I) of the development agreement, to 
state the following:  
 

(I) “Tree Preservation. All of the property shall comply with the City’s Tree Preservation 
Ordinance that is in effect at the time of plan submittal. No protected and/or landmark tree(s), as 
defined under the City’s Tree Preservation Ordinance, shall be removed without a Protected 
and/or Landmark Tree Removal permit. A tree survey, indicating the location, specimen, and 
D.B.H. of all protected and/or landmark trees under the City’s Tree Preservation Ordinance, shall 
be submitted for each tract or parcel within the property at the time of plan submittal, and prior 
to approval of any land disturbance, clearing, grading, confirming that development will not 
occur without verification by City staff that no protected and/or landmark trees will be removed 
without proper permitting and mitigation.”  

 

For consistency staff proposes a minor amendment to the PD that mirrors the aforementioned amendment 
to the DA. Minor amendments to the PD do not require Planning Commission or Council approval; only 
staff approval. Typically, minor amendments would be requested by the applicant, not staff, so as a 
condition of approval of this proposed amendment to the development agreement, staff recommends that 
it be contingent upon the inclusion of a minor amendment to the PD to reflect the same language. 
Planning staff is responsible for determining if a change is a minor or major detail. 
 

REQUIRED PUBLIC HEARINGS 
The first public hearing on the development agreement will be held at the September 5th Planning 
Commission meeting. The second public hearing has been advertised to occur at second (and final) 
reading of the proposed development agreement, at the September 16th Council meeting.  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Planning Commission is scheduled to consider the request at their September 5th meeting, as well as hold 
the first of the two required public hearings.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve first reading by title only of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-16 (B). 
 
Attachments: 
Draft of proposed (draft includes staff edits) amendment to the Development Agreement; 
Master Site Plan 
 
 

124



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-09-16 (B) 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO A PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CONWAY AND BRDL 

WARDEN STATION, LLC (AKA BRD LAND & INVESTMENT, LP). 
 
WHEREAS, the S. C. Local Government Development Agreement Act of 1993 (S.C. Code Title 6, 

Chapter 31, § 6-31-10) authorizes binding agreements between local governments and 
developers for the long-term development of land tracts of land; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Conway is a duly charted municipal corporation, organized and existing under 
laws of the State of South Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, on May 25, 1998, Conway City Council amended the City Code of Ordinances to allow 
the City to enter into a Land Development Agreement with developers who meet the 
necessary criteria to participate in such agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City and BRD Land & Investment, LP (aka BRDL Warden Station, LLC), entered 
into a development agreement for Warden Station, (a Planned Development (PD) 
district), dated February 27, 2024 and recorded February 27, 2024 in Deed Book 4779 at 
Page 997, in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Horry County, South Carolina (the 
“Development Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Developer now desire to amend said Development Agreement to correct 
certain inconsistencies in the manner set forth as attached herein; and 

WHEREAS, the required public hearings, in accordance with S.C. Code § 6-31-50 have occurred, and 
Planning Commission has recommended approval of the amendments to the 
Development Agreement; and 

WHEREAS,  the amendment(s) to such agreement is attached and shall be adopted by reference made 
a part hereof as if fully incorporated. Therefore, be it 

ORDAINED  that the First Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City of Conway 
and BRD Land & Investment, LP (aka BRDL Warden Station, LLC) be hereby adopted 
by reference and made a part hereof as if fully incorporated, as attached hereto; and be it 
further 

ORDAINED  that all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall become effective upon final reading. 

 

 

 

125



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this              day of   , 2024. 

 
 

 
Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 

 
Amanda Butler, Council Member  William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 
 

 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member  

 
 

 
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

 
 
First Reading:     

 

Final Reading:    
 

 

 

 

 
 

126



 

  
1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA     )   
 ) FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT  
COUNTY OF HORRY ) AGREEMENT FOR WARDEN STATION 

 
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“First 

Amendment”) is made and entered this ___ day of _______________, 2024, by and among BRD 
LAND & INVESTMENT, a South Carolina general partnership, BRDL WARDEN STATION, 
LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company, their respective affiliates, subsidiaries, successors 
and assigns (collectively “Developer”), and the governmental authority of the CITY OF CONWAY, 
a body politic under the laws of the State of South Carolina (“City”).  Capitalized terms used in this 
First Amendment and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the 
below-described Development Agreement, as hereby amended. 
 

RECITALS: 
 

WHEREAS, the City and BRD Land & Investment, entered into that certain Development 
Agreement for Warden Station, dated February 27, 2024 and recorded February 27, 2024 in Deed 
Book 4779 at Page 997, in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Horry County, South Carolina (the 
“Development Agreement”);  and 
 

WHEREAS, the City and the Developer now desire to amend said Development Agreement 
to correct certain inconsistencies in the manner set forth below.   
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions set forth herein, and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of such consideration being hereby 
acknowledged, the City and Developer hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. INCORPORATION. The above recitals are hereby incorporated into this 
Agreement. 
 
2. AMENDMENT TO SECTION 10(I) TREE PRESERVATION.  Section 10(I) of 
the Development Agreement set forth certain provisions with regards to tree preservation, which 
conflicts with the provisions of the PD, also attached to the Development Agreement, therefore the 
City and the Developer agree that Section 10(I) of the Development Agreement shall be deleted in 
its entirety, and replaced with the following: 
 

 “(I) Tree Preservation.  All of the Property shall comply with the City’s Tree 
Preservation Ordinance that is in effect as the time of plan submittal. No protected and/or 
landmark trees, as defined under the City’s Tree Preservation Ordinance, shall be removed 
without a Protected Tree Permit and the submission of a tree survey. The A tree surveys 
indicating the location, specimen, and D.B.H of all protected and/or landmark trees under 
the City’s Tree Preservation Ordinance shall be submitted for each Tract or parcel within 
the Property at the time of plan submittal, and prior to approval of any land disturbance, 
clearing, grading, confirming that development will not occur without verification by the 
City’s staff that no protected and/or landmark trees will be removed without proper 
permitting and mitigation.” 

 
3. NO FURTHER AMENDMENT. Except as specifically amended by this First 

127



 

  
2 

Amendment, all of the terms and conditions of the Development Agreement shall remain in full 
force, unless and until amended in a writing signed by the City and the Developer.   
 
4. FORCE AND EFFECT.  If Developer has properly executed this First Amendment 
and delivered the same to the City for execution within Sixty (60) days following final approval of 
this First Amendment by the City, then this First Amendment shall be null and void and of no further 
force or effect.   

 
 

[Individual Signature Pages Follow]

128



 

  
3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement as of the day and 
year first above written. 

 
DEVELOPER: 

 
WITNESSES: BRD LAND & INVESTMENT, a South 

Carolina general partnership 
 

 
______________________________ 
Name: ________________________ By:       
         Maurice B. Johnson, its CEO 
______________________________  
Name: ________________________ 

 
STATE OF ___________________ ) 

)     
COUNTY OF _________________ ) 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this  ___  day of ______________, 

2024, by Maurice B. Johnson, as CEO of BRD LAND & INVESTMENT, a South Carolina general 
partnership. He or she personally appeared before me and is personally known to me. 

 
 
 

 
Notary Public for _____________________ 
Name: ______________________________ 
My Commission Expires:   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

129



 

  
4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement as of the day 
and year first above written. 

 
DEVELOPER: 

 
WITNESSES: BRDL WARDEN STATION, LLC, a South 

Carolina limited liability company 
 

 
______________________________ 
Name: ________________________ By:       
 Name: ______________________________ 
______________________________ Title : _______________________________ 
Name: ________________________ 

 
STATE OF ___________________ ) 

)     
COUNTY OF _________________ ) 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this  ___  day of ______________, 

2024, by __________________________, as _________________________ of BRDL 
WARDEN STATION, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company. He or she personally 
appeared before me and is personally known to me. 

 
 
 

 
Notary Public for ______________________ 
Name: _______________________________ 

  My Commission Expires:________________ 

130



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement as of the day 
and year first above written. 

 
  CITY: 

 
WITNESSES: CITY OF CONWAY 
 
 
______________________________ By: _____________________________ 
Name: ________________________ Name: ___________________________ 
 Title: ____________________________ 
______________________________ 
Name: _________________________ 

 
 

 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

) 
COUNTY OF HORRY ) 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this  _____day of__________________, 
2024 by , the of  the CITY 
OF CONWAY.  He or she personally appeared before me and is personally known to me. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Notary Public for South Carolina 
Name: ___________________________ 
My Commission Expires: ___________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

131



DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 
ITEM: VI.C.  

ISSUE: 
First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-09-16 (C) to annex approximately 1.43 acres of property located 
at 104 Gardner Lacy Rd, (PIN 399-01-04-0006), and rezone from the Horry County Highway 
Commercial (HC) to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) zoning district.  

BACKGROUND: 
On August 27th, the applicant went to the City’s Water Dept. to apply for water services on the subject 
property. The applicant was informed at that time that because the property is contiguous to property in 
the City limits, they would have to request annexation. Upon review of the property, staff noticed that 
per County land records, there were permits pending for the subject property. The only thing holding up 
permit issuance at that point was the requirement for the applicant to provide proof that City utilities 
would be connected. The permit was applied for at Horry County on February 27, 2024. The use 
specified on the permit was for a new auto shop. At the time the permit was applied for at the county, 
the subject property was NOT contiguous. However, the adjacent parcel, the Founders National Golf 
property, was currently going through the annexation process and had received First Reading on 
February 19th. Final Reading occurred on March 18th, subsequently making this parcel contiguous to 
City limits. As such, staff has informed the County that no permits may be issued for the property, as it 
must apply for annexation, and have requested that the permit information be forwarded to the City for 
review.  

Surrounding uses/Zoning Districts: 
The property abuts parcels zoned City of Conway City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) and Horry 
County Highway Commercial (HC) and Horry County Limited Industrial (LI). Adjacent uses include 
the property containing the former entrance road for the MB National Golf Course, a gas station (fronting 
Hwy 501), Southern Sun Awnings, and Domino’s Pizza is located across Gardner Lacy Rd.  

The zoning designation applied for on the annexation and rezoning paperwork is the Highway 
Commercial (HC) district.  

Per Section 3.2.10 of the UDO, the intent of the Highway Commercial (HC) district is to provide 
compatible locations to serve the automobile-oriented commercial activities in harmony with 
major highway developments, reduce traffic congestions and to enhance the aesthetic 
atmosphere of the City.  

CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan also identifies the entire parcel as Highway 
Commercial (HC).  

132



PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Staff will advertise the request for a public hearing to be held at the October 3rd Planning Commission 
meeting. Their recommendation will be forwarded to Council with Final Reading of the Ordinance.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The applicant has currently had to put their plans on hold while all information relative to the property 
is being transferred from the County to the City. Even if plans are received, reviewed, and approved by 
the City expeditiously, no permits can be issued until the property has been annexed, which because it 
will involve a zoning map amendment to zone the property Highway Commercial upon annexation, 
Planning Commission must provide a recommendation before Final Reading can occur. In years past, 
properties in similar situations were permitted to proceed with permitting at the County and Final 
Reading was delayed until all County inspections have occurred. Staff does not recommend this option. 
However, staff does recommend approval of the annexation request, as it is within the City’s water 
service area and surrounding properties have recently been annexed into the City.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Application; GIS Maps 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

133



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-09-16 (C) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX APPROXIMATELY 1.43 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
LOCATED    AT 104 GARDNER LACY RD (PIN 399-01-04-0006), AND REQUEST TO 

REZONE FROM THE HORRY COUNTY HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL (HC) DISTRICT 
TO THE CITY OF CONWAY HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL (HC) DISTRICT. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONWAY:  

 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS: 
A petition has been submitted to the City Council of the City of Conway to annex approximately 1.43 
acres of property described herein and represented on a map. The City Council of the City of Conway 
has determined that the annexation of this area into the City of Conway will be to the advantage of the 
municipality. 

 
The area proposed for annexation is adjacent to the present City limits. The petition for annexation of 
land and declared zoning is hereby accepted by the governing body of the municipality of Conway, 
and made a part of the City of Conway, South Carolina, to wit: 

 
ALL AND SINGULAR, those certain parcels, lots, or tracts of land in Conway Township, County 
and    State aforesaid, containing approximately 1.43 acres of property located at 104 Gardner Lacy Rd 
(PIN 399-01-04-0006), and request to rezone from the Horry County Highway Commercial (HC) 
district to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) district. 

 
This annexation includes all waterways, roads, and rights-of-way adjacent to the property. 
For a more specific description of said property, see attached map. 

 
SECTION 2. APPLICATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE: 
The property is admitted as City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) area       under the zoning 
laws of the municipality. 

 
SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE: 
The annexation is effective as of the date of the final reading of this Ordinance. 

 
AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that such changes shall be made on the Official Zoning Map. 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such inconsistency. 
 
 
 

134



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this            day of   , 2024. 
 
 
 
Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 

 
Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 
 
 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 
 
 

              
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

 
 
 
First Reading:    
 

Final Reading:    
 
 
 
 
 

135



HW
Y 501

GARDNER LACY RD

MYRTLE BEACH NAIONAL GC

CONBRACO CIR

HW
Y 501

Date: 8/27/2024  Time: 2:03:53 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\104 Gardner Lacy Road (Archer Auto)\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR ARCHER AUTO.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0006
TMS #: 151-00-03-009

ARCHER AUTO
(P24-0226)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 399-01-04-0006

136



HW
Y 501

GARDNER LACY RD

CONBRACO CIR

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE MYR
TL

E 
BE

AC
H 

NA
IO

NA
L 

GC

PO
STAL W

AY
SANTEE COOPER DISTRIBUTION RD

NO NAME

CONBRACO CIR

HW
Y 501

Date: 8/27/2024  Time: 2:02:31 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\104 Gardner Lacy Road (Archer Auto)\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR ARCHER AUTO.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0006
TMS #: 151-00-03-009

ARCHER AUTO
(P24-0226)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 399-01-04-0006

137



LI

HC

LI

HC

HC

HC

HC

OPI

HC

LI

PUD

LI

CFA

OPI
OPI

LI

MRD2

HC

HW
Y 501

GARDNER LACY RD

CONBRACO CIR

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

PO
STAL W

AY
SANTEE COOPER DISTRIBUTION RD

NO NAME

CONBRACO CIR

HW
Y 501

Date: 8/27/2024  Time: 1:57:20 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\104 Gardner Lacy Road (Archer Auto)\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR ARCHER AUTO.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0006
TMS #: 151-00-03-009

ARCHER AUTO
(P24-0226)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 399-01-04-0006

138



HW
Y 501

GARDNER LACY RD

CONBRACO CIR

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE MYR
TL

E 
BE

AC
H 

NA
IO

NA
L 

GC

PO
STAL W

AY
SANTEE COOPER DISTRIBUTION RD

NO NAME

CONBRACO CIR

HW
Y 501

Date: 8/27/2024  Time: 1:58:42 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\104 Gardner Lacy Road (Archer Auto)\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR ARCHER AUTO.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0006
TMS #: 151-00-03-009

ARCHER AUTO
(P24-0226)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 399-01-04-0006

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

139



HW
Y 501

GARDNER LACY RD

CONBRACO CIR

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE MYR
TL

E 
BE

AC
H 

NA
IO

NA
L 

GC

PO
STAL W

AY
SANTEE COOPER DISTRIBUTION RD

NO NAME

CONBRACO CIR

HW
Y 501

Date: 8/27/2024  Time: 2:00:46 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\104 Gardner Lacy Road (Archer Auto)\GIS\FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR ARCHER AUTO.mxd

PIN #: 399-01-04-0006
TMS #: 151-00-03-009

ARCHER AUTO
(P24-0226)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 399-01-04-0006

REVISED 2019 FLOOD ZONES
0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD

A

AE

VE

PARCELS

140



141



142



143



DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 
ITEM: VI.D. 

ISSUE: 

First reading of Ordinance #2024-09-16 (D) establishing restrictions and penalties related to hate 
intimidation and hate crimes  

BACKGROUND: 

Criminal incidents locally have shown the need for an ordinance specifically dealing with bias motivated 
events. This is another measure to protect all citizens and serve as a deterrent to bias based incidents. 

The City has experienced multiple incidents of Antisemitic literature thrown from vehicles in various 
neighborhoods. The only possible remedy was littering charges, while the material was clearly bias based.  
Racist and antisemitic literature have also been posted on private and public property within the city limits. 
Again, the only actionable ordinances are those related to littering.  

Recently, the City received complaints related to harassment targeted at individual residents based on 
perceived mental disability.  

While these actions are already criminal offenses, they have only minor penalties. Research indicates that 
minor hate crimes can escalate into major events if they are unaddressed or if the initial response is 
insufficient to prevent such escalation. Additionally, they prompt stronger public outcry than a typical 
misdemeanor.  Adding this ordinance will allow for enhanced penalties to be applied by the presiding judge 
in City Court. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve first reading of Ordinance #2024-09-16 (D) providing penalties for hate intimidation and hate 
crimes committed relative to existing City ordinances.  

144



ORDINANCE #2024-09-16 (D) 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING RESTRICTIONS AND PENALTIES RELATED TO HATE 

INTIMIDATION AND HATE CRIMES  
 
WHEREAS, South Carolina is one of only two states in the United States that do not have any statewide 

law relating to hate crimes; and 
 
WHEREAS,  legislation can provide penalties for a person convicted of a crime with the intent to 

assault, intimidate, or threaten a person because of his or her race, religion, color, sex, age, 
national origin, sexual orientation, gender or gender identity, mental or physical 
disabilities; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Conway rejects and condemns all groups and individuals whose ideologies are 

based on hate, violence, divisiveness, and intolerance; and  
 
WHEREAS,  the City of Conway desires to promote a safe and quiet environment for all of our residents 

and visitors; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Conway is committed to promoting a community that is unified, where people 

of different races, religions, sexual orientations, and ethnic backgrounds resolve together to 
overcome the challenges of its past and become stronger and more inclusive. 

 
WHEREAS,  in the absence of action at the state level, Conway City Council feels morally and ethically 

compelled to act to prevent such crimes from going unnoticed and unpunished in Conway;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Conway City Council, that the City of Conway Code 
of Ordinances, Title 9, Chapter 3, is hereby amended to add Article C – Hate Intimidation and Hate 
Crimes, as attached hereto.  
 
RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this                     day of _______________, 2024.   

 
 
     
Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor  Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
  
     
Amanda Butler, Council Member   William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member  
 
  
     
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member  Beth Helms, Council Member 
        
 
    
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member   ATTEST:   Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

First Reading:  _______________    
 
Final Reading: _______________ 
 

145



 
 
 
ARTICLE C – Hate Intimidation and Hate Crimes 

 
Sec. 9-3-28 Hate Intimidation and Hate Crimes prohibited 
 

A person who commits a crime in violations of Title 9 of the City of Conway Code of Ordinances 
or any other City ordinance, with the intent to intimidate or harass a person or persons, or to cause 
harm, injury, or damage to the person or property of the victims, or to deny the liberty rights of 
any person or persons, in whole or in part, because of the actual or perceived race, color, creed, 
religion, ancestry, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, physical or mental ability or 
disability, or national origin of the victim or victims, shall be punished as provided in Section 9-3-
29.  

 
Sec. 9-3-29 Penalties 
 

(a) A violation of this section shall be a misdemeanor and punishable by a fine of not  
more than five-hundred ($500) dollars or by imprisonment for not more than thirty (30) days. The 
sentence imposed shall be consecutive to the sentence for the underlying criminal offense unless 
the court articulates on the record why the sentences should run concurrently. 
  

(b) Separate fines and/or sentences shall be imposed for contemporaneous and/or concurrent 
violations. 
 

(c) The Court may impose community service or participation in an educational or counseling 
program for violation of this section. 
 
  

(d) The Court may suspend the sentence and/or fine in whole or in part, and require completion of an 
educational program, a course of counseling, or appropriate community service. This provision 
does not constitute creation of a diversion program, nor does it provide for dismissal of any 
conviction or guilty plea, but instead allows the court flexibility in selecting effective penalties in 
appropriate cases.  

 
Sec. 9-3-30 Restitution authorized  
 

In addition to the penalties provided for above, the court may order restitution up to the limits of 
the court’s jurisdiction for damages sustained by the victim of the offense directly related to the 
commission of the crime, which may include compensation for medical bills, counseling or 
therapy, or damage to property sustained by the victim as a result of the underlying criminal 
offense.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

146



DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 
ITEM: VII.A. 

ISSUE: 

Request from Conway Architectural Salvage and Heritage Project (CASHP) for the Conway 
Artisans Festival – October 26, 2024 from 11:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Conway Architectural Salvage and Heritage Project would like to hold the Conway Artisan 
Festival to celebrate the traditional crafts and trades of our local area to educate the public about 
their mission to serve as a hub for the revival of traditional crafts and skills. 

The event will include artisan markets, craft demonstrations, activities for children and adults, 
music, and drink and food trucks. CCU’s Art Department, student and faculty will showcase 
material they have reused for their projects. 

CASHP requests Fifteenth Avenue to be closed from Mayfair Terrace to Lakeside Drive, and B 
Street closed from Fourteenth Avenue to Fifteenth Avenue from 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

CASHP will have five to seven food trucks, temporary tents or structures, 2 to 3 generators, port-
a-potties and handwashing stations. There will be a DJ and live music. 

CASHP anticipates 500 participants and 30 vendors. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

City staff has concerns about a new event in a residential area. With that being said, if council 
chooses to approve, staff does not object, 

147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 
ITEM: VII.B. 

ISSUE: 

Award of 2024-25 Economic Development Grants 

BACKGROUND: 

On April 8th, the City began soliciting applications for Economic Development Grants.  
Available funding was $150,000. On June 3rd, City Council awarded funds to two organizations 
totaling $138,000. Council was amenable to allowing Conway Architectural Salvage & Heritage 
Project to revise their original application and resubmit. The organization did submit a revised 
application and requests $11,000 in grant funds to hold its Conway Artisans Festival on October 
26th, 2024, at 503 Ninth Ave. This event is intended to be a celebration of traditional crafts and 
trades. The group plans to have exhibits of 30 local artisans and makers, craft demonstrations 
from local artists, and a showcase of projects from the Coastal Carolina Art Department. The 
requested $11,000 will go toward site preparation, musical entertainment, portable toilets, event 
promotion, shuttle, and staffing.  

Conway Architectural Salvage & Heritage Project: 

Conway Artisans Festival            Staff recommendation: $11,000 

RECOMMENDATION: 

If Council recommends approval of Conway Artisans Festival event, staff recommends approval 
of grant totaling $11,000. 

163



Economic Development 
Grant 

Application 

Applicant Information 
Entity 
Name: Date:  

Contact Person 
Name and Title: 
Physical 
Address: 

Street Address 

Apartment/Unit # 

City State ZIP Code 

Phone: Email 

Project Name: 

Proposed Start Date: 

 Proposed End Date: Total Funding Request: 

0ailiQJ
$GGUHss� 

City State ZIP Code 

Street Address 

Apartment/Unit # 

164



Detailed Project Narrative 

Wha ̀ is yRXU SURSRsHG SURMHcW RU acWiYiWy? Pl. asH liPiW yRXU UHsSRQsHs WR ��� ZRUGs RU lHss� 

165



Will there be any collaborations or partnerships? 

How will the prRMHcW be implemented (goals and objectives)" +RZ will each be measured? 
PlHasH iQclXGH GaWHs IRU UHachiQJ Hach REMHcWiYH aQG JRal�

Additional Attachments 
In order to be considered, EH sXUH WR haYH iQclXGHG WhH IRllRZiQJ to your application submission: 
(QWiWy 1aPH� Shysical lRcaWiRQ� aQG PailiQJ aGGUHss

Copy of SC incorporation documents or IRS Tax Exemption Determination Letter

Where applicable, maps showing where special events or activities will be held 

Applicant is responsible 
for obtaining all permits, licenses and insurance for events

 

Proposed itemized budget

990 Form or Prior Year Audit

'HWailHG PURMHcW 1aUUaWiYH

%XGJHW MXsWiIicaWiRQ aQG QaUUaWiYH  IRU Hach liQH iWHP iQ WhH EXGJHW

Technical and Programmatic Questions should be directed to: John Rogers � 'HSXWy &iWy $GPiQisWUaWRU (843)- 248-1760 
jrogers@cRQZaysc�JRY

Questions about the application process should be directed to: Rosanne Dates � *UaQWs 6XSHUYisRU (843) 248-1760 
rdates@cRQZaysc�JRY

Applications must be submitted electronically to ..... �$OVWRQ���*UDQWV�&RRUGLQDWRU�lalston@FRQZD\VF�JRY 
166



*UDQW�,WHPL]HG�%XGJHW�:RUNVKHHW 

PURMHFW�7LWOH�

6WDUW�'DWH���(QG�'DWH�

7RWDO�)XQGLQJ�
5HTXHVW�

([SHQVHV�

,WHP� 2UJDQL]DWLRQ�)XQGV� &LW\�)XQGV� 7RWDO�

7RWDO�PURMHFW�&RVW��
Income 

6RXUFH� 6HFXUHG�<�N� $PRXQW�

7RWDO�PURMHFW�,QFRPH��

167



%XGJHW�-XVWLILFDWLRQ�DQG�NDUUDWLYH�

([SODLQ�WKH�QHHG�IRU�HDFK�OLQH�LWHP�LQ�WKH�EXGJHW�DQG�VKRZ�WKH�EUHDNGRZQ�RI�
FDOFXODWLRQV�XVHG�WR�DUULYH�DW�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�HDFK�OLQH�LQ�WKH�EXGJHW�

168


	1.City of Conway Council Meeting Agenda 9.3.2024
	2.163 lander combined
	!2nd rdg. - 163 Lander Drive (R-1 annexation)
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 163 LANDER DR
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 163 LANDER DR
	ZONING MAP FOR 163 LANDER DR
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 163 LANDER DR
	APP_163 Lander Dr_P24-0202 (7.31.24)
	Petition for Annexation
	Map Amendment App


	3.3045 e hwy 501 combined
	!2nd rdg. - 3045 E Hwy 501 anex & rez
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 3045 E HWY 501
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 3045 E HWY 501
	ZONING MAP FOR 3045 E HWY 501
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 3045 E HWY 501
	APP_3045 Hwy 501_P24-0162 (6.24.24)

	4.City Council Meeting Minutes 8.19.2024
	5.Longevity issue
	6.parks and open space combined
	!Sp. presentation issue paper - parks & open space amendments (9.3.24 CC)
	Table of Proposed amendments to Sec. 10.3.9
	DRAFT OF REVISIONS WITH CURRENT LANGUAGE AND PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

	7.Vaught eye rezoning combined
	!Sp. Presentation - Vaught Eye (rez) (9.3.24 CC)
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR VAUGHT EYE
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR VAUGHT EYE
	ZONING MAP FOR VAUGHT EYE
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR VAUGHT EYE
	FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR VAUGHT EYE
	OBJECTION EMAIL_Vaught Eye_P24-0183 (8.14.24)
	OBJECTION LTR-EMAIL_Vaught Eye_P24-0183 (8.22.24)
	Sbuildingco24082212170
	OBJECTION EMAIL_Vaught Eye_P24-0183 (8.22.24)

	PLAT_Vaught Eye_P24-0183 (7.19.24)
	SITE_Vaught Eye_P24-0183 (7.19.24)
	Vaught-Combination Plat
	APP_Vaught Eye_P24-0183 (7.19.24)

	8.4908 hwy 501 combined
	!Sp. Presentation - 4908 Hwy 501 annex & rezone
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 4908 HWY 501
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 4908 HWY 501
	ZONING MAP FOR 4908 HWY 501
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 4908 HWY 501
	FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 4908 HWY 501
	Restrictive Covenants
	APP_4908 Hwy 501_P24-0208 (8.5.24)
	APP
	Document_20240805_0001


	9.collins jollie combined
	!1st rdg - Issue Paper for Collins Jollie DA (9.3.24 CC mtg.)
	DA-Amended and Restated_Collins Jollie_P24-0177 (7.9.24)
	“Property” means those parcels of land more particularly described on UExhibit “USBSU C”U attached hereto.
	“Residential Unit” means a single-family home, whether attached or detached, a single family attached condominium, single family home in-common (whether attached or detached), or a multi-family home, within the Property, as shown and depicted on the M...
	“Term” means the duration of this Agreement as set forth in USection 3U hereof.
	City of Conway
	101 Third Avenue
	And to the Developer at:                                 Collins Jolly Holding Co., LLC
	c/o Robert S. Guyton, P.C.
	DEVELOPER:
	WITNESSES: COLLINS JOLLY HOLDING CO., LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company
	Notary Public
	Name: ______________________________
	CITY:
	WITNESSES: CITY OF CONWAY
	_______________________________ By: _____________________________
	Name: _________________________ Name: ___________________________
	Title: ____________________________
	______________________________
	Name: ________________________
	N
	Notary Public
	UJOINDER OF OTHER OWNER
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Description of Creekside Homes, LLC Property
	[TO BE ATTACHED]
	UJOINDER OF OTHER OWNER
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Description of Lennar Carolinas, LLC Property
	[TO BE ATTACHED]
	UJOINDER OF OTHER OWNER
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Description of Realstar Homes, LLC Property
	[TO BE ATTACHED]
	UJOINDER OF OTHER OWNER
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Description of D.R. Horton, Inc. Property
	[TO BE ATTACHED]
	EXHIBIT “SAS B”
	EXHIBIT “SBS C”
	Description of Property
	[TO BE ATTACHED]
	EXHIBIT “SCS D”
	Master Site  Plan
	[TO BE ATTACHED]
	EXHIBIT “SDS E”
	Development Schedule
	Construction will begin following receipt of permits from the City of Conway and from other regulatory bodies. The nature of this Project, together with the current economic conditions, prevents the Developer from providing exact dates for commencemen...

	MP_Collins Jollie
	Sheets and Views
	36 x 48 (PLAN)



	10.warden station combined
	!1st rdg - Issue Paper for Warden Station DA amendment (9.3.24 CC mtg.)
	DA-1st Amendment_Warden Station_P24-0176 (with revisions)
	DEVELOPER:
	WITNESSES: BRD LAND & INVESTMENT, a South Carolina general partnership
	Notary Public for _____________________
	Name: ______________________________
	DEVELOPER:
	WITNESSES: BRDL WARDEN STATION, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company
	Notary Public for ______________________
	Name: _______________________________
	CITY:
	WITNESSES: CITY OF CONWAY
	______________________________ By: _____________________________
	Name: ________________________ Name: ___________________________
	Title: ____________________________
	______________________________
	Name: _________________________
	N
	Notary Public for South Carolina
	Name: ___________________________


	11.104 gardner lacy combined
	!1st rdg. - 104 Gardner Lacy Rd (anx & rez)
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR ARCHER AUTO
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR ARCHER AUTO
	ZONING MAP FOR ARCHER AUTO
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR ARCHER AUTO
	FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR ARCHER AUTO
	APP_Archers Auto_P24-0227 (8.27.24)

	12.Hate crime ordinance
	13.artisans festival special event
	Conway Artisans Festival
	application

	14.artisans festival economic development grant combined
	2024-2025 Conway Artisans Issue Paper
	City Economic Development Grant Application with Budget Revised
	Application
	Applicant Information
	Detailed project narrative
	Additional Attachments

	Date:
	Apartment/Unit #
	Street Address
	ZIP Code
	Email
	       Proposed End Date:

	State
	City
	Blank Page



	Name: Conway Architectural Salvage and Heritage Project
	Date: 07/12/2024
	Name and Title: Alan Todd, Executive Director
	Phone: 520-229-7834
	Email: info@conwaysalvage.org
	Project Name: Conway Artisans Festival
	Proposed Start Date: 08/15/2024
	Proposed End Date: 10/26/2024
	Address: 503 Ninth Avenue
	City: Conway
	State: SC
	ZIP Code: 29526
	What does your proposal entail: Nonprofit Mission Statement:
We are dedicated to reinvesting the inherent value of historic used building materials back into the well-being of our local communities; preserving the built environment's architectural and lived histories; and reviving traditional crafts and skills that build healthier relationships between People, Place, and Planet.

Conway Architectural Salvage and Heritage Project requests the members of Conway’s City Council vote to provide our nonprofit with $11,000 remaining from the ’24-25 Economic Development Grant. These funds will be put towards the inaugural Conway Artisans Festival, a special event we will host on October 26th, 2024. This event is intended to be an inspiring celebration of the traditional crafts and trades that our nonprofit and so many others believe have the power to invigorate individual creativity and create stronger communities. The City’s financial support will also provide our nonprofit with an opportunity to educate the public about our mission and local material reuse, the human stories behind our historic properties, and our efforts to rehabilitate the historic McIver-Shaw Lumber Co. and Icehouse buildings to serve as a hub for the revival of the traditional crafts and skills that build healthier relationships between people, place, and planet. Ultimately, we aim to highlight local artistic skill and expertise that aligns with the values of preserving our built and natural environment, strengthening communities, and promoting principles of a circular economy here in Conway.
	Will there be any collaborations or partnerships: Conway Artisans Festival is the culmination of the collaborative efforts central to our grassroots, community-driven nonprofit. The event will bring together local vendors and artisans who believe art and the traditional crafts and skills have a role to play in creating healthier relationships between people, place, and planet. We will partner with the City of Conway for event staging and promotion. We are also collaborating with CREATE Conway, Inc. and Conway Glass, Inc. for event planning and assistance in event promotion. Additionally, several faculty and students from Coastal Carolina University's Art Department will showcase their work produced from our reclaimed materials.
	How will the program be implemented goals and objectives and how will each be measured: GOALS:
1. Educate the broader public about Conway Architectural Salvage and Heritage Project mission, dedicated to putting reclaimed historic building materials back into the well-being of our local communities.
2. Share the human stories behind our historic properties serving as a hub for the revival of the traditional crafts and skills that build healthier relationships between people, place, and planet.
3. Provide an opportunity for collaborative efforts within our community to strengthen healthier
relationships.
4. Celebrate the traditional crafts and trades that have the power to invigorate individual creativity and create stronger communities.

OBJECTIVES:
1. Host Conway Artisans Festival with exhibits of 30 local artisans and makers, many of whom are reviving traditional crafts and skills.
2. Offer craft demonstrations from local artists (including wood planing, joinery, metal work, glass blowing, and pottery throwing). 
3. Showcase projects of faculty and students from Coastal Carolina Art Department.
	Check Box11: Yes
	Check Box12: Yes
	Check Box13: Yes
	Check Box14: Yes
	Check Box15: Yes
	Check Box16: Yes
	Check Box17: Yes
	Project Title: Conway Artisans Festival
	Start Date End Date: October 26, 2024
	Total Funding Request: $11,000
	ItemRow1: Site preparation and clean up
	Organization FundsRow1: 
	City FundsRow1: $2,750
	TotalRow1: $2,750
	ItemRow2: Portable toilets: standard (4) and ADA compliant (1)
	Organization FundsRow2: 
	City FundsRow2: $1,050
	TotalRow2: $1,050
	ItemRow3: Event promotion
	Organization FundsRow3: 
	City FundsRow3: $950
	TotalRow3: $950
	ItemRow4: Staffing: 8 persons @ $200/day
	Organization FundsRow4: 
	City FundsRow4: $1,600
	TotalRow4: $1,600
	ItemRow5: Shuttle from parking: 5 carts @ $120/day
	Organization FundsRow5: 
	City FundsRow5: $600
	TotalRow5: $600
	ItemRow6: Music/Entertainment
	Organization FundsRow6: 
	City FundsRow6: $3,500
	TotalRow6: $3,500
	ItemRow7: Cash on hand
	Organization FundsRow7: 
	City FundsRow7: $550
	TotalRow7: $550
	TotalTotal Project Cost: $11,000
	SourceRow1: 
	Secured YNRow1: 
	AmountRow1: 
	SourceRow2: 
	Secured YNRow2: 
	AmountRow2: 
	SourceRow3: 
	Secured YNRow3: 
	AmountRow3: 
	AmountTotal Project Income: $0
	used to arrive at the amount of each line in the budget: Site preparation - Setup/Clean up/securing gates/trash disposal/6 trash cans - $2,750
This is an estimate based on materials cost and labor to beautify and secure event space outside of properties. Labor cost based on our organization's hourly pay rate, which is $20/hr.

Portable toilets - 4 standard, 1 ADA compliant, 2 hand washing stations - $1050 
Amount based on regional average to rent portable restrooms and sanitation stations.

Event Promotion - $950
4 banners @ $150 each 
200 flyers @ $100
200 postcard mailers @ $100
Amounts from quote received from Dupicates Inc. 
social media $5/day x 30 days
Amount is standard rate provided by Meta Platforms

Staffing: 8 @ $200/day - $1600
We will have 8 staff working approximately 10 hours (@ $20/hr) on the day of the event
* Note: this is in addition to our organizations committed volunteers and supporters.

Shuttle to and from parking nearby as well as from Downtown Conway - $600
5 carts @ $120/day 
Amount based on area's average daily rental cost.

Entertainment: featuring local musicians - $3500
Amount based on average cost for live musical entertainment in our area. 

Cash on hand for unexpected needs - $550
Though we hope there are not any unforeseen expenses, this amount provides us with a buffer to make any last minute purchases for necessary equipment either for the event or for vendors (e.g., to replace a generator, etc.). 


